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Financial Highlights
December 31, 2008, 2007, 2006

2008

2007

2006

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY
Basic
Diluted

P 0.6388
            0.6386

P 1.171

   P 0.9379

1.170            0.9374
   (Amounts in Million Pesos)

22,307

19,891

17.020

2,927

5,365

4,297

579

563

405

3,506

5,928

TOTAL CONSOLIDATED ASSETS

55,677

48,349

TOTAL EQUITY

16,623

16,154

CONSOLIDATED REVENUES
CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME
Attributable to:
           Equity Holders of the Parent Company
           Minority Interest

4,702      
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At-a-glance
ABS-CBN Broadcasting
Corporation
The largest news and
entertainment content provider
in the Philippines that produces
multimedia programming for
domestic and international
audiences

2008 Highlights

Power Group Through Investments in
First Philippine Holdings Corporation
First Gen Corporation
The largest vertically-integrated
power generation company in the
Philippines and proponent of clean
and renewable energy, with an
installed capacity of 2,582MW

Manila Electric Company
The largest electric utility in the
Philippines with a franchise area
covering 9,337 square kilometers,
home to 20 million people

2008 Highlights

• Total consolidated revenues
dipped by 4 percent to P191.78
billion
• Consolidated net income of
P3.13 billion
• Recognized by the Institute of
Corporate Directors (ICD) as
one of the Top 20 in its
Corporate Governance
Scorecard for Publicly Listed
Companies in the Philippines

• 60 percent hike in consolidated
revenues to US$1.8 billion
• Net income attributable to equity
holders of the Parent down by 86
percent to US$14.5 million
year-on-year
• Unit First Gas Power Corporation
closed a US$544 million-senior
secured term loan with nine
international banks

2008 Highlights

• Consolidated revenues increased
by 12 percent to P22.31 billion
• Consolidated net income up by
9 percent to P1.39 billion
• ABS-CBN Global subscriptions
grew by 28 percent year-on-year
in US dollar terms
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SkyCable
The largest cable operator
and pioneer of high definition
television in the country, offering
value added broadband internet
and voice over internet protocol

2008 Highlights
• EBITDA grew to P911 million
from P874 million
• Consolidated net profit of
P112 million
• Invested in ‘triple-play’ service
to offer the fastest residential
broadband internet
(SkyBroadband), the best priced
international direct distance
   calling service (SkyVoice) and
   the clearest digital TV service     
(SkyCable) all in one package

Communication Group

Bayan
Telecommunications
Customer service leader and
innovator, the pioneer in wireless
landline

2008 Highlights
• Total revenues up 15 percent
year-on-year to P6.32 billion
• EBITDA at P1.10 billion
• Total subscribers increased by
9 percent to over 500,000,
including 180,000 Bayan
Wireless Landline and 105,000
BayanDSL subscribers by
yearend

Property Development
Rockwell Land
Corporation
The country’s trend-setting selfcontained, mixed-use community
is venturing outside Makati into a
greater Rockwell

2008 Highlights
• Revenues reached P3.51 billion
• Net income increased by 27
percent to P603 million
• Ventured to capture a broader
market with the launch of
The Grove, a six-tower
residential project on a 5.4
hectare site in Pasig City
near Ortigas Avenue
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History
Benpres was incorporated in 1993 by the

Vision

A world-class conglomerate committed to investments that improve
the lives of Filipinos

Lopez family to serve as the holding company
for investments in three major sectors:
broadcasting and cable; telecommunications;
power generation and distribution. It added to
its portfolio, investments in other basic service
sectors but has since sold its interest in banking,

Mission

Benpres will:
• invest in industries vital to nation-building;
• build on its strengths and competencies in core power and
media businesses; and
• provide the highest standard of service and value to
shareholders, affiliates, regulators, creditors and employees.

water distribution, toll roads, information

Values

technology and health care delivery. It retains

In fulfilling its mission to serve all Filipinos, Benpres adheres to the
attendant values of nationalism, integrity, entrepreneurship and
innovation, teamwork, and a strong work ethic.

a minority interest in property development.
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Oscar M. Lopez

Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Message to the Stockholders
Fellow shareholders:
We find ourselves today in the middle of a worldwide
economic downturn, believed to be the worst since the
Great Depression. Then as now, we see weak international
trade, net job losses, and declines in personal income and
corporate profits.
I must say that in all the years I have been in business, and
in my 79 years, I truly have not seen anything quite like this
situation. The crisis that began in 2007 and continued into
2008 challenged the very foundations of the economic and
financial philosophy on which free trade and commerce
depended for over half a century. Even more worrisome are
the extensive social repercussions as destroyed wealth and
falling incomes force families to face financial difficulties,
diminish confidence in their own future, and reduce their
consumption of goods and services.
For this reason, Benpres Holdings Corporation (Benpres)
has chosen to focus on doing what it must to ensure that

the future return of prosperity will find its operating units in
perfect position to reap the fruits of current toil. Investments
made must be shepherded to yield the desired gains for
both customers and shareholders.
In the power sector, First Philippine Holdings Corporation
(FPHC) reported a net income attributable to equity holders
of the Parent of P1.2 billion, 73 percent lower than the
2007 performance, due essentially to high finance costs and
foreign exchange losses. To address its debt situation, FPHC
in March 2009 reduced its ownership of Meralco to 13.4
percent, just about where it was before 2007.
As you know, there was a very public battle for management
control of Meralco in 2008. With your support and the
confidence vested in us by the investment community, the
Lopez Group, to which Benpres belongs, prevailed. However,
the business environment in which Meralco operated
became substantially different from our expectations.
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When we practically doubled our equity in the country’s
largest electric utility in 2007, it was in anticipation of the
implementation of Performance Based Regulation (PBR).
PBR would have allowed Meralco to adjust rates according
to its performance both in system-wide operations and
individual customer service. We sincerely believed that
PBR would allow a fair return on investment, given the
exceptional performance of Meralco. As it happened, PBR
implementation was deferred and Meralco continued to
operate under irrational financial conditions characterized
by under recoveries as the distributor continued to advance
payments to power suppliers and the transmission company,
while being disallowed from collecting the real cost of the
same power from customers.
At least P2.5 billion in “disallowed recovery of generation
costs” for 2008 alone gave FPHC 2.5 billion reasons to
rethink its long-term involvement in a highly politicized
business like electricity distribution. Meralco’s history
has long been intertwined with the Lopez family due to
the ground-breaking work began there by my late father,
Eugenio H. Lopez, Sr. However, beyond merely just being a
family matter, we viewed the future of our investment in the
context of the prevailing business environment.
Given the political environment, we realized that reducing
our stake in Meralco to its pre-2007 level would be for the
best. It would be good for FPHC, Benpres, and the Lopez
Group because it will allow us to bring down consolidated
debt to quite manageable levels. At the same time, we
maintain significant shareholder rights over Meralco through
an investment and cooperation agreement with PLDT.

“Our family, the Lopez family,
has been in business for almost
200 years and we have grown
our investments, with the help
of professional managers,
always with the mind to uplift
the lives of our countrymen”

The move we took would also be good for Meralco.
It strengthens the utility as a company, and give it an
opportunity to work for PBR without the political noise
attendant to the Lopez Group’s participation in its business.
With the entry of new strategic partners, we believe there is
ample opportunity to enhance the value of our investment,
while continuously improving the service we provide to
customers.
Today, Meralco is majority owned by three of the oldest
corporations in the country, all with a rich heritage of
entrepreneurship and customer focus. We see many
potential synergies in service provision, and even more areas
for significant business cooperation among the shareholder
groups.
It is notable that Meralco celebrated its 105th year as an
electric utility in 2008, and for the last 47 of those 105 years,
it has been under the helm of the Lopez Group. Throughout
this time, Meralco has consistently served its publics with
integrity and malasakit, reaping recognition for corporate
governance and for the most part, exceeding performance
measures mandated by law.
Due to a business environment poisoned by politics,
it has been easy to overlook that Meralco is a good
company. Technically, it has improved service levels with
IFR (Interruption Frequency Rate) and CIT (Cumulative
Interruption Time) continually going down. Its system loss is
down to 9.28%, from the high of 22% in 1986.

BENPRES AR 2008

It is the regulatory challenge, such as the delayed recovery of
purchased power costs, that has caused the unpredictability
of Meralco’s performance. Meralco registered a consolidated
net income of P3.1 billion in 2008, down by 22 percent from
the P4.0 billion net income posted in 2007. It recognized a
provision for probable losses and refund of P6.6 billion and
of this amount, P2.5 billion was for the disallowed recovery
of generation costs while P4.1 billion was for transmission
charges refundable to customers. Without the provision for
probable loss on the disallowed recovery of generation costs
of P2.5 billion, net income would have been P5.6 billion or
an increase of 39 percent over 2007.
Despite abnormal regulatory conditions, Meralco has
continued to provide a very valuable public service with
excellence. In line with our commitment to improve the
lives of our fellow Filipinos, and with the support of our
partners in Meralco, the distribution utility will continue
vital investments for electric service improvements that will
benefit industrial, commercial and residential customers, as
well as the country.
Meanwhile, First Gen has chosen to go the clean and
renewable route, and the purchase of EDC has boosted its
journey in this direction. The rationale for this choice is quite
sound. The world marches on toward a carbon-constrained
future. We saw crude peak near US$150 per barrel in July
2008, while bituminous coal was trading at US$185 per ton
in the same period. At that time, prices represented year-onyear increases of 114 percent and 172 percent, respectively.
This has given economic incentives for the development of
alternative and renewable energy sources.
With the expertise of EDC in geothermal and steam
technology, and First Gen’s track record in power asset
management, investments in clean and renewable energy
will lead to growth and leadership in this exciting field.
The financial market recognized this compelling potential
when First Gas Power Corporation, a First Gen subsidiary,
obtained a US$544 million loan package from nine banks in
November 2008. The confidence accorded to our group of
companies was exceptional as it was given during a period
when there was general difficulty in refinancing maturing
obligations. That difficulty persists this year but the First
Gas loan was anchored on the recognition of its excellent
operating assets. First Gas operates the Santa Rita natural
gas-fired plant which has been consistently among the most
efficient in the country.

First Gen reported a 60 percent increase in consolidated
revenues to US$1.8 billion from US$1.1 billion in 2007.
However, net income attributable to equity holders of the
Parent dropped by 86 percent to US$14.5 million year-onyear (YoY) from US$104.7 million in 2007. These results
were largely due to the debt taken on for the purchase
of a controlling stake in Energy Development Corporation
(EDC).
In the communications sector, ABS-CBN Corporation (ABSCBN) earned P1.4 billion and continued to invest in delivery
platforms that will reach Filipino audiences anywhere in the
world. Its entry into the social networking arena through
a 5 percent stake in Multiply, Inc. underscores its thrust to
be where its young, tech-savvy audiences are, even as it
innovates in developing content that would appeal to an
increasingly segmented market.
Sky Cable Corporation (SkyCable) now wholly owns Pilipino
Cable Corporation (PCC), owner of SKY-branded cable TV
Systems in the provinces, after acquiring 45.5 percent equity
of the Lorenzo group for P900 million, signaling a greater
interest in cable TV, and in providing the kind of digital
services that are currently being enjoyed in the developed
world.
SkyCable and Bayan Telecommunications, Inc. (Bayan) have
continued to invest in their respective networks to give
subscribers both affordable and high quality services, which
competitors are finding hard to match. Rockwell Land also
marked a milestone in 2008 by entering the mid-market in
the property sector, thereby offering its quality residences to
more customers.
The sale of our stake in The Medical City and in First
Philippine Infrastructure, Inc. in 2008 helps move forward
our financial restructuring. We have used proceeds for the
partial purchase of principal debt, thereby reducing risks
associated with our corporate rehabilitation.
Benpres reported consolidated net income of P3.5 billion in
2008, 41 percent lower than 2007 profits. This result takes
into account a net foreign exchange loss of P2.2 billion due
to the 15 percent depreciation of the peso against the dollar.
The company expects to achieve a substantial reduction in
its debt within 2009, after breakthrough discussions with
creditors led to an agreement for Benpres to buy back its
debt papers at a discount. This will bring down company
outstanding debt to very manageable levels going forward,
and provides incentive for other creditors to work with
Benpres toward a permanent resolution of its financial
situation.
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Looking at the media group, we see that advertising spend
has not grown in the last several years. But ABS-CBN has
been able to perform creditably by focusing on the essentials:
obtaining the loyalty of its kapamilyas and expanding its
audience reach via multiple distribution platforms. It must
continue to creatively balance this approach, in order to
strengthen its national television ratings advantage and
build on its momentum in Metro Manila.
We also look forward to gains in our cable, telecom, and
property investments. SkyCable remains the leading brand in
its franchise and attempts to sustain a financial turnaround
that began in 2007. Bayan must build on its wireless landline
achievement and strong customer service suit. The fact that
its revenues grew by 15 percent in 2008 when its industry
grew by only 4 percent is telling us that it is doing the right
things.
As for Rockwell Land, despite a softening of the real estate
market, it still benefits from the flight to quality as property
buyers seek developers with a track record. Rockwell Land
has built a sterling reputation for reliability and customer
service. Its brand is among the most respected in the real
estate sector, which is expected to find support from the low
interest rates offered for housing loans.
Although we have not been able to provide financial support
for the investments our operating units have been making
to delight their customers, we continue to exercise our
parenting function by providing enterprise-wide corporate
services to improve overall performance through business
excellence, social responsibility and other initiatives. All
these are intended to enable each business unit to thrive
in a competitive environment for the long haul. We are
building companies to last well into a time perhaps only our
grandchildren’s grandchildren will see. We want the gains on
our investments to outlive us and benefit future generations,
leading them always to a better way of life.
Our family, the Lopez family, has been in business for almost
200 years and we have grown our investments, with the
help of professional managers, always with the mind to
uplift the lives of our countrymen. Political administrations
have come and gone but the Lopez group of companies
have continuously served fellow Filipinos and promoted
the national interest. Through periods of economic want or
plenty, we have chosen to invest in businesses that support
and promote the country’s development.

The current economic turmoil is a challenge I am confident
our businesses and our staff are equal to. We have been
through so many crises and weathered them all, guided by
our values of nationalism, integrity, entrepreneurship and
innovation, teamwork, and a strong work ethic.
Going forward, we see the Philippine government
implementing monetary, fiscal, and governance measures
to ease the effects of the global financial crisis on our
people. A stimulus program has been launched to speed up
infrastructure spending on high impact projects, retraining
returning overseas workers, providing funding for microenterprises and livelihood, and focusing on the outsource
industry that is expected to benefit from cost-cutting in the
industrialized nations.
Thus far, it is our export sector that has been adversely
affected by the declining consumer demand in our markets.
This leads us to expect further drops in industrial sector
electricity consumption as manufacturers lower output,
if not stop production altogether. Hence our mandate for
the power and energy group is to ensure continued and
increasing efficiency in operations so as to pass on all savings
to our customers and aid local manufacturers weather the
tough business environment.
Much work remains for both our country and our company.
Seeing how much more development our country needs,
envisioning the kind of services our fellow Filipinos desire,
knowing there is so much more we can offer to improve all
our lives—these thoughts urge us to go to work every day.
I once again thank you for your faith in your board and
in your management team. It is indeed via stakeholders
working together that Benpres can prevail.

Oscar M. Lopez
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
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Angel S. Ong

President and Chief Operating Officer

Report of the President and COO
2008 was marked by the US subprime crisis, the bailout
of several banking giants, and the oil crisis. Philippine
manufacturers, especially exporters to the developed world,
subsequently turned to mass layoffs in response to the
greatly reduced demand for their products.
In 2008, your company posted a net income attributable to
equity holders of the Parent of P2.9 billion – a 45 percent
drop from the previous year’s P5.4 billion.  The lower net
income was due to the lower contribution from equity in
net earnings of associates, more particularly from FPHC. In
addition, Benpres also reflected a foreign exchange loss of
P2.2 billion for the year, a reversal from the P3.2 billion gain
reported the year before.

Operational Highlights of Subsidiaries
and Associates
2008 saw hardly any growth in ABS-CBN’s traditional
revenue source of airtime revenues. However, the company’s

strategy of diversification to new platforms and entry to more
geographic markets sheltered ABS-CBN from the slowdown
in the advertising industry. Total consolidated revenues
amounted to P22.3 billion, up by 12 percent year-on-year.
Of this, 39 percent was generated from direct sales, which
10 years ago accounted for only 6 percent of total revenues.
The company’s international operations, ABS-CBN Global
continued to add to its subscriber base and ended the year
with an estimated two million viewers worldwide. Adding
to ABS-CBN’s diversified offerings was the consolidation of
SkyCable in 2008 as its ownership in this company increased
to 65.3 percent.
SkyCable with its major product lines – cable TV, broadband,
and voice – strengthened its brand value in 2008 through
its campaign SkyCable: It Changes You. It ended the
year with a consolidated net income of P112 million and
consolidated EBITDA of P911 million. The year 2008 saw
SkyCable growing its Prepaid and Platinum subscriber base,
signing a debt restructuring agreement with its creditors,
and acquiring the remaining 45.5 percent of Pilipino Cable
Corp. for a 100 percent ownership.
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Despite competition and the softening economic conditions,
Bayan’s revenues grew by 15 percent year-on-year. Data
services continue to be a bright spot for the company as
revenues increased by 18 percent year-on-year. Also growing
strong is the company’s wireless local loop service branded
as Bayan Wireless Landline (BWL). By the end of 2008,
BWL subscribers numbered 180,000 from only 150,000
subscribers in 2007. Currently the BWL service can be
enjoyed in Metro Manila, Bicol, Samar, Leyte, Iloilo, Davao,
General Santos, Agusan, and Cagayan de Oro. Bayan is
committed to further grow this revenue base by adding base
stations and continuously improving service quality.
FPHC reported a net income attributable to equity holders of
the Parent of P1.2 billion in 2008. This was 73 percent lower
compared to a year ago due to the lower contributions of its
subsidiaries and affiliates as well as higher finance costs due
to a higher debt level. Together with Benpres, FPHC sold its
entire stake in First Philippine Infrastructure, Inc. to Metro
Pacific Investments Corp. FPHC received P6.2 billion from
the buyer.
Property arm, Rockwell ventured into its first development
outside of the Rockwell Center enclave with the launch in

Subsidiary /
Associate
First Holdings
FPII*
ABS-CBN**
Rockwell
Total

October 2008 for Phase 1 of its first mid-market segment
project named The Grove located along C5. Revenues
in 2008 were flat at P3.5 billion as One Rockwell, a high
rise residential development inside Rockwell Center, began
construction. Residential condominium sales still accounted
for 80 percent of total revenues with the balance contributed
by retail and cinema operations.
The table below summarizes the contributions of the
subsidiaries and affiliates to your company.
Cash dividends received in 2008 totaled P945 million coming
from ABS-CBN, Rockwell and First Philippine Infrastructure,
Inc. Given the challenges it faced in 2008, FPHC was not able
to make any cash dividend payments.

Debt Restructuring Update
In 2008, your company was able to sell its 18 percent stake
in The Medical City for P600 million to an affiliate of Lombard
Asia and its 48 percent stake in First Philippine Infrastructure,
Inc. for P6.0 billion to Metro Pacific Investments Corp.   In

Net Income attribute to
equity holders of parent
(in PHP mn)

Ownership

BHC Share
(in PHP mn)

1,192

43.1%

209

608

48.1%

292

57.3%***

807

24.5%

148    

1,383
603

1,456

3,786

*Sold to Metro Pacific Investments Corporation in November 2008
**Held through Convertible Notes issued by Lopez Inc. The convertibility feature of the ABS-CBN Notes qualifies as “potential voting rights” under PAS 27.
*** After the effects of PDRs convertible to common shares, ownership is 58.5%.

Subsidiary /
Associate

Cash Dividends
(in PHP mn)

FPII

516

ABS-CBN*

368

Rockwell
Total

61
945

*Through Lopez, Inc. as interest payments for Convertible and NonConvertible Notes
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“Benpres is firm in its
commitment to industries that
build the nation and improve
the lives of our countrymen. The
vision of our founders to bring
first-class services to our fellow
Filipinos anywhere in the world
remains clear.”

line with its debt restructuring proposal to creditors, the
proceeds from these asset sales have been set aside for
debt buyback and debt repayment.
As of February 2009, Benpres has been able to buy back
P501 million and US$64 million of its debt at a 40 percent
discount. This has enabled your company to reduce its
outstanding debt to US$323 million from approximately
US$408 million in 2006.
Debt restructuring discussions with our creditors are
continuing and, in the absence of a definitive restructuring
agreement, Benpres continues to make semi-annual
goodwill interest payments on its outstanding debt.

Benpres is firm in its commitment to industries that build the
nation and improve the lives of our countrymen. The vision
of our founders to bring first-class services to our fellow
Filipinos anywhere in the world remains clear.
It is by persevering and continuously building on our strengths
in the media and power sectors that we can provide the
best services that our customers deserve. Our experience
in these industries is far-reaching and we believe that once
our restructuring is completed, we can create value for our
shareholders in these businesses.  
Thank you for your support.

Investing in the Filipino
Looking ahead, we continue to see value in maintaining
controlling interests in our core subsidiaries – ABS-CBN and
FPHC, which excel in their industries and are recognized as
market leaders and innovators.

Angel S. Ong
President and Chief Operating Officer
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Review of
Operations
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Units 1 and 2 of Pantabangan Hydroelectric Power Plant (50 MW each)

Power
First Philippine Holdings Corporation (FPHC) registered
consolidated revenues of P78.56 billion in 2008.
This is 43 percent higher than the P55.00 billion in
consolidated revenues the previous year. Net income
attributable to equity holders of the Parent was at P1.19
billion, lower by 73 percent from P4.48 billion in 2007.
In April 2008, FPHC issued P4.30 billion worth of
preferred shares, higher than the originally planned P3.00
billion. Proceeds were earmarked for partially repaying or
refinancing debt incurred when it increased its stakes in
core investments such as Meralco, and for new strategic
investments in electronics/electricals manufacturing, in July
2008, FPHC paid a total of US$6.9 million in

amortization and
interest payments
on
its
US$35
million-term notes
falling due in 2011,
and bought back
US$6 million of the
balance of its US$52
million floating rate notes falling due in 2009.
Together with Benpres, FPHC sold its entire stake in First
Philippine Infrastructure, Inc. in November 2008. FPHC
received P6.2 billion from buyer Metro Pacific Investments
Corp.
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A Clean and
Sustainable Future
The unprecedented rise in world coal and oil prices in
2008, again, underscored the importance of developing
non fossil-based fuel alternatives.
The purchase of Energy Development Corporation (EDC)
by First Gen Corporation (First Gen) in November 2007
proved to be very timely, giving it the momentum to
become the leader in the development and use of clean
and renewable energy.

Substation and spillway of the
Masiway Hydroelectric Power Plant

Power Generation

  
First Gen Corporation (First Gen) reported a 60 percent
increase in consolidated revenues to US$1.78 billion in
2008 from US$1.11 billion in 2007. However, net income
attributable to equity holders of the Parent dropped by
86 percent to US$14.5 million year-on-year (YoY) from
US$104.7 million in 2007.
The results were largely due to the loans taken on for the
purchase of a controlling stake in Energy Development
Corporation (EDC). In February 2008, First Gen sold
US$260 million convertible bonds at a coupon rate of 2.5
percent, which termed out part of the bridge loans. At the
height of the financial crisis in November 2008, First Gen’s
subsidiary, First Gas Power Corporation closed a US$544million refinancing deal. The deal was voted “Asia Pacific
Deal of the Year” by Project Finance (Euromoney). This loan
allowed First Gen to transfer most of its short-term loans to
long-term debt at the operating level, which also aims to
enhance the project’s returns.
Aside from the interest expense, profits further suffered
because of unrealized foreign exchange losses
resulting from the revaluation of the First Gen group’s various
foreign currency-denominated loans and assets, as well
as the full year income tax payment of the Sta. Rita gas
plant and the lower net income of First Gen Hydro Power
Corporation. Nonetheless, these declines were offset by the
recognition of the full year net income from EDC.

EDC has an aggregate installed capacity of 1,199
megawatts (MW) of steam supply and 744 MW of
geothermal power generation facilities. EDC also offers
technical consultancy services in all aspects of geothermal
exploration and development.
In October 2008, EDC purchased 60 percent of First Gen
Hydro Power Corporation (FGHPC), the operating company
of the 112 MW Pantabangan-Masiway hydroelectric power
complex, to add to its renewable energy base. FGHPC is in
the middle of a two-year rehabilitation and modernization
program for Pantabangan which will extend its lifespan
and increase its capacity by at least 18 MW by 2010.
First Gas natural gas-fired power plants in Batangas – the
1,000-MW Santa Rita and 500-MW San Lorenzo plants
– have consistently been among the most efficient in the
country with record levels of reliability and availability
that exceed benchmarks of the North American Electricity
Reliability Council for plants of similar size and kind.
The Sta. Rita and San Lorenzo plants bagged the
prestigious “Ten Years No Lost Time” from the Department
of Labor and Employment-Bureau of Working Conditions
(DOLE-BWC) for logging 1.5 million “safe man-hours/no
loss time incident” from October 25, 1998 to October 25,
2008.
These investments have set First Gen on a growth platform
with a most distinctive set of energy assets that are not
easy to duplicate, environmentally sustainable, and able
to deliver great value to consumers. These are investments
towards a clean and sustainable future for all.
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Power Distribution
In May 2008, Meralco was recognized by the Institute
of Corporate Directors (ICD) as one of the Top 20 in
its Corporate Governance Scorecard for Publicly Listed
Companies in the Philippines. The award was given by
the ICD, an independent and autonomous institute that
champions corporate governance reforms in the country, the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the Philippine
Stock Exchange, and the Ateneo Law School.
Also in May, FPHC retained control over Meralco after a proxy
battle with the Government Service Insurance System (GSIS),
which owned 27 percent of the electric utility. The Court of
Appeals upheld Meralco in its dispute with GSIS, voiding the
cease-and-desist order issued by the SEC in connection with
the election of the company’s board members. In its decision,
the Court agreed with Meralco’s position that jurisdiction
over election contests and intra-corporate controversies had
been removed from the SEC by law and is now vested in the
regional trial court. This decision in favor of Meralco was
also upheld by the Supreme Court in April 2009.

In October 2008, San Miguel Corporation bought
government-held Meralco shares, including those of GSIS.
In March 2009, FPHC agreed to sell the equivalent of 20
percent ownership in Meralco to the PLDT group, under an
investment and cooperation agreement. FPHC retains 13.4
percent ownership in Meralco. FPHC and Meralco have been
working closely with the new shareholders to ensure the
continued success of country’s premier electric distribution
company.
Meralco posted 22 percent drop in its consolidated net
income to P3.13 billion in 2008, from P4.04 billion in 2007.
Total consolidated revenues decreased by 4 percent YoY to
P191.78 billion from P200.69 billion primarily due to lower
generation cost per kilowatthour (kwh) billed to customers.
Total consolidated expenses decreased by a similar 4 percent
to P186.58 billion from P194.60 billion, due largely to lower
purchased power costs. Electricity sales still inched up by 2
percent led by sales to commercial customers (+4.6 percent)
followed by sales to industrial customers (+2.1 percent).
Sales to residential customers, however, slid by 0.4 percent.
System loss performance improved YoY to 9.28 percent from
9.65 percent in 2007.

Distribution Automation System (DAS), the nerve center of Meralco’s electric distribution system
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An Empowered Future
Meralco customer service representatives take calls 24x7

Under its Bright and Right TOU Program, Meralco has been
offering time-of-use (TOU) electricity rates to residential
customers with an average usage of 1,000 kilowatt-hours (kwh)
every month. TOU rates are based on the time of day electricity
is produced and on the cost of supplying electricity during that
time.
Meralco’s TOU pricing consists of two time periods: the peak
period and the off-peak period. Peak periods are hours of the
day when the demand for electricity is high. Energy prices during
peak periods are substantially higher than the charges during
off-peak periods. Peak hours are from 8 a.m. to 9 p.m. (13 hours)
from Monday to Saturday and from 6 p.m. to 8 p.m. (2 hours) on
Sundays. All other times are off-peak.
With Bright and Right, residential customers have the opportunity
to reduce their electric bill – particularly on the generation
charge component – by using more electricity at the time of the
day when the rates are low or during off-peak hours.
As such, 439 customers signed up for Bright and Right in 2007
and an additional 1,433 subscribed in 2008 to bring the yearend
total to 1,872. The savings do not come automatically, though.
Bright and Right customers must consciously adopt an energysaving lifestyle. Those who favor energy use during off-peak
hours save the most.

Meralco staff can manage the electric distribution system
efficiently using DAS

With Meralco’s trailblazing Bright and Right TOU Program,
customers are empowered to save, allowing them to control
household power costs for a bright and energy-efficient future.
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Communications
Media
ABS-CBN Broadcasting Corporation (ABS-CBN) stayed true
to its commitment to serve Filipino audiences anywhere in
the world with stronger content and far-reaching delivery
platforms. Through innovative approaches such as rolling
out DZMM Teleradyo on TFCNow and going into tapeless
TV production, ABS-CBN tapped new as well as younger
audiences and reduced both the time and the total cost of
video production and archiving.
The company’s consolidated net income remained strong
at P1.39 billion, 9 percent up from P1.27 billion in 2007.
Consolidated revenues were up by 12 percent YoY to P22.31
billion from P19.94 billion. Despite weak TV adspend, ABSCBN’s airtime revenues were flat, shedding just 1 percent
year-on-year to P13.51 billion from P13.60 billion.

Without SkyCable, direct sales improved by 9 percent to P6.30
billion from P5.79 billion, as ABS-CBN Global’s subscriptions
grew 28 percent YoY in US dollar terms. ABS-CBN Global,
which had an estimated two million viewers as of end-2008,
acquired 5 percent of Multiply, Inc., a social networking site,
in November 2008 with an option to increase its stake to 10
percent in the next three years.
Total consolidated expenses rose by 12 percent to P19.89
billion from P17.68 billion, primarily due to the consolidation
of SkyCable, as cost of sales and services went up by 41
percent. Production costs actually went down by 3 percent
YoY. Core earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization increased by 28 percent to P5.80 billion from
P4.55 billion the previous year. This excludes EBITDA from
non-recurring DirecTV License Fees and one-time accounting
adjustment (PFRS3).
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A Convergent Future
ABS-CBN
Broadcasting
Corporation
(ABS-CBN)
revolutionized Philippine radio by airing its AM station
programming live on cable television with DZMM
TeleRadyo, a convergence of radio and cable intended to
expand reach.
Launched in 2007, TeleRadyo successfully introduced
Filipino-language news and public affairs programs to
young audiences who grew up with very little exposure to
AM radio and in 2008, it was made available to Filipinos
in North America through TFCNow, a video and audio
streaming subscription service on the Internet that provides
access to ABS-CBN content.
As part of traditional media, radio is continually seeking
relevance in the age of new media where news and
information is made available through the Internet, mobile
phones and satellite radio. DZMM led the redefinition
of Philippine radio with TeleRadyo and its FM station
counterpart, DWRR is exploring the hybrid digital (HD)
route of music delivery.

Wowowee, hosted by Willie Revillame, entertains Filipino audiences worldwide

HD will allow DWRR to broadcast on both analog and
digital to expand usage of the same frequency being used
by the FM station. US radio stations are set to migrate to the
digital platform this year while the target for the Philippines
is in 2015. By pioneering in HD, DWRR can revitalize its
service and capture new audiences used to blogging,
joining social networking sites, downloading music videos
and listening to iPods.
These investments allow ABS-CBN to find potential
audiences and convert them to actual audiences by leading
the race toward a convergent future.

SNN, hosted by Boy Abunda and Kris Aquino,
is becoming a nightly habit for showbiz fans

Tambalang Failon at Sanchez, anchored by Ted
Failon and Korina Sanchez, is seen on DZMM
TeleRadyo available on cable in the Philippines
and through TFCNow overseas
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Cable
Sky Cable Corporation (SkyCable) posted a 37 percent
decline in consolidated net profits YoY to P112 million
from P178 million (before Deferred Income Tax Set-up of
P376 million), mainly driven by higher financing costs and
due also to significant investments in deploying its digital
platform which affected its depreciation expenses.
Consolidated EBITDA, however, grew to P911 million from
P874 million the previous year with subscription revenues
relatively flat and total expenses dipping slightly in spite of
weakening of the peso in the latter part of the year which
impacted programming costs.
After introducing digital and prepaid cable TV services
in previous years, SkyCable offered high definition TV or
HDTV in 2008. HDTV offers enhanced image and sound
quality with pictures up to five times sharper than standard
definition TV and viewed in a 16:9 widescreen format, the
same format used in movie theaters. The company brought
the 2008 Ryder Cup in HD, making it the first HDTV program

SkyCable pioneers a bundled digital service that includes cable TV, broadband Internet and international voice calls

in the Philippines. The pay-per-view offering was a live
coverage of the golf tournament in Valhalla Golf Club in
Kentucky, U.S.A.
SkyCable also continued to roll out its digital cable TV
service expanding coverage to the southern Metro Manila
cities of Muntinlupa, Parañaque and Las Piñas. Digital cable
TV services give subscribers onscreen program guides with
“now and next shows” features, and enable them to lock
channels with mature content. Other digital-ready areas
in Metro Manila are in Makati, Manila, Mandaluyong,
Marikina, Pasay, Pasig, Quezon City, and San Juan.
Digital cable TV also allows for over 200 cable channels.  
Subscribers now have a greater range of programming to
choose from on SkyCable’s Platinum tier.
In October 2008, SkyCable also launched the SkyBroadband
service with speeds up to 12mbps, up to four times faster
than comparable DSL offerings.  It also launched SkyVoice
with long distance rates as low as P1.00 per minute.
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A Digital Future

SkyCable headend allows constant system monitoring and instant response

Today’s digital lifestyles have raised consumer demand for
more sophisticated services.
Sky Cable Corporation (SkyCable) has championed digital
encryption in the march toward a digital future. Services like
video-on demand, cable Internet, prepaid cable TV, and high
definition TV can only be presented on a digital platform.
SkyBroadband remained to be the fastest residential
broadband Internet service in the country with up to 12 mbps
download speed, or four times faster than any residential DSL
(digital subscriber line).
SkyCable Prepaid continued to be the service of choice
among the budget-conscious, gaining ground in its chosen
service areas.
SkyCable launched SkyVoice in 2008, the best priced
international direct distance (IDD) calling service exclusive to
SkyCable and SkyBroadband subscribers. SkyVoice uses voice
over Internet protocol to give subscribers IDD rates from 44
centavos to 80 centavos per minute on plans priced at P799,
P1,099, P1,399, and P1,699.
These investments in innovative offerings allow SkyCable to
cater to various scales of communication and entertainment
budgets in its franchise areas, providing customers with
value-added services at par with the best in the world.

Crewmen install Sky Broadband, which
runs  4x faster than residential DSL
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Customer service representatives attend to customers at Bayan Centers

Telecom
Bayan Telecommunications, Inc. (Bayan) had total revenues
of P6.32 billion, 15 percent higher than P5.52 billion the
previous year. Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortization or EBITDA decreased by 75 percent to
P1.10 billion YoY from P4.37 billion.
Revenue growth was driven by an 11 percent gain in voice
services to P3.80 billion from P3.37 billion, with a 123
percent hike for Bayan Wireless Landline (BWL). There were
180,000 BWL subscribers by yearend 2008, a 20 percent
increase on the end-2007 count. Data and Internet business
increased by 15 percent YoY to P2.4 billion from P2.1
billion. Internet revenues, including BayanDSL, swung up by

36 percent to P1.4 billion from P1.0 billion, as residential
broadband subscribers upped by 113 percent to 105,000.
The growth of Bayan Wireless Landline and BayanDSL drove
Bayan’s revenue to rise 15 percent versus industry growth of
4 percent. Bayan significantly expanded its wireless landline
outdoor coverage in 2008, with Bayan Wireless Landline
service currently available in Metro Manila, Naga, Legaspi,
Tacloban, Samar, Davao, Iloilo, Cagayan de Oro, and General
Santos cities.
Bayan was able to meet all debt service requirements under
its Court-approved rehabilitation plan.
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A Customer-driven Future
Bayan Telecommunications, Inc. (Bayan) blazed the telecom
trail with its aggressive marketing of Bayan Wireless Landline
(BWL), quickly becoming the subscribers’ choice.
A consumer survey showed that BWL has the widest
coverage and the lowest cost among players in the local
wireless landline business. The poll, conducted by the
Institute of Transformative Marketing Communications
from March 23 to April 23, 2008, showed that six out of
10 Filipinos who subscribe to a wireless landline service are
Bayan customers.
In 2008, BWL achieved full outdoor coverage in Metro
Manila, after   Bayan forged a code division multiple access
(CDMA) expansion contract with Huawei Technologies Co.
Ltd.  It also improves the stability of Bayan’s network service.
BWL is supported by an all-Internet protocol based CDMA
network—the ideal platform for handling voice calls, as
opposed to most networks that are configured for short
message texting.
Bayan corporate building in Quezon City

These investments in network expansion and stability
affirm Bayan’s commitment to its increasingly satisfied
customer base, providing them with the better, more reliable
communication services that they deserve.
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Rockwell Center in Makati City established Rockwell
Land’s sterling reputation for quality and safety

Property Development
Rockwell Land Corporation
Rockwell Land Corporation revenues were flat at P3.51
billion, up by 1 percent from P3.47 billion the previous
year. This was attributed to a strong growth in residential
condominium sales which accounted for 80 percent of
total revenues. The balance was contributed by retail and
cinema operations.   Net income increased by 27 percent
YoY to P603 million from P476 million. Total assets grew
by 1 percent.
All 1,300 units of Number One Rockwell were fully sold last
year, 28 months after pre-selling started in the first quarter
of 2006. Rockwell Land’s signature development is a twotower, high-rise residential project located at the gateway
of the 15-hectare Rockwell Center in Makati City. It boasts
of over 400 special units, including lofts, bi-levels, tri-levels,
and the pioneering z-lofts or z-shaped units which provide
spectacular views of both sides of the building. Construction
is expected to be completed by 2010.

Meanwhile, The Grove by Rockwell started pre-selling in
2008. Located along the 37-hectare C5 corridor of properties
in Pasig City, The Grove is an affordable development for the
upper-mid market and offers studios, one- or three-bedroom
flats, bi-level loft units, penthouses and garden units.
Construction was well on schedule for the Rockwell Business
Center, located within the sprawling Meralco compound. It
offers 73,000 square meters of premium office space, with
each floor plate spreading 1,900 square meters divisible
into halves or quadrants for maximum flexibility. Minimal
columns allow for generous bay widths, while select floors
offer double height balconies for panoramic views of the
Ortigas Center skyline. The Rockwell Business Center has
world-class medical facilities, hotels, commercial malls,
banks, fire and police stations all within a five-minute drive.
Tower 1 was set for completion in January 2009 and Tower
2 in March 2009. Tower 3 construction will begin as demand
for office space picks up.
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A Green Future
Rockwell Land Corporation (Rockwell Land) once more
transforms the old and gray into something new and green.
The Grove by Rockwell on C5 road in Pasig City is a sprawling
development, highlighting the majesty of greenery in the
middle of the metropolis. It offers city dwellers a sanctuary,
a virtual oasis where lush gardens and beautiful landscapes
prevail.
The Grove by Rockwell brings nature into the lives of the
residents by making gardens natural extensions of every
home. Its yet unmatched 75:25 landscape to building
ratio allows the development to embrace nature, without
sacrificing the comforts of a modern, urban life. From cozy
flats to awe-inspiring bi-levels, The Grove by Rockwell will
feature affordable units with ingenious use of space. Dallasbased architect Dan Wilder, principal of Wilder Architecture,
describes the development as being on “human scale,”
meaning people can relate to it without being intimidated.
As in Number One Rockwell, Z-lofts which were pioneered
by Jun Rodriguez of Pimentel Rodriguez Simbulan and
Partners will also be available at The Grove by Rockwell. In
addition, landscape designer Karl Princic will work with the
development’s architects to deliver the same quality offered
by other Rockwell Land projects.
These investments for a green future demonstrate Rockwell
Land’s unbroken promise of delivering unparalleled luxury in
lifestyle and innovation to its customers. These investments
represent the quality desired by those who deserve the finest
things in life.

The Grove by Rockwell in Pasig City offers Rockwell’s brand of service to a bigger community
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Corporate Governance
Quality Management
In 2003, Benpres was certified against the standards of
the International Organization for Standardization or ISO
9001:2000 for the provision of management services in
Finance and Accounting, Public Relations, and Human
Resources as a holding company. In 2006, Benpres was recertified for the provision of the same management services,
and added Legal Services to the audited processes in its
quality management system since.
As part of its continuing compliance with ISO-certified
quality processes, it adopted the following Quality Policy:
Benpres exists to lead in quality management practices and
adheres to good corporate governance in the conduct of all
business.
We shall innovate and continually pursue improvements in all
our services and processes to achieve business excellence.
In November 2008, the company took the first step toward
Investors in People (IiP) certification via a diagnostic
assessment conducted by IiP Philippines.   The IiP is a
framework for delivering business improvement through
people. The IiP initiative is among the tools adopted to
concretize the company’s commitment to continuous

improvement and is expected to elevate its people
management practices to global standards.

Recognition
Benpres was honored as “One of the Best in Corporate
Governance, Philippines” at The Asset Asian Awards in
Hong Kong in January 2009. The Asset found corporate
governance practices in Benpres at par with the best
Philippine companies. The Asset Corporate Governance
Awards 2008 covered ten regions, resulting in 54 awardees:
China (11), Hong Kong (8), Taiwan (5), Thailand (5), South
Korea (3), Malaysia (3), Philippines (8), India (3), Indonesia
(4), and Singapore (4).
Benpres received a Philippine Quill Award of Merit in 2008
for its group-wide publication, LopezLink. It received an
Anvil Award of Merit and a Philippine Quill Award of Merit
for the same publication in 2007, as well as an Anvil Award
of Excellence and a Gold Quill Award of Merit in 2006. The
Anvil and Quill Awards represent excellence in the practice
of corporate communications, one of the management
services provided by Benpres, as recognized by the Public
Relations Society of the Philippines and the International
Association of Business Communicators, respectively.
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Corporate Governance

Nomination and Election Committee

The board of directors of Benpres is composed of seven
members, two of whom are independent directors.

The Nomination and Election Committee pre-screens and
shortlists all candidates nominated to become a member of
the board of directors. Two members of the committee are
independent Board directors. The following guidelines are
used in determining the eligibility of nominees: the nature of
the business of the corporations in which he is a director; age
of the director; number of directorships/active memberships
and officerships in other corporations or organizations; and
possible conflict of interest.

In 2002, the board of directors of Benpres adopted
the company’s Manual of Corporate Governance to
institutionalize corporate governance principles.
The Board, management, employees, and shareholders
believe that good corporate governance is a necessary
component of sound strategic business management and
improves the economic and commercial prosperity of the
corporation and its stockholders.
A copy of Benpres’ Manual of Corporate Governance was
submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commission on
September 2, 2002. It also now forms part of the quality
management system of Benpres as a reference and guide
(RM-BHC-04-01) for the conduct of all business.

Members
Oscar M. Lopez
Manuel M. Lopez
Eugenio Lopez III
Angel S. Ong
Washington Z. SyCip
Vicente T. Paterno
Felipe B. Alfonso

No amendments to the Manual were adopted in 2008.

Board Meetings
Regular board meetings are held at least once a month.  In
2008, the Board had 12 meetings.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee checks all financial reports against its
compliance with both the internal financial management
handbook and pertinent accounting standards, including
regulatory requirements. It performs oversight financial
management functions specifically in the areas of managing
credit, market, liquidity, operational, legal and other risks of
the Corporation, and crisis management. It consists of three
Board members, two of whom are independent directors.
The internal audit group of affiliate First Philippine Holdings
Corporation serves as internal auditor of Benpres. The report
of the Audit Committee for the year ended 2008 is on page
37.
Members
Vicente T. Paterno – Chairman
Manuel M. Lopez
Washington Z. SyCip

Compensation and
Remuneration Committee
The Compensation Committee has established a formal and
transparent procedure for developing a policy on executive
remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages of
corporate officers and directors. It has three members, one
of whom is an independent director.
Members
Oscar M. Lopez
Angel S. Ong
Vicente T. Paterno

Corporate Code of Conduct
In 2006, the Board approved a Corporate Code of Conduct
to govern and guide the actions of all its representatives
in dealing with its publics: shareholders, customers,
joint venture partners, suppliers and service providers,
government, and creditors. The Code covers all directors,
employees, consultants, product and service providers and
all persons who act for and in behalf of Benpres Holdings
Corporation.
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Risk Management
The executive officers and staff members of Benpres
Holdings Corporation have been implementing a corporate
risk management program since 2002, in line with an
enterprise-wide risk management system championed by
chairman Oscar M. Lopez.
Risks that may hinder the achievement of corporate goals
and objectives are identified and reviewed annually to ensure
mitigation measures are in place to adequately respond to
and manage such risks.

Top Risks
In 2008, the following risks were assessed to be most
significant and/or most likely and appropriate mitigation
strategies were prepared and/or implemented to address
them:

families. Participation and level of achievement in the various
initiatives are included in the performance management
system of business and organization heads to ensure clear
accountability for results.

Capital Availability or Cash Flow
(Liquidity) Risk
This refers to the company’s exposure to the risk of lower
returns on its investments or the necessity to borrow due
to shortfalls in cash or expected cash flows, or variances in
their timing. The restructuring plan is based on cash flows
from dividends and asset sales and these may not come in
as expected.
Benpres sold its stake in Professional Services, Inc.
(The Medical City) in April 2008 and in First Philippine
Infrastructure, Inc. in November 2008. It continues to look
for opportunities to divest non-core assets, as well as to buy
back debt at no more than 60% of face value.

Political Risk
This refers to the threat to Benpres’ control of certain assets
in the power business. Adverse regulatory action toward
associated companies is also expected.
To mitigate this risk, Benpres signed a voting trust agreement
in favor of parent Lopez, Inc. with respect to Benpres-held
shares of First Philippine Holdings Corporation. The company
is also fully cooperating with associated companies to gain
customer support through service excellence. Delighted
customers are the most credible advocates in the face of
political pressure or regulatory lapses.

Leadership/Governance Risk
As a holding company, Benpres is expected to set directions
and exercise a strong parenting role, despite limited authority
or control over publicly listed operating units.
Benpres’ role as a parent company was defined by making
it the seat of corporate initiatives, a set of enterprise-wide
corporate services provided to ensure good corporate
governance beyond what is required by rules and regulations.
These services include risk management, comptrollership,
human resources organization and development, corporate
social responsibility, corporate communications, business
excellence and lifelong wellness for employees and their

Legal (Shareholder) Risk
Since beginning the process of debt restructuring in June
2002, Benpres shareholders have faced the risk of losing
control over the company’s financial rehabilitation should
creditors file for court-assisted corporate rehabilitation.
As the success of the restructuring process will be based
on consensual agreement, Benpres management keeps in
contact with creditors. In addition, Benpres continued to pay
all its creditors semi-annual goodwill interest payments in
2008, a commitment unbroken since 2002. Also by end2008, Benpres was able to buy back approximately US$65
million worth of principal debt.

Customer (Stakeholder) Wants Risk
Requirements of Benpres stakeholders vary and Benpres
may be unable to meet all requirements in a timely manner.
Regulators require compliance with rules and regulations;
creditors require the settlement of all obligations under
restructuring; shareholders require a fair return on their
investment; associated companies require financial and other
forms of support; senior management requires current and
accurate information on group-wide operations; employees
require compensation and benefits.
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To mitigate this risk, Benpres continued to work with
creditors for the completion of a consensual financial
restructuring. Completing the process will pave the way
to address the needs of shareholders, employees, and
associated companies. Regulatory and senior management
needs were adequately served by Benpres officers and staff
members in 2008.

Strategic Information/Valuation Risk
This refers to the lack of relevant and reliable valuation
information that may preclude prospective investors from
making informed assessments of the value of the firm or any
of its significant segments in a strategic context.
To manage this, the company is in constant communication
with associated companies to obtain updated financial
models of their operations, as well as how such relate to the
company. In addition, key Benpres officers are either elected
as member of the board in associated companies or sit in as
observer in management committee or board meetings of
associated companies to ensure the parent company is kept
abreast of the latest developments in said companies.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk and
Foreign Currency Revaluation Risk
Volatility in foreign currency exchange rates may expose
Benpres to economic and accounting losses related to
direct and indirect obligations. Extraordinary fluctuations
in foreign currency exchange rates may affect reported
operational profits and deficit, potentially reducing the
ability of associated companies to declare dividends.
The risk was reduced by the debt buyback undertaken in
2007 and 2008, which directly reduced the company’s
foreign currency debt by US$65 million. It is also monitoring
the mitigation plans of associated companies in relation to
foreign currency revaluation risk.

Other Risks
In 2008, the following risks mandated for assessment by
IFRS (International Financial Reporting Standards) were
deemed to be less significant and/or less likely:

Interest Rate Risk
Fluctuations in interest rates may affect the company’s capital
availability or cash flow risk as they expose the company to
variable cash requirements in relation to debt with floating
interest rates. However, this was considered less significant
in 2008 given the low interest environment.

Credit Risk
Benpres has advances in associated companies but these
comprise less than 5% of assets. Trade receivables refer
to accounts under ABS-CBN, which are managed at the
ABS-CBN level. Benpres does not offer credit terms for the
provision of services as a holding company.

Capital Management
Under the proposed debt restructuring plan, cash is
reserved for debt service and working capital requirements.
The company has no material commitments for capital
expenditures and has not made any major investments
since 2002. Proceeds of asset sales are placed in short-term
financial instruments under the company’s ISO-certified
Money Market Operations procedure.

Audit Committee Statement on
External Auditors
Benpres paid or accrued the following fees, including value
added tax and out of pocket expenses, to its external auditors
in the past three years:

2008
2007
2006

Audit & Audit-related fees
P1,158,640
    P731,282
    P805,531

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. was engaged by Benpres solely to
audit its annual financial statements. It was not engaged to
provide any other (non-audit) services for Benpres in 2006,
2007 and 2008.
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Students plant a tree

Corporate Social Responsibility
Investing in the Future
Children cannot excel in school if they are abused or
hungry. They are abused or hungry because their parents
lack the skills necessary to raise a family. BayaniJuan places
under its umbrella time-tested interventions of ABS-CBN
Foundation, Inc. (AFI), to achieve maximum impact in target
communities.
Thousands of school-aged children have benefited from a
host of AFI-facilitated investments in nutrition and health,
children rescue and education, and environmentally
conscious livelihood for families. In 2008, all these resources
for children were harnessed to maximize the benefits for
each community served through BayaniJuan, an ABS-CBN
initiative that combines AFI program offerings such as
Bantay Bata, Bantay Kalikasan, Bantay Kalusugan, Sagip
Kapamilya, eMedia, and Bayan Foundation.
BayaniJuan aims to eradicate malnutrition through feeding
programs under Bantay Kalusugan, upgrade child education

through eMedia, and facilitate values-based parent
education and livelihood through Bayan Foundation. These
same programs are implemented simultaneously in disaster
areas served by Sagip Kapamilya and in communities with
high incidences of child abuse based on calls processed by
Bantay Bata, leading to a sustained, long-term approach to
grass-roots development that is expected to lead to happier,
healthier children better-equipped to meet the challenges
of tomorrow.
The child, the future of our nation, has always been the
focus of socially responsible projects supported by the Lopez
Group of companies. Investments for the improvement of
the quality of Filipino children’s lives are meant to reap
benefits for the country, as well as for the Lopez Group
because its businesses are linked to the performance of the
overall economy, which is anchored on the knowledge and
skills of its workforce.
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The children, the country’s future workforce, will inherit
the land their elders leave them. For this reason, the Lopez
Group favors sustainable development by also supporting
environmental conservation and biodiversity. Through the
work of AFI’s Bantay Kalikasan, First Philippine Conservation,
Inc., and Energy Development Corporation (EDC), the Lopez
Group aims to leave a green legacy for the sustenance of
future generations.
EDC’s Binhi, in particular, is a 10-year nationwide
reforestation program that will, through four-program
components: establish a tree park per province and in
selected schools using prime endangered species; establish
protection forests to avoid the decline of natural habitats
and ecosystems; hasten re-vegetation of open and denuded
forest lands; and provide recreation for visitors and local
communities.

Sponsors give support
to community recycling
efforts for a cleaner
environment

By investing in children and the environment, the Lopez
Group hopes to secure the nation’s future—progressive
and truly free.

Recycling is done at materials
recovery facilities in clean river
zones that dot the Pasig River

Cooking classes provide livelihood opportunities for parents
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Board of Directors

Oscar M. Lopez
Chairman
Oscar M. Lopez (aged 79) has chaired
the company’s board since inception
and served as president from 1999
until 2004. He has been chief executive
officer of Benpres since 1999. He
received a Bachelor of Arts degree
from Harvard College and a Masters
degree in Public Administration from
Harvard University. He is chairman
and chief executive officer of FPHC
(since 1986), chairman and president
of Lopez, Inc. (since 1999) and
chairman of among others, Bayan
and SkyCable. He is vice chairman
of the board of Rockwell Land and
is a director of ABS-CBN. He owns
8,611,911 Benpres shares.

Manuel M. Lopez

Eugenio Lopez III

Manuel M. Lopez (aged 66) has
been a director of the company since
inception, and vice chairman since
2001. He is a holder of a Bachelor
of Science degree in Business
Administration
and
attended
the Program for Management
Development at the Harvard
Business School. He is the chairman
of Meralco and Rockwell Land, and
is a director of among others, FPHC
and Lopez, Inc. He was president of
Meralco from 1986 to June 2001. He
owns 7,090,460 Benpres shares.

Eugenio Lopez III (aged 56) has been
director and treasurer of the company
since inception. He received a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Political Science
from Bowdoin College and a Masters
degree in Business Administration
from the Harvard Business School.
He has been chairman and chief
executive officer of ABS-CBN since
1997, and is president and director
of SkyCable, and vice chairman of the
board of Bayan, among others. He
was president of ABS-CBN from 1993
to 1997. He owns 16,829 Benpres
shares.
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Angel S. Ong

Felipe B. Alfonso

Washington Z. SyCip

Vicente T. Paterno

Angel S. Ong (aged 59) was elected
director and president and chief
operating officer in 2004. He was
the Company’s EVP-chief financial
officer from 2001 to 2004 and vice
president for finance from 19982000. He received his Bachelor of
Science in Commerce degree from
the Philippine College of Commerce
and a Masters degree in Business
Administration from the University
of the Philippines. He is a director of
ABS-CBN, among others. He owns 1
Benpres share.

Felipe B. Alfonso (aged 71) has been a
director of the company since 1996. He has
been EVP–Human Resource Development
since January 2001. He received a Bachelor
of Laws degree from the Ateneo de Manila
University and a Masters degree in Business
Administration from New York University.
He has been co-vice chairman of the
board of trustees of the Asian Institute of
Management (AIM) since September 1999.
He was AIM president from June 1990 to
1999. He owns 1 Benpres share.

(Independent)
Washington Z. SyCip (aged 86) has been
a director of the company since 1996. He
is an independent director. He received a
Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce
from the University of Sto. Tomas and a
Master of Science degree in Commerce from
Columbia University. He is chairman of the
board of trustees and board of governors
of the Asian Institute of Management, and
Honorary Chairman of Euro-Asia Centre,
INSEAD of France. He is also a member of
the Board of Overseers of the Columbia
University Graduate School of Business, and
a board member of the Joseph H. Louder
Institute of Management and International
Studies, University of Pennsylvania. He owns
1 Benpres share.

(Independent)
Vicente T. Paterno (aged 82) has been a
director of the company since 2004. He is an
independent director. He received a Bachelor
of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering
from the University of the Philippines and a
Masters degree in Business Administration
(with distinction) from Harvard University.
He is the founding chairman of Philippine
Seven Corporation and chairman of PhilSeven Holdings Corporation.   He owns 1
Benpres share.

Oscar M. Lopez

Eugenio L. Lopez III

Enrique I. Quiason

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Treasurer

Corporate Secretary

Manuel M. Lopez

Salvador G. Tirona

Maria Amina O. Amado

Vice Chairman

Chief Finance Officer

Compliance Officer

Angel S. Ong

Cielito R. A. Diokno

President and Chief Operating Officer

Vice-President, Human Resources

Officers
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Management Discussion
and Analysis of Results of Operations
and Financial Condition
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with
the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company that
is incorporated to this Annual Report by reference. Such
Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with Philippine GAAP.

Results of Operations of Benpres and
its Subsidiaries for the year ended
December 31, 2008 compared with
December 31, 2007

Key Performance Indicators

Benpres

As a holding company, Benpres Holdings Corporation
(Benpres) receives revenues from asset sales and dividends
from investees. Hence, the key performance indicator with the
most direct impact on Benpres is the net income of investees.
In 2008, the financial performance of investees was within
expectations. It received a total of P945 million in dividends
from investees ABS-CBN, First Philippine Infrastructure
Development
Corporation
(FPIDC)/First
Philippine
Infrastructure, Inc. (FPII), and Rockwell Land. It did not sell
any Digitel shares, which are part of its portfolio, in 2008.

Benpres registered consolidated revenues of P22.31 billion
in 2008, 12 percent better than P19.89 billion in 2007. Net
income, however, decreased by 41 percent to P3.51 billion
from P5.93 billion the previous year. Net income attributable
to the equity holders of the Parent amounted to P2.93 billion
(-45 percent) compared to P5.37 billion in 2007.
Airtime (-1 percent), Sales and services (+56 percent), Sale
of goods (+17 percent) and License fees (-100 percent)
represent ABS-CBN Broadcasting Corporation (ABS-CBN)
revenues while General and administrative expenses (+24
percent), Cost of sales and services (+52 percent), Production
costs (-3 percent), and Agency commissions, incentives and
co-producers’ share (-2 percent) reflect primarily ABS-CBN
accounts.
Foreign exchange losses amounted to P2.21 billion, versus
the previous year’s foreign exchange gains of P3.24 billion.
The peso depreciated against the dollar in 2008, closing the
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year at P47.52, from P41.28 at the end of 2007 and P49.03
at the end of 2006.
Equity in net earnings of associates plunged by 77 percent
to P650 million from 2007’s P2.84 billion, as First Philippine
Holdings Corporation (First Holdings)  posted a 73 percent
decline in profits on the back of high finance costs related
to its higher debt levels during the year, as well as foreign
exchange losses.
Gain on sale of investment in an associate (+100 percent)
of P3.33 billion represents the sale of the company’s 49
percent stake in FPIDC.
Generally low interest rates paid on debt in 2008 accounted
for the decrease in Finance costs (-4 percent), and increase
in interest income (+11 percent).

Associates
ABS-CBN’s net income remained strong at P1.39 billion,
9 percent up from P1.27 billion in 2007. Consolidated
revenues were up by 12 percent YoY to P22.31 billion from
P19.94 billion. Despite weak TV adspend, ABS-CBN’s airtime
revenues were flat, shedding just 1 percent year-on-year to
P13.51 billion from P13.60 billion.
First Philippine Holdings Corporation (First Holdings)
registered consolidated revenues of P78.57 billion in
2008. This is 43 percent higher than the P55.00 billion
in consolidated revenues the previous year. Net income
attributable to equity holders of the Parent was at P1.19
billion, lower by 73 percent from P4.48 billion in 2007.
Bayan Telecommunications, Inc. (Bayan) had total revenues
of P6.32 billion, 15 percent higher than P5.52 billion the
previous year. Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation

and amortization or EBITDA decreased by 75 percent to
P1.10 billion YoY from P4.37 billion. Revenue growth was
driven by an 11 percent gain in voice services to P3.8
billion from P3.37 billion, with a 123 percent hike for Bayan
Wireless Landline.
Sky Cable Corporation (SkyCable) posted a 37 percent
decline in consolidated net profits YoY to P112 million from
P178 million (before Deferred Income Tax Set-up of P376
million), mainly driven by higher financing costs and due also
to significant investments in deploying its digital platform
which affected its depreciation expenses. Consolidated
EBITDA, however, grew to P911 million from P874 million.
Rockwell Land Corporation revenues were flat at P3.51
billion, up by 1 percent from P3.47 billion the previous
year. This was attributed to a strong growth in residential
condominium sales which accounted for 80 percent of total
revenues. The balance was contributed by retail and cinema
operations.  Net income increased by 27 percent YoY to P603
million from P476 million. Total assets grew by 1 percent.

Liquidity and Capital Resources of
Benpres (Consolidated) for the year
ended December 31, 2008 compared
with December 31, 2007
As of December 31, 2008, the company’s Total assets stood
at P55.68 billion, 15 percent higher than P48.35 billion
as of end-2007. Current assets increased by 57 percent
to P17.79 billion from P11.36 billion, as Cash and cash
equivalents rose by 43 percent with ABS-CBN incurring
new debt. Notes receivables of P5.31 billion accounts for
Benpres’ investment in Red Vulcan papers. Red Vulcan holds
shares in Energy Development Corporation on behalf of First
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Holdings associate First Gen. Trade and other receivables (+2
percent), Program rights and other intangible assets (+43
percent) and Other current assets (-29 percent) represent
ABS-CBN assets consolidated into Benpres.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings increased by 27
percent, representing unrealized foreign exchange losses, as
the principal debt was revalued at a less favorable pesodollar rate as of end-2008.

Noncurrent assets increased by 2 percent to P37.89 billion
from P36.99 billion, with most items representing ABS-CBN
accounts as follows: Long-term receivables (-100 percent);
Property and equipment (+53 percent); Goodwill (17x);
Program rights and other intangibles (+30 percent); Deferred
tax assets (3x); and Other noncurrent assets (+58 percent).
Investments in and advances to associates-net decreased by
25 percent to P14.27 billion from P18.98 billion with the
sale of Benpres’ stakes in Professional Services, Inc. (The
Medical City) and FPIDC during the year.

Total stockholders’ equity at yearend increased by 3 percent
to P16.62 billion from P16.15 billion. Unrealized gain on fair
value adjustments of available-for-sale (AFS) investments
fell by 65 percent with the decline in the market value of
Digitel stock to P0.96 per share as of end-2008 from P1.84
per share as of end-2007. Share in equity adjustment from
translation (+61 percent) and Share in unrealized gain on fair
value of AFS investments (-70 percent) represent accounts
of associates First Holdings (for First Gen Corporation) and
ABS-CBN, respectively, consolidated into Benpres.

Trade and other payables added 15 percent to P12.48
billion. Of this amount, P5.86 billion accounts for the accrual
of interest on Benpres’ obligations based on contracted rates
on principal debt, a 29 percent increase from P4.52 billion
in 2007. The rest of the item or P6.62 billion represents
ABS-CBN trade and other payables. Also ABS-CBN accounts
are the following items: Income tax payable (9x); Interestbearing loans and borrowings-net of current portion (+54
percent); Accrued pension obligation (+98 percent); Deferred
tax liabilities (+100 percent); and Other noncurrent liabilities
(4x).

Retained earnings grew by 4.6x to P3.75 billion from P819
million, given the net income posted in 2008.
In 2008, Benpres voluntarily made payments on its direct
and contingent obligations that are covered in its proposed
Balance Sheet Management Plan (BSMP), pending
agreement with its creditors (see Note 1b of the Consolidated
Financial Statements, attached and incorporated herein by
reference).

BENPRES AR 2008

Report of the Audit Committee
For the year ended 31 December 2008

To Our Stockholders:
The purpose of the Audit Committee (Committee) is to represent and assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities by reviewing the financial information which will be provided to the shareholders and others, the system of
internal controls which management and the Board of Directors have established, the performance and selection of independent
accountants, and the Company’s audit and financial reporting and risk management processes. The Committee operates under a
written Audit Committee Charter.
As of December 31, 2008, the Committee has three members comprising of two independent directors and one executive director.
It is chaired by an independent director.
In accordance with its charter, the Committee reviewed and approved the independent auditor’s plan for the audit of Benpres’
2008 financial statements, including the critical issues related to the audit of the financial statements as presented by the audit
engagement partner.
The Committee reviewed the Company’s annual audited financial statements and related disclosures, including (a) the quality as
well as acceptability of the accounting principles applied in the financial statements and (b) new accounting standards, significant
estimates, judgments, uncertainties and accounting policies relating to significant financial statement items and discussed them
with the independent auditors and with management, which has the primary responsibility for the financial statements. The
Company’s independent auditor is responsible for expressing an opinion on the conformity of the company’s audited financial
statements with the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.
This report is respectfully submitted on behalf of the Committee of the Board.

Vicente T. Paterno
Chairman, Audit Committee
14 April  2009
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Statement of Management’s Responsibility
for Financial Statements
The management of Benpres Holdings Corporation is responsible for all information and representations contained in the
consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for each of the  three years ended December 31, 2008.
The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and reflect amounts that
are based on the best estimates and informed judgment of management with appropriate consideration to materiality.
In this regard, management maintains a system of accounting and reporting which provides for the necessary internal controls
to ensure that transactions are properly authorized and recorded, assets are safeguarded against unauthorized use or disposition
and liabilities are recognized. The management likewise discloses to the company’s audit committee and to its external auditors:
(i) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls that could adversely affect its ability to record, process,
and report financial data; (ii) material weaknesses in the internal controls; and (iii) any fraud that involves management or other
employees who exercise significant roles in internal controls.
The Board of Directors reviews the consolidated financial statements before such statements are approved and submitted to the
stockholders of the Company. SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, have examined
the consolidated financial statements of the Company in acccordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and have
expressed their opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such examination, in their report to the Board of
Directors and Stockholders.

Oscar M. Lopez
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Salvador G. Tirona
Chief Finance Officer
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SyCip Gorres Velayo & C o.
6760 Ayala Av enue
1226 Makati City
Philippines
Phone: (632) 891 0307
Fax:
(632) 819 0872
www.sgv.c om.ph
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001
SEC Acc reditation No. 0012-FR-1

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Benpres Holdings Corporation
4th Floor, Benpres Building
Meralco Avenue, Pasig City
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Benpres Holdings Corporation and
Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2008 and 2007, and
the consolidated statements of income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated
statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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-2Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Benpres Holdings Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008 and
2007, and their financial performance and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2008 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the conditions discussed in Note 1 to
consolidated financial statements that indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
doubt about the Company’s ability to continue in the normal course of its business. The ability of the
Company to continue operating in the normal course of business depends on the success of its Balance
Sheet Management Plan and related Term Sheet circulated to its creditors as fully discussed in Note 1
to consolidated financial statements.
SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Haydee M. Reyes
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 83522
SEC Accreditation No. 0663-A
Tax Identification No. 102-095-265
PTR No. 1566461, January 5, 2009, Makati City
April 14, 2009
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BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in Millions)

2008

December 31

2007

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6)
Notes receivable (Note 7)
Trade and other receivables - net (Notes 8 and 23)
Program rights and other intangible assets - current (Note 14)
Other current assets - net (Notes 9 and 31)
Total Current Assets

P
=4,222
5,310
5,105
1,440
1,714
17,791

=2,962
P
–
4,984
1,007
2,411
11,364

Noncurrent Assets
Long-term receivables from related parties - net
(Notes 2, 10, 18 and 23)
Investments in and advances to associates - net (Notes 1, 2, 11 and 23)
Property and equipment - net (Notes 2, 12 and 18)
Goodwill (Notes 2 and 13)
Program rights and other intangible assets - noncurrent (Note 14)
Deferred tax assets (Note 29)
Other noncurrent assets - net (Notes 16, 20 and 23)
Total Noncurrent Assets

–
14,267
15,169
2,144
2,171
603
3,532
37,886

3,893
18,979
9,905
124
1,664
184
2,236
36,985

P
=55,677

=48,349
P

P
=12,482
490

=10,826
P
54

9,774

8,770

6,905
29,651

7,107
26,757

7,594
792
633
384
9,403
39,054

4,940
401
–
97
5,438
32,195

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables (Notes 17, 18 and 23)
Income tax payable
Current portion of interest-bearing loans and borrowings
(Notes 1, 18 and 23)
Estimated liabilities from guarantees and commitments
(Notes 1, 11 and 23)
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - net of current portion
(Notes 1, 18 and 23)
Accrued pension obligation (Note 20)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 29)
Other noncurrent liabilities (Notes 17 and 19)
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
(Forward)

*SGVMC211642*
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2008

December 31

2007

EQUITY
Equity attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Capital stock (Note 21)
Additional paid-in capital
Unrealized gain on fair value adjustments of available-for-sale (AFS)
investments (Notes 9 and 16)
Share in equity adjustment from translation (Note 11)
Share in unrealized gain on fair value adjustments
of AFS investments (Note 11)
Retained earnings
Minority Interests (Note 21)
Total Equity

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

P
=4,581
6,766

=4,581
P
6,766

285
(5,430)

821
(3,372)

22
3,746
9,970

74
819
9,689

6,653
16,623

6,465
16,154

P
=55,677

=48,349
P
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BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share Amounts)

2008
REVENUE
Airtime
Sales and services
Sale of goods
License fees (Note 32)
EXPENSES (INCOME)
General and administrative expenses
(Notes 8, 12, 20, 23, 24, 28 and 32)
Production costs (Notes 12, 14, 20, 23, 25 and 32)
Cost of sales and services (Notes 12, 14, 20, 23, 26 and 32)
Agency commissions, incentives and co-producers’
share (Note 27)
Gain on sale of investments (Notes 9, 11 and 16)
Finance costs (Notes 18, 28 and 31)
Equity in net earnings of associates (Note 11)
Interest income (Notes 6, 10 and 28)
Foreign exchange losses/gains and others - net
(Notes 9, 10, 11, 16, 18, 23, 28 and 32)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 29)
Current
Deferred
NET INCOME
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company
Minority interests
Earnings per Share attributable to Equity Holders
of the Parent Company (Note 22)
Basic
Diluted

Years Ended December 31
2007
2006

P
=13,511
8,283
513
–
22,307

=13,605
P
5,298
440
548
19,891

P
=10,663
4,711
529
1,117
17,020

7,097
6,291
4,225

5,736
6,493
2,786

5,341
5,713
2,226

2,656
(3,337)
1,713
(650)
(195)

2,701
(79)
1,793
(2,841)
(175)

2,284
(119)
2,197
(4,672)
(198)

(34)
17,766

(3,448)
12,966

(1,100)
11,672

4,541

6,925

5,348

972
63
1,035

957
40
997

571
75
646

P
=3,506

=5,928
P

P
=4,702

P
=2,927
579
P
=3,506

=5,365
P
563
=5,928
P

P
=4,297
405
P
=4,702

=1.171
P
1.170

P
=0.9379
0.9374

P
=0.6388
0.6386

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

*SGVMC211642*

43

At December 31, 2007
Equity adjustment from translation
during the year
Unrealized loss on fair value
adjustments of AFS
investments
Realized loss on fair value
adjustments of AFS investment
(Note 11)
Total income and expense for the
year directly recognized in
equity
Net income for the year
Total income and expense
for the year
Dividends declared by a subsidiary
Increase in minority interests
(Note 21)
Acquisition of treasury shares
of a subsidiary
At December 31, 2008
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
P
=6,766

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
P
=4,581

Capital Stock
(Note 21)
P
=4,581

–
P
=285

–

(536)
–

(536)
–

–

(536)

–

–
(P
=5,430)

–

(2,058)
–

(2,058)
–

–

–

(2,058)

–
P
=22

–

(52)
–

(52)
–

(49)

(3)

–

–
P
=9,970

–

281
–

(2,646)
2,927

(49)

(539)

(2,058)

Total
P
=9,689

(52)
P
=6,653

(101)

616
(275)

37
579

–

(5)

42

P
=6,465

Minority
Interests
(Note 21)

(52)
P
=16,623

(101)

897
(275)

(2,609)
3,506

(49)

(544)

(2,016)

P
=16,154

Total Equity
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–
P
=3,746

–

2,927
–

–
2,927

–

–

–

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Share in
Unrealized
Unrealized
Gain on
Gain on
Fair Value
Share
in Equity
Fair Value
Adjustments
Adjustment
Adjustments
of Availableof AFS
from
Additional for-Sale (AFS)
Retained
Translation
Paid-in
Investments
Investments
(Note 11)
(Note 11)
Earnings
Capital (Notes 9 and 16)
P
=6,766
P
=821
(P
=3,372)
P
=74
P
=819

FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
(Amounts in Millions)

BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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At December 31, 2006
Equity adjustment from translation
during the year
Unrealized loss on fair value
adjustment of AFS investments
Realized loss on fair value
adjustment of AFS investment
Total expense for the year directly
recognized in equity
Net income for the year
Total income and expense
for the year
Dividends declared by a subsidiary
Acquisition of treasury shares
of a subsidiary
Decrease in minority interests
(Note 21)
At December 31, 2007, as restated
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
=
P6,766

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
P
=4,581

Capital Stock
(Note 21)
P
=4,581

–
=
P821

–

(136)
–

(136)
–

(76)

(60)

–

–
(P
=3,372)

–

(2,883)
–

(2,883)
–

–

–

(2,883)

–
P
=74

–

–
–

–
–

–

–

–

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Share in
Unrealized
Unrealized
Gain on
Gain on
Share
Fair Value
in Equity
Fair Value
Adjustments
Adjustment
Adjustments
of Availableof AFS
from
Additional for-Sale (AFS)
Investments
Translation
Investments
Paid-in
(Note 11)
Capital (Notes 9 and 16)
(Note 11)
=
P6,766
=
P957
(P
=489)
P
=74

-2-

–
=
P9,689

–

2,346
–

(3,019)
5,365

(76)

(60)

(2,883)

Total
P
=7,343

(21)
=
P6,465

(127)

521
(149)

(42)
563

–

6

(48)

=
P6,241

(21)
=
P16,154

(127)

2,867
(149)

(3,061)
5,928

(76)

(54)

(2,931)

=
P13,584

Total Equity
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–
=
P819

–

5,365
–

–
5,365

–

–

–

Retained
Earnings
(Deficit)
(P
=4,546)

Minority
Interests
(Note 21)
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–
–
–
–
–
–
–
=
P6,766

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
P
=4,581

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

At December 31, 2005
Equity adjustment from translation
during the year
Unrealized gain on fair value
adjustment of AFS investments
Realized loss on fair value
adjustment of AFS investments
Total income and expense for the
year directly recognized in
equity
Net income for the year
Total income and expense
for the year
Issuance of treasury shares
of a subsidiary
At December 31, 2006

Capital Stock
(Note 21)
P
=4,581

–
=
P957

635

635
–

(60)

695

–

–
(P
=489)

(722)

(722)
–

–

–

(722)

–
=
P74

–

–
–

–

–

–

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Share in
Unrealized
Unrealized
Gain on
Gain on
Share
Fair Value
in Equity
Fair Value
Adjustments
Adjustment
Adjustments
of Availableof AFS
from
Additional for-Sale (AFS)
Investments
Translation
Investments
Paid-in
(Note 11)
Capital (Notes 9 and 16)
(Note 11)
=
P6,766
=
P322
=
P233
=
P74

-3-

–
P
=7,343

4,210

(87)
4,297

(60)

695

(722)

Total
P
=3,133

22
=
P6,241

273

(132)
405

–

–

(132)

=
P5,946

22
=
P13,584

4,483

(219)
4,702

(60)

695

(854)

=
P9,079

Total Equity
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–
(P
=4,546)

4,297

–
4,297

–

–

–

Deficit
(P
=8,843)

Minority
Interests
(Note 21)
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BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in Millions)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax
Adjustments for:
Gain on sale of investments (Notes 9 and 11)
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 12 and 14)
Net unrealized foreign exchange losses (gains)
Finance costs (Note 28)
Reversal of estimated liabilities from guarantees
and commitments (Note 28)
Equity in net earnings of associates (Note 11)
Gain on extinguishment and acquisition of debt (Note
28)
Provisions for:
Pension expense (Note 20)
Doubtful accounts (Note 24)
Interest income (Note 28)
Reversal of allowance (provision) for impairment
losses on investments and advances to related
parties - net (Note 28)
Loss on a dilution of equity interest (Note 28)
Others
Operating income before working capital changes
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in:
Trade and other receivables
Other current assets
Decrease in trade and other payables
Net cash generated from operations
Payments of:
Income taxes
Pension (Note 20)
Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of:
Investment in an associate (Note 11)
Available-for-sale investments
Property and equipment
Additions to:
Notes receivable (Note 7)
Property and equipment (Notes 12 and 34)
Intangible assets (Notes 14 and 34)
Investments and advances
Acquisitions of minority interests (Note 2)
Cash acquired from business combination (Note 2)
Decrease (increase) in other noncurrent assets
Dividends and interest received from investees
Interest received
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

(Forward)

2008

Years Ended December 31
2007
2006

P
=4,541

=6,925
P

(3,337)
3,269
2,428
1,713

(79)
2,498
(3,360)
1,793

(119)
2,283
(814)
2,197

(1,082)
(650)

–
(2,841)

–
(4,672)

(498)

(194)

287
195
(195)

178
102
(175)

75
94
(198)

(22)
10
213
6,872

(241)
269
593
5,468

572
(65)
(141)
4,560

115
(548)
(1,099)
5,340

(176)
(324)
(1,237)
3,731

245
(483)
(545)
3,777

(1,000)
(45)
4,295

(359)
–
3,372

(258)
–
3,519

5,861
600
78

–
104
33

–
184
4

(5,310)
(2,142)
(954)
–
(1,354)
837
(636)
577
127
(2,316)

–
(708)
(1,073)
(425)
(27)
–
(974)
1,064
175
(1,831)

P
=5,348

–

–
(500)
(591)
(145)
–
–
49
958
82
41
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-2Years Ended December 31
2007
2006
2008
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Availments of interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Payments of:
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Finance costs
Estimated liabilities from guarantees
and commitments
Decrease in:
Other noncurrent liabilities
Minority interests
Payments for the termination of cross currency swaps
and interest rate swaps (Note 31)
Net cash used in financing activities
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

P
=2,756

=3,295
P

P
=474

(1,243)
(1,141)

(2,569)
(748)

(2,154)
(1,079)

(7)

(1,203)

(73)

(964)
–

(98)
(5)

(112)
–

–
(599)

(393)
(1,721)

–
(2,944)

(120)

173

12

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

1,260

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

2,962

2,969

2,341

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR (Note 6)

P
=4,222

=2,962
P

P
=2,969

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information and Status of Operations
a. Corporate Information
Benpres Holdings Corporation (Benpres or the Parent Company) is incorporated in the
Philippines. The Parent Company is involved in management and investment holdings of
subsidiaries and associates. The subsidiaries are mainly involved in broadcasting and
entertainment business. The Parent Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to
as “the Company”. The Company’s associates are involved in telecommunications, power
generation and distribution, real estate development and roads and tollways business. The
Company disposed its equity interest in an associate involved in roads and tollways business
on November 13, 2008 (see Note 11b).
The Parent Company is a 54.61% owned subsidiary of Lopez, Inc. (Lopez), a Philippine entity
and the ultimate parent company.
The common shares of the Parent Company were listed beginning November 1993 and have
since been traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).
The registered office address of the Parent Company is 4th Floor, Benpres Building, Meralco
Avenue, Pasig City.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for issue
by the Board of Directors (BOD) on April 14, 2009, as reviewed and recommended for
approval by the Audit Committee.
b. Balance Sheet Management Plan (BSMP)
Starting in 2002, the Parent Company defaulted on its principal and interest payments on its
long-term direct obligations (see Note 18) and its guarantees and commitments to Bayantel
Telecommunications Holdings Corporation (Bayantel), an associate (see Note 11d).
Long-term direct obligations of the Parent Company that are due for payment as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted to P
=8,642 million and =
P8,182 million, respectively
(see Note 18). In addition, by virtue of its guarantees and commitments to Bayantel (or
indirect obligations), the Parent Company may be liable for certain obligations that already
fell due amounting to approximately US$145 million and US$167 million as of December 31,
2008 and 2007, respectively, with equivalent Philippine Peso amounts of =
P6,905 million and
=7,107 million, respectively (see Note 11d).
P
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-2As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the consolidated current liabilities also exceeded
consolidated current assets by =
P11,860 million and =
P15,393 million, respectively.
The BSMP was created by the Parent Company in June 2002 to address all the outstanding
financial obligations of the Parent Company, including its guarantees and commitments to
Bayantel. The BSMP involves series of activities, including restructuring of debt and disposal
of non-core assets, with the aim of reducing the outstanding financial obligations of the Parent
Company.
In the BSMP, all the outstanding financial obligations of the Parent Company as of May 31,
2002 were proposed to be restructured and since December 2002, the Parent Company has
been making good faith semi-annual interest payments on its financial obligations. Interest is
computed based on the proposed restructuring terms, while interest paid on indirect
obligations are treated as advance payment of principal based on the original contracted terms.
On March 13, 2003, the stockholders granted full authority to the BOD to negotiate with the
creditors without the need for prior approval from the stockholders. The BOD has the
authority to take all actions and matters necessary and desirable for the restructuring of the
Parent Company’s financial obligations under the BSMP. The Parent Company also has
Ferrier Hodgson Corporate Advisory (WA) Pty Ltd. as the appointed financial adviser to assist
the Parent Company in addressing its long-term direct and indirect obligations. To facilitate
the overall process for the financial restructuring of the Parent Company, the Benpres
Creditors’ Committee was formed by the creditors.
In 2008 and 2007, the Parent Company purchased debt with face value of =
P476 million and
=10 million, respectively, from the holders of its Long-term Commercial Paper (LTCP) as part
P
of its debt buy-back strategy. The debt, including capitalized interests, were purchased for
=288 million and =
P
P6 million, respectively, or at 60% of the principal amount (see Note 18).
The Company’s gain from the purchase of debt amounting to =
P189 million and =
P4 million are
presented as part of gain on extinguishment and acquisition of debt (see Note 28). In
November 2007, the Parent Company and Lopez together settled the US$43 million worth of
debt held by Asian Infrastructure Fund (AIF), of which they are co-obligors. The debt was
settled for US$32 million with the Parent Company paying US$26 million and Lopez paying
US$6 million (see Note 11d).
In connection with the plan to dispose certain non-core assets of the Parent Company, in 2008,
the Parent Company disposed its equity interest in First Philippine Infrastructure, Inc. (FPII)
(see Note 11b) to Metro Pacific Investments Corporation (MPIC) and certain available-forsale (AFS) investments (see Note 9).
On January 19, 2007, the Parent Company officially exited from the business of Maynilad
Water Services, Inc. (Maynilad Water) and wrote off the guaranteed obligations of the Parent
Company. Maynilad Water is a subsidiary of the Company until July 20, 2005, when the
Company lost its power to govern the financial and operating policies of Maynilad Water
pursuant to the delivery to the Rehabilitation Receiver of Maynilad Water an irrevocable
proxy appointing Metropolitan Water Works and Sewerage System (MWSS) or any of
MWSS’s authorized representative as its proxy to attend, in the Company’s stead, all meetings
of Maynilad Water, and to vote all of the Benpres shares, specifically for the purpose of
carrying out, or ensuring the completion of the capital restructuring of Maynilad Water.

*SGVMC211642*

BENPRES AR 2008

-3On December 19, 2008, Parent Company circulated to its creditors a Term Sheet containing
Primary Financial and Commercial Terms and Obligations for the restructuring of Benpres
financial obligations. The primary financial terms of the restructuring include the following,
among others:
 Bullet payment of the principal amount of the Existing Obligations on Principal
Repayment Date that is 12.5 years from Effective Date (the date on which such Signing
Creditors’ accept the terms and conditions set out in the Term Sheet), subject however to
the Parent Company’s right to refinance its outstanding obligations or conduct Debt
Buyback in its sole and absolute discretion in any amount and at any time up to and
including the Principal Repayment Date.
The Existing Obligations include the long-term direct and indirect obligations of the
Parent Company.
 Interest will be fixed at 4% per annum (gross of tax) for US$ Obligations and fixed at 7%
per annum (gross of tax) for Philippine Peso Obligations.
 Subject to availability of cash, the Parent Company may make an offer to buyback all or
any part of the Existing Obligations at a price that is no more than 60% of the principal
amount.
 Priority of cash flows for payment of debt is in the following order: (1) operating
expenses; (2) interest payments due to creditors; (3) any buyback proposal at the Parent
Company’s discretion, and; (4) bullet principal repayment on the Principal Repayment
Date.
Pursuant to the Term Sheet, the Parent Company may endeavor to dispose its investments in
associates.
As of April 14, 2009, only one creditor having outstanding debt of US$0.1 million
(P
=0.5 million) accepted the Term Sheet. From January 1, 2009 to April 14, 2009, creditors
having outstanding debt of =
P114 million availed of the buyback offer at 60% of principal
amount of their debt.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the
Company will continue operating as a going concern. The foregoing conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast doubt about the Company’s ability to
continue in the normal course of business. The ability of the Company to continue operating
in the normal course of business depends on the success of the BSMP and related Term Sheet
circulated to the creditors.
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-42. Transfer of Media Interest
On April 24, 1998, as approved by the National Telecommunications Commission (NTC) on
March 16, 1998 and the creditors of the Parent Company on April 21, 1998, the Parent Company
transferred its ownership in ABS-CBN Broadcasting Corporation (ABS-CBN) and Sky Vision
Corporation (Sky Vision) to Lopez. The transfer included 553,457,304 shares of ABS-CBN at its
market value of =
P16.50 per share equivalent to =
P9,132 million and 162,463,400 shares of Sky
Vision at its book value of P
=2.75 per share equivalent to =
P447 million in exchange for cash of
=75 million and Convertible and Nonconvertible Notes (Lopez Notes) of =
P
P9,504 million
(Convertible Notes of =
P5,504 million and Nonconvertible Notes of P
=4,000 million). The Lopez
Notes are secured by a pledge of the shares transferred and all subsequent shares distributed to
Lopez by reason of its holdings of ABS-CBN and SkyVision shares. After the transfer, Lopez
assumed all voting rights associated with the shares. The ABS-CBN and Sky Vision shares were
also released from negative pledge covenants included in the terms of outstanding LTCPs.
The Lopez Notes are payable on April 24, 2013 (Maturity Date). Lopez has the option to redeem
the Lopez Notes at any time, subject to certain conditions provided for in the Agreement by both
parties. The Parent Company has the option to convert the Convertible Lopez Notes into
553,457,304 shares of ABS-CBN and 162,463,400 shares of Sky Vision (Conversion Quantity) at
a conversion price of =
P5,504 million until Maturity Date or redemption date, as the case may be.
The conversion quantity and price are subject to adjustments as provided for in the Agreement.
The Lopez Notes may be repaid in whole or in part on or before the Maturity Date. The Lopez
Notes are terminated on any earlier date if the Convertible Lopez Notes have been properly
converted and Lopez has satisfied its obligations with respect to Convertible Lopez Notes. The
Lopez Notes bear an annual interest of 1.5%, subject to adjustments as agreed by both parties.
As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the outstanding Lopez Notes amounted to P
=8,821 million and
P8,132 million, respectively. The underlying shares totaled 446,800,022 ABS-CBN shares in
=
2008 and 2007 [including 568,415 Philippine Depositary Receipts (PDRs) in 2008 and 2007], and
162,463,400 Sky Vision shares in 2008 and 2007.
As of April 14, 2009, the shares of stock in ABS-CBN and Sky Vision are still under the name of
Lopez. Consequently, Lopez has the power to vote over those shares. The Parent Company has
not exercised its option to convert the Lopez Notes into ABS-CBN and Sky Vision shares,
respectively.
ABS-CBN
ABS-CBN is incorporated in the Philippines. Its core business is television and radio
broadcasting. Its subsidiaries and associates are involved in the following related businesses:
cable and direct-to-home (DTH) television distribution and telecommunications services overseas,
movie production, audio recording and distribution, video/audio post production, and film
distribution. Other activities of the subsidiaries include merchandising, internet and mobile
services and publishing.
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-5The convertibility feature of the Lopez Notes pertaining to ABS-CBN qualifies as “potential
voting rights” under Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS 27), Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements. Under PAS 27, the existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible, including potential voting rights held by another entity, are
considered when assessing whether an entity has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of another entity. Consequently, for financial reporting purposes, ABS-CBN is
considered a subsidiary of the Parent Company (see Note 3). Accordingly, the Lopez Notes
pertaining to ABS-CBN is eliminated for consolidation purposes.
Condensed consolidated financial information of ABS-CBN before intercompany eliminations
follow:
2008

2007

(Amounts in Millions)

Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net assets
Attributable to:
Equity holders of ABS-CBN
Minority interests
2008
Revenue
Costs and expenses
Net income
Attributable to:
Equity holders of ABS-CBN
Minority interests

P
=10,120
22,715
(8,327)
(9,361)
P
=15,147

P8,876
=
17,252
(6,431)
(5,347)
=14,350
P

P
=15,080
67
P
=15,147

=14,304
P
46
=14,350
P

2007

2006

(Amounts in Millions)

P
=22,307
(20,917)
P
=1,390

=
P19,940
(18,669)
=
P1,271

P
=1,384
6
P
=1,390

=
P1,267
4
=
P1,271

=
P17,020
(16,277)
=
P743
=
P741
2
=
P743

Sky Vision
Sky Vision is a holding company of various subsidiaries mainly involved in cable television
services in Metro Manila and in certain provincial areas in the Philippines.
The convertibility feature of the Lopez Notes pertaining to Sky Vision qualifies as “potential
voting rights” under PAS 28, Investments in Associates. Under PAS 28, the existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible, including potential voting
rights held by other entities, are considered when assessing whether an entity has significant
influence. Consequently, for financial reporting purposes, Sky Vision is considered an associate
of the Parent Company, which is accounted for under the equity method (see Note 11e).
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-6a. Conversion of Sky Cable Note Issued to ABS-CBN and outstanding advances by ABS-CBN
and Parent Company and Consolidation of Sky Cable Corporation (Sky Cable)
On June 30, 2004, Sky Vision and Sky Cable (“Issuer”) issued a Convertible Note (Sky Cable
Note) to ABS-CBN amounting to US$30.0 million (equivalent to P
=1,581 million). The
amount for conversion also includes advances and accrued interest receivable of ABS-CBN
amounting to =
P918 million, and advances of the Parent Company to Sky Cable amounting to
=253 million. As of December 31, 2007, the Sky Cable Note amounted to P
P
=2,499 million
(see Note 10).
The Sky Cable Note was subject to interest of 13.0% compounded annually and matured on
June 30, 2006. The principal and accrued interest as of maturity date is mandatorily converted
into common shares of the Issuer, based on the prevailing USD to Philippine Peso exchange
rate on maturity date, at a conversion price equivalent to a 20% discount of: (a) the market
value of the shares, in the event of a public offering of the Issuer before maturity date; (b) the
valuation of the shares by an independent third party appraiser that is a recognized banking
firm, securities underwriter or one of the big three international accounting firms or their
Philippine affiliate jointly appointed by the Lopez and the Parent Company (collectively
referred to as Benpres Group) and Philippine Long Distance Telephone Company and
Mediaquest Holdings, Inc. (collectively referred to as PLDT Group) pursuant to the Master
Consolidation Agreement dated July 18, 2001, as amended or supplemented.
As of December 31, 2007, the conversion price of the Sky Cable Note was not yet been
determined. Based on the provisions of the Sky Cable Note, the conversion of the Sky Cable
Note cannot be completed without the determination of the conversion price, which in turn
depends on the valuation of Sky Cable by an independent third party. Thus, ABS-CBN and
the Parent Company did not convert the Sky Cable Note at that time without such valuation.
The conversion date was effectively extended.
On May 20, 2008, the Benpres Group and the PLDT Group acknowledged the fairness and
reasonableness of the valuation for Sky Cable effective March 15, 2008. Based on this final
valuation, ABS-CBN’s Sky Cable Note of =
P2,499 million, including advances and interest of
=918 million, had an equivalent subscription to 269,645,828 Sky Cable shares, representing
P
65.3% effective interest in Sky Cable. On the other hand, the Parent Company’s advances to
Sky Vision, subsequently assigned by Sky Vision to Sky Cable, amounting to P
=253 million
had an equivalent subscription to 27,264,843 Sky Cable shares, representing 6.6% effective
interest in Sky Cable. The final valuation rendered the Sky Cable Note exercisable.
Consequently, for financial reporting purposes, effective March 15, 2008, Sky Cable is
considered as a subsidiary of the Company. The combined interest of the Parent Company
and ABS-CBN in Sky Cable is 71.8% while the effective interest of the Company in Sky
Cable is 45.1%.
On December 8, 2008, ABS-CBN, the Parent Company and SkyVision entered into an
Assignment Agreement, where ABS-CBN and the Parent Company assigned the Sky Cable
Note and advances in Sky Cable to Sky Vision in consideration of PDRs to be issued by Sky
Vision upon approval by the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) of the
increase in the authorized capital stock of Sky Cable. Pursuant to this Assignment Agreement,
Sky Vision is contractually bound to issue the PDRs to ABS-CBN and the Parent Company
upon issuance of the underlying Sky Cable shares to Sky Vision. Effectively, the economic
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-7interest over the underlying Sky Cable shares still remains with ABS-CBN and the Parent
Company. However, Sky Vision is the legal owner of the subscriptions of ABS-CBN and the
Parent Company in Sky Cable.
The PDRs will grant ABS-CBN and the Parent Company the right, upon payment of the
exercise price and subject to certain other conditions, the delivery of Sky Cable shares or the
sale of and delivery of the proceeds of such sale of Sky Cable shares. The PDRs may be
exercised at any time by ABS-CBN and the Parent Company, thus, providing potential voting
rights to ABS-CBN and the Parent Company. Any cash dividends or other cash distributions
in respect of the underlying Sky Cable shares shall be distributed to ABS-CBN and the Parent
Company.
The voting rights will remain with Sky Vision as legal owner. However, by virtue of the
PDRs, ABS-CBN and the Parent Company have economic benefits over the underlying Sky
Cable shares and voting rights upon exercise of the PDRs.
As of April 14, 2009, the PDRs of Sky Vision have not yet been issued to ABS-CBN and the
Parent Company pending approval by the SEC of the increase in the authorized capital stock
of Sky Cable.
The conversion of Sky Cable Note is considered as a business combination and accounted for
=2,752 million
using purchase method by the Company. Accordingly, the consideration of P
was allocated to the identifiable assets and liabilities based on the fair values at conversion
date. The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Sky Cable at the date of
conversion and the corresponding carrying amounts immediately before the conversion were:

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables - net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Property and equipment - net
Customer relationships
Other noncurrent assets
Trade and other current liabilities
Long-term debt
Due to related parties
Deferred tax liabilities
Other noncurrent liabilities
Net assets
Combined interest*
Net assets acquired
Goodwill arising from the acquisition
Consideration

Fair Value
Recognized
on Conversion Carrying Value
=
P837
P
=837
394
394
603
603
4,960
3,548
607
–
1,378
1,468
(2,562)
(2,562)
(2,920)
(2,920)
(674)
(674)
(615)
–
(213)
(213)
1,795
=
P481
71.9%
1,290
1,462
=
P2,752

* For purposes of computing goodwill, the combined interest represents 65.3% direct equity interest
of ABS-CBN and 6.6% direct equity interest of the Parent Company.
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-8There is no cash outflow on the conversion of Sky Cable Note.
From the date of the conversion of Sky Cable Note, Sky Cable has contributed =
P29 million to
the net income of the Company. Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the net income for the Company would have been higher by P
=1,441 million and revenue
would have been P
=3,561 million.
On February 19, 2009, the BOD of ABS-CBN approved the conversion of =
P1,798 million loan
and =
P900 million advances to PDRs with underlying 278,588,814 Sky Cable shares at
conversion price of =
P9.69 a share. Upon conversion of the foregoing loan and advances, the
effective interest of the Company will increase from 45.1% to 53.3%. The conversion will be
considered as acquisition of minority interest. The foregoing loan and advances were
extinguished upon consolidation of Sky Cable to the Company.
On March 2, 2009 by virtue of a separate Assignment Agreement, ABS-CBN assigned the
=1,798 million loan to Sky Vision. As a consideration for the assignment, Sky Vision agreed
P
to issue ABS-CBN PDRs which shall be convertible into Sky Cable shares. The terms of the
agreement are similar to the Assignment Agreement discussed in the foregoing.
b. Consolidation of Sky Cable and Philippine Home Cable Holdings, Inc. (Home Cable) and
Transfer of Sky Vision Minority to Sky Cable
On August 30, 2004, the SEC approved the issuance of Sky Cable shares to Home Cable in
exchange for the assets and liabilities of Home Cable. After the transfer, Home Cable owned
33.5% of Sky Cable. In 2008, Home Cable’s ownership was diluted to 5% upon conversion
of the Sky Cable Note of ABS-CBN (see Note 2a). Meanwhile, Sky Vision’s equity
ownership in Sky Cable was also diluted from 66.5% to 9.9%.
Subsequent to the conversion of Sky Cable Note, the minority stockholders of Sky Vision
transferred their 8.6% equity interest in Sky Vision to Sky Cable. As a result of the transfer,
Sky Vision’s equity ownership in Sky Cable was further diluted to 1.3%.
c. Debt Restructuring Agreement and Acquisition of Sky Cable Debt
In November 2005, Sky Cable requested its creditors for an extension of the grace period of its
restructured debt for another five years, with principal amortization to start in 2011. In
September 2006, Sky Cable paid a token payment amounting to P
=5 million, upon which the
principal payments due in September 2006, December 2006 and March 2007 were deferred to
be paid in July 2007. A second token payment amounting to P
=5 million was paid upon
finalization of debt restructuring.
In 2007, ABS-CBN invited holders of outstanding loan obligations of Sky Cable to sell Sky
Cable’s outstanding debt. Two options were given to the creditors: (1) offer to sell for cash
70% of face value and (2) offer to sell for ABS-CBN debt at a given set of terms. On
September 20, 2007, ABS-CBN acquired from several creditors =
P1,798 million or 66% of Sky
Cable’s total outstanding debt of P
=2.8 billion. Thus, ABS-CBN became Sky Cable’s creditor
(see Notes 10 and 18).
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-9d. Acquisition of Minority Interest of Pilipino Cable Corporation (PCC)
On May 23, 2008, Sky Cable, through Sky Vision, acquired the minority interest in PCC from
Sun Cable Holdings, Incorporated (SCHI) for a cash consideration of =
P1.2 billion and an
assumption of liability of Telemondial Holdings, Inc. (THI) amounting to =
P100 million. SCHI
owns THI, which in turn, owns the remaining 45.5% equity of PCC. Consequently, as of
December 31, 2008, PCC became a wholly owned subsidiary of Sky Cable. The difference
between the consideration and the carrying value of the minority interest in PCC amounting to
=558 million, is recognized as goodwill (see Note 13).
P
3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for derivative financial instruments and AFS investments that have been measured at fair
value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is the
functional and presentation currency of the Parent Company. All values are rounded to the nearest
million peso, except when otherwise indicated.
Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS includes statements named PFRS, PAS
and Philippine Interpretations of International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(IFRIC) issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council.
Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company as of
December 31 each year. Control is normally evidenced when the Parent Company owns, either
directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the voting rights of an entity’s capital stock.
The following are the subsidiaries, which the Parent Company has direct control of, as of
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006:

ABS-CBN and Subsidiaries (see Note 2)*
Bayanmap Corporation (Bayanmap)

Country
of Incorporation
Philippines
Philippines

Principal Activities
Broadcasting and film distribution
Information service provider

Percentage
of Ownership
57.3
51.0

* After the effect of PDRs convertible to common shares, percentage of ownership is 58.5% in 2008, 58.3% in 2007 and 58.0% in 2006.
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- 10 The following are the entities in which the Parent Company has indirect control through its
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006:
Company
ABS-CBN Global Ltd.
(ABS-CBN Global)(a)
ABS-CBN International(a)
ABS-CBN Australia Pty. Ltd.(a)
ABS-CBN Telecom North
America, Inc.(a)
The Filipino Channel Canada,
ULC(a)
ABS-CBN Europe Ltd.(a)

Place of
Incorporation
Cayman Islands
California, USA

Cable and satellite
programming services
Victoria, Australia Cable and satellite
programming services
California, USA
Telecommunications
Canada

USD

Ownership Interest
2007
2006
2008
100.0 100.0 100.0
98.0

98.0

98.0

Australian Dollar (AUD)

100.0

100.0

100.0

USD

100.0

100.0

100.0

Canadian Dollar (CAD)

100.0

100.0

–

Great Britain Pound
(GBP)
Japanese Yen (JPY)

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

USD

100.0

100.0

100.0

Dubai, UAE
Philippines
Philippines

Cable and satellite
programming services
Cable and satellite
programming services
Cable and satellite
programming services
Cable and satellite
programming services
Trading
Money remittance services
Educational/training

USD
Philippine Peso
Philippine Peso

100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0

Philippines

Movie production

Philippine Peso

100.0

100.0

100.0

Philippines

Interactive media services

Philippine Peso

100.0

100.0

100.0

Philippines

Digital electronic content
distribution
Real estate

Philippine Peso

100.0

100.0

75.0

Philippine Peso

100.0

100.0

100.0

Print publishing
Print publishing
Content development and
programming services
Services - production

Philippine Peso
Philippine Peso
Philippine Peso

100.0
70.0
100.0

100.0
70.0
100.0

100.0
70.0
100.0

Philippine Peso

100.0

100.0

100.0

Philippine Peso

100.0

100.0

100.0

Philippine Peso
Philippine Peso

–
100.0

–
100.0

100.0
100.0

Philippine Peso
Philippine Peso

100.0
100.0

100.0
100.0

100.0
100.0

Philippine Peso

100.0

100.0

100.0

Philippine Peso
Philippine Peso

98.9
65.3

98.9
–

98.9
–

United Kingdom

ABS-CBN Japan, Inc. (a)

Japan

ABS-CBN Middle East
FZ-LLC(a)
ABS-CBN Middle East LLC(a)
E-Money Plus, Inc.
ABS-CBN Center for
Communication Arts, Inc.
ABS-CBN Film Productions,
Inc.
ABS-CBN Interactive, Inc.
(ABS-CBN Interactive)
ABS-CBN Multimedia, Inc.

Dubai, UAE

ABS-CBN Integrated
and Strategic Property
Holdings, Inc.
ABS-CBN Publishing, Inc.
Culinary Publications, Inc.
Creative Programs, Inc. (CPI)

Functional
Currency
USD

Principal Activities
Holding company

Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines

Professional Services for
Philippines
Television & Radio, Inc.
Sarimanok News Network, Inc. Philippines
Sky Films, Inc.
Star Recording, Inc.

Philippines
Philippines

Star Songs, Inc.
Studio 23, Inc.

Philippines
Philippines

TV Food Chefs, Inc.

Philippines

Roadrunner Network, Inc.
Sky Cable Corporation
and Subsidiaries(b)
(see Note 2a)

Philippines
Philippines

Content development and
programming services
Services - film distribution
Audio and video production
and distribution
Music publishing
Content development and
programming services
Services - restaurant and
food
Services - post production
Cable television services

(a) Considered as foreign subsidiaries.
(b) Pertains to the effective interest of ABS-CBN. The Parent Company has direct ownership of 6.6%. The effective interest of the Company is 45.1%.
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- 11 The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same financial reporting year as
the Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
All significant intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognized in assets and liabilities, are eliminated
in full on consolidation. Unrealized gains and losses are eliminated unless costs cannot be
recovered.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Company.
Control is achieved when the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
Consolidation of subsidiaries ceases when control is transferred out of the Company. The results
of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the consolidated
statement of income from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal, as appropriate.
As a result of the conversion of Sky Cable Note in 2008, the related accounts of Sky Cable and its
subsidiaries have been included in the 2008 consolidated financial statements effective March 15,
2008 (see Note 2a).
Minority Interests
Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiaries not held by
the Company and are presented separately in the consolidated statement of income and within
equity in the consolidated balance sheet, separate from the equity attributable to equity holders of
the Parent Company.
Acquisition of minority interests is accounted for using the parent entity extension method,
whereby, the difference between the consideration and the carrying value of the share in the net
assets acquired is recognized in goodwill.
The proportionate amount of the fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities upon acquisition of
a consolidated subsidiary and any subsequent changes in equity of a consolidated subsidiary
attributable to a minority shareholder’s interest are shown separately as “Minority interests”
account in the consolidated balance sheet. A minority shareholder’s interest in the results of
operations of a subsidiary is shown as “Minority interests” account in the consolidated statement
of income. Any losses applicable to a minority shareholder in a consolidated subsidiary in excess
of the minority shareholder’s equity in the subsidiary are charged against the minority interest to
the extent that the minority shareholder has binding obligation to, and is able to, make good of the
losses.
Business Combination and Goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase accounting method. This involves
recognizing identifiable assets (including previously unrecognized intangible assets) and liabilities
(including contingent liabilities and excluding future restructuring) of the acquired business at fair
value.
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- 12 Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
cost of the business combination over the Company’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Company’s cash-generating units or group of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Company are assigned to those units or groups of units. Each unit or group of units to which
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the Company at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes.
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part
of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation in determining the gain or loss on
disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the
relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
When subsidiaries are sold, the difference between the selling price and the net assets plus
cumulative exchange differences arising from the translation and goodwill is recognized in the
consolidated statement of income.
The goodwill on investments in associates is included in the carrying amount of the related
investments.
Functional and Presentation Currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Parent Company. Each entity determines its own functional currency,
which is the currency that best reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and
circumstances relevant to that entity, and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency.
The functional currency of all the subsidiaries, except foreign subsidiaries, is the Philippine Peso.
The functional currencies of the foreign subsidiaries are disclosed under the Basis of
Consolidation section. As of financial reporting date, the assets and liabilities of foreign
subsidiaries are translated into the presentation currency of the Company (the Philippine Peso) at
the rate of exchange ruling at balance sheet date and, their statements of income are translated at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The exchange differences arising from the
translation are taken directly to “Share in equity adjustment from translation” account within the
equity section of the consolidated balance sheet. Upon disposal of any of these foreign
subsidiaries, the deferred cumulative amount recognized in equity relating to that particular
foreign subsidiary will be recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
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- 13 Changes in Accounting Policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of the following new Philippine Interpretations which became effective on January 1,
2008, and amendments to existing standards which became effective on July 1, 2008.
 Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 11, PFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions
This interpretation requires arrangements where employees are granted rights to an entity’s
equity instruments to be accounted for as an equity-settled scheme by the entity even if (a) the
entity chooses or is required to buy those equity instruments (e.g., treasury shares) from
another party, or (b) the shareholder(s) of the entity provide the equity instruments needed. It
also provides guidance on how subsidiaries, in their separate financial statements, will account
for such schemes when their employees receive rights to the equity instruments of the parent.
The interpretation did not have an impact on the consolidated financial statements as the
Company currently does not have share-based payments.
 Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 14, PAS 19, The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and their Interaction
This interpretation provides guidance on how to assess the limit on the amount of surplus in a
defined benefit scheme that can be recognized as an asset under PAS 19, Employee Benefits.
The pension asset recognized in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2008 is
within the limit set by the interpretation.
 Amendment to PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement,” and
PFRS 7, “Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Reclassification of Financial Assets
The amendments allow reclassification of certain held-for-trading investments to either heldto-maturity (HTM), loans and receivables or AFS financial instruments and certain AFS to
loans and receivables. This amendment did not have an impact to the Company as the AFS
investments are not of the nature allowed for reclassification under the amendment.
Financial Instruments
Date of Recognition. Financial instruments are recognized in the consolidated balance sheet when
the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace are recognized on trade date basis. Derivatives are recognized on
trade date basis.
Initial Recognition of Financial Instruments. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized
initially at fair value. The initial measurement of financial instruments includes transaction costs,
except for financial instruments which are measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL).
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at FVPL,
HTM investments, AFS investments and loans and receivables. Financial liabilities are classified
as either financial liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the investments were acquired and whether they are quoted in an active
market. The Company determines the classification of its instruments at initial recognition and
where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every financial reporting date.
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- 14 Determination of Fair Value. The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in
organized financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid prices or dealer price
quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction
for transactions costs, that are active at the close of business at the balance sheet date. When
current bid and asking prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides
evidence of the current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic
circumstances since the time of the transaction.
For investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using reference to similar instruments for which
observable prices exist, discounted cash flows analyses, and other relevant valuation models.
“Day 1” Profit. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value
of other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the
difference between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1” profit) in the consolidated
statement of income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where
use is made of data which is not observable, the difference between the transaction price and
model value is only recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the inputs become
observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company
determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1” profit amount.
a. Financial Assets or Liabilities at FVPL
Financial assets and liabilities at FVPL include financial assets and liabilities held for trading
purposes, financial assets and liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL, and
derivative instruments, unless they are designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge.
Financial assets and liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling and repurchasing in the near term. Included in this classification are debt
and equity securities which have been acquired principally for trading purposes.
Financial assets or liabilities may be designated at initial recognition as at FVPL if any of the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or recognizing
gains or losses on a different basis; (ii) the assets or liabilities are part of a group of financial
assets, or liabilities or both which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the financial
instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no analysis, that it would not be
separately recorded.
Financial assets or liabilities at FVPL are recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at fair
value. Subsequent changes in fair value are accounted for in the consolidated statement of
income. Interest earned or incurred and dividend income are recorded as income or expense.

*SGVMC211642*

BENPRES AR 2008

- 15 The Company’s embedded derivatives are classified under this category as of December 31,
2008 (see Note 31). Except for these embedded derivatives, there are no other financial assets
and liabilities at FVPL as of December 31, 2008. There are also neither financial assets and
liabilities at FPVL nor were derivative instruments as of December 31, 2007.
b. Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. These are not entered into with the intention of
immediate or short-term resale, are not classified as financial assets at FVPL and are not
designated as AFS investments or HTM investments.
After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees and costs
that are integral part of the effective interest rate. The amortization is included in the interest
income in the consolidated statement of income. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in provision for doubtful accounts in the consolidated statement of income.
Loans and receivables are included in current assets if maturity is within 12 months from
balance sheet date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.
This category includes the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, notes receivable, trade and
other receivables, and long-term receivables from related parties and advances to associates.
c. HTM Investments
Quoted nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities are classified as HTM investments when the Company has the positive intention
and ability to hold to maturity. Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are
not included in this category. Other long-term investments that are intended to be HTM, such
as bonds, are subsequently measured at amortized cost. This cost is computed as the amount
initially recognized minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization
using the effective interest rate method of any difference between the initially recognized
amount and the maturity amount, less allowance for impairment. This calculation includes all
fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums and discounts. For investments
carried at amortized cost, gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of
income when the investments are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the
amortization process.
The Company has no HTM investments as of December 31, 2008 and 2007.
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- 16 d. AFS Investments
AFS investments are those nonderivative financial assets that are designated as AFS or are not
classified in any of the three preceding categories. These are purchased and held indefinitely
and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions.
After initial recognition, AFS investments are measured at fair value. The effective yield
component of debt securities classified as AFS investments, as well as the impact of
restatement on foreign currency-denominated debt securities classified as AFS, is reported in
the consolidated statement of income. The unrealized gains and losses arising from the fair
valuation of AFS investments are excluded, net of applicable tax, from the consolidated
statement of income and are reported as cumulative translation adjustments in the equity
section of the consolidated balance sheet and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Assets under this category are classified as current assets if management intends to
sell these financial assets within 12 months from balance sheet date. Otherwise these are
classified as noncurrent assets.
The Company’s AFS investments, presented under “Other current assets” and “Other
noncurrent assets” accounts, include investments in ordinary common shares.
e. Other Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified under this category if these are not held for trading or not
designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability. These include liabilities arising
from operations or borrowings.
Other liabilities are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received less directly
attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortize
cost is calculated by taking into account any related issue costs, discount or premium. Gains
or losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the amortization process.
The Company’s other financial liabilities at amortized cost include trade and other payables,
interest-bearing loans and borrowings, estimated liabilities from guarantees and commitments,
obligations for program rights and customers’ deposits.
Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging
The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps and cross currency
swaps to hedge its risks associated with interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations.
Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. The fair value
of interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps is determined by reference to market values for
similar instruments. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken directly to the consolidated
statement of income for the current year.
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- 17 For the purpose of hedge accounting, derivatives can be designated as cash flow hedges or fair
value hedges, depending on the type of risk exposure.
At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the
hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes
identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk
being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting
the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged
risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value
or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been
highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.
Cash Flow Hedges. Cash flow hedges are hedges of the exposures to variability in cash flows that
are attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction and could affect the consolidated statement of income. Changes in
the fair value of a hedging instrument that qualifies as a highly effective cash flow hedge are
recognized directly in equity, while any hedge ineffectiveness is recognized immediately in the
consolidated statement of income.
Amounts taken to equity are transferred to the consolidated statement of income when the hedged
transaction affects profit or loss, such as when hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognized or when a forecast sale or purchase occurs. Where the hedged item is the cost of a
nonfinancial asset or liability, the amounts taken to equity are transferred to the initial carrying
amount of the nonfinancial asset or liability.
If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, amounts previously recognized in equity
are transferred to the consolidated statement of income. If the hedging instrument expires or is
sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, or if its designation as a hedge is
revoked, amounts previously recognized in equity remain in equity until the forecast transaction
occurs. If the related transaction is not expected to occur, the amount is taken to the consolidated
statement of income.
ABS-CBN’s interest rates and cross currency swaps designated as cash flow hedges were
terminated in 2007 as a result of the prepayment of the underlying obligation (see Note 31). There
are no outstanding cash flow hedges as of December 31, 2008.
The Company has no derivatives that are designated or accounted for as fair value hedges as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007.
Embedded Derivatives
An embedded derivative is separated from the host contract and accounted for as derivative if all
the following conditions are met: (a) the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded
derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristic of the host contract; (b) a separate
instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of the
derivative; and (c) the hybrid or combined instrument is not measured at FVPL.
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- 18 The Company assesses whether embedded derivatives are required to be separated from host
contracts when the Company first becomes party to the contract. Re-assessment only occurs if
there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required.
Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired.
Loans and Receivables. For loans and receivables carried at amortized cost, the Company first
assesses whether an objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that
are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is
collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at
amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
If in case the receivable has proven to have no realistic prospect of future recovery, any allowance
provided for such receivable is written off against the carrying value of the impaired receivable.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income, to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.
A provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Company will not be able to
collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. The carrying amount of the
receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognized
when they are assessed as uncollectible.
Likewise, it was also established that accounts outstanding for less than a year should have no
provision for impairment but accounts outstanding over a year should have a 100% provision,
which was arrived at after assessing individually significant balances. Provision for individually
non-significant balances was made on a portfolio or group basis after performing the regular
review of the age and status of the individual accounts and portfolio/group of accounts relative to
historical collections, changes in payment terms and other factors that may affect ability to collect
payments.
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- 19 Assets Carried at Cost. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted
equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an
unquoted equity instrument has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
AFS Investments. For AFS investments, the Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
In the case of equity investments classified as AFS investments, this would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below its cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in the
consolidated statement of income, is removed from equity and recognized in the consolidated
statement of income. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the
consolidated statement of income. Increases in fair value after impairment are recognized directly
in equity.
In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS investments, impairment is assessed based on the
same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost. Future interest income is based on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued based on the rate of interest used to discount future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring impairment loss. Such accrual is recorded as part of “Interest
income” in the consolidated statement of income. If, in subsequent year, the fair value of a debt
instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized in the statement of income, the impairment loss is reversed
through the consolidated statement of income.
Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial Asset. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:
 the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
 the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or
 the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
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- 20 Financial Liability. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or has expired.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income.
Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated balance
sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related
assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated balance sheet.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three
months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Inventories
Inventories, included under “Other current assets” account in the consolidated balance sheet, are
valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on the weighted average
method. Net realizable value of inventories that are for sale, is the selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the costs of marketing and distribution. Net realizable value of inventories
not held for sale is the current replacement cost. Unrealizable inventories are written off against
the consolidated statement of income.
Investments in Associates
The Company’s investments in associates are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting. An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at
cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Company’s share of net assets of the associate. Goodwill
relating to an associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not amortized.
The consolidated statement of income reflects the share on the financial performance of an
associate. When the Company’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Company does not recognize further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. Where
there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate, the Company recognizes
its share in any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.
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- 21 The financial reporting dates of the associates and the Company are identical and the associates’
accounting policies conform to those used by the Company for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Unrealized intercompany profits arising from the transactions with the
associate are eliminated.
Share in equity adjustment from translation represents the Company’s share in the adjustments of
an associate resulting from the translation into Philippine Peso of the foreign currency financial
statements of an associate.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, except land, are carried at cost (including capitalized interest), excluding
the costs of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and amortization and accumulated
impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of such property and equipment
when that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met. Land is stated at cost, which
includes initial purchase price and other cost directly attributable in bringing such asset to its
working condition, less any impairment in value.
Subscriber’s initial installation costs, including materials, labor and overhead costs are capitalized
and depreciated over a period no longer than the depreciation period of the distribution equipment.
The costs of subsequent disconnection and reconnection are charged to the consolidated statement
of income.Unissued spare parts and supplies represent major spare parts that can be used only in
connection with the distribution equipment. Unissued spare parts and supplies are not depreciated
but tested for impairment until become available for use.
When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the
property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.
Depreciation and amortization are computed on a straight-line method over the property and
equipment’s useful lives. The useful lives of the Company’s assets are estimated as follows:
5 to 10 years or term of the lease,
whichever is shorter
Buildings and improvements
15 to 40 years or term of the lease,
whichever is shorter
Television, radio, movie and auxiliary equipment 5 to 15 years
Other equipment
2 to 11 years
Land improvements

Each component of an item of property and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to
the total cost of the item of property and equipment is depreciated separately.
The property and equipment’s residual values, useful lives and depreciation and amortization
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.
Construction in progress represents equipment under installation and building under construction
and is stated at cost which includes cost of construction and other direct costs. Construction in
progress is not depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are completed and available for
operational use.
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- 22 An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of income in the year the asset is derecognized.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization in
the case of intangible assets with finite lives, and any accumulated impairment losses. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortization period and method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least
at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The amortization on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the consolidated statement
of income in those expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangibles are not amortized. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from finite
to indefinite is made on a prospective basis.
A summary of the policies applied to ABS-CBN’s acquired intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible Asset

Useful Lives

Program Rights

Finite (license term
or economic life,
whichever is
shorter)

Amortization
Method Used

Impairment
Testing/
Recoverable
Amount Testing

Determination of
Current and
Noncurrent
Portion

Amortized on the
basis of program
usage, except for
CPI, which is
amortized on a
straight-line
method over the
license term or
economic life,
whichever is
shorter.

If the remaining
expected benefit
period is shorter
than the
Company’s initial
estimates, the
Company
accelerates
amortization of the
purchase price or
license fee.

Based on the
estimated year of
usage, except CPI,
which is based on
license term.
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Amortization
Method Used

Impairment
Testing/
Recoverable
Amount Testing

Determination of
Current and
Noncurrent
Portion

Intangible Asset

Useful Lives

Story, Music and
Publication Rights

Finite (useful
economic benefit)

Amortized on the
basis of the useful
economic life.

If the remaining
expected benefit
period is shorter
than the
Company’s initial
estimates, the
Company
accelerates
amortization of the
cost.

Based on the
estimated year of
usage.

Movie In-Process

Finite

No amortization,
recognized as
expense upon
showing.

If the unamortized
film cost is less
than the fair value
of the film, the
asset is written
down to its
recoverable
amount.

Based on the
estimated year of
usage.

Video Rights and
Record Master

Finite (six months
or 10,000 copies
sold of video discs
and tapes,
whichever comes
first)

Amortized on the
basis of number of
copies sold.

If the remaining
expected benefit
period is shorter
than the
Company’s initial
estimates, the
Company
accelerates
amortization of the
cost.

Current.

Cable Channels CPI

Indefinite

No amortization.

Annually and more Noncurrent.
frequently when an
indication of
impairment exists.

Production and
Distribution
Business - Middle
East

Finite - 25 years

Amortized on a
straight-line basis
over the period of
25 years.

If the remaining
expected benefit
period is shorter
than the
Company’s initial
estimates, the
Company
accelerates
amortization of the
cost.

Noncurrent.
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- 24 Customer relationships acquired in a business combination (see Note 2a) is amortized on a
straight-line basis over the estimated customer service life ranging from three to 15 years.
Investment Properties
Investment properties, except land, are measured at cost, including transaction costs, less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. The carrying amount includes the cost of
replacing part of an existing investment property at the time the cost is incurred if the recognition
criteria are met, and excludes day-to-day servicing of an investment property. Land is stated at
cost less any impairment in value.
Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by ending of owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party
or ending of construction or development. Transfers are made from investment property when,
and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation or
commencement of development with a view to sale.
For a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property or inventories, the cost of
property for subsequent accounting is its carrying value at the date of change in use. If the
property occupied by the Company as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property and equipment” up to the date of change in use.
Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in the statement of operations in the year of retirement or disposal.
These are included under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated balance sheet.
Preproduction Expenses
Preproduction expenses, included under “Other current assets” account in the consolidated balance
sheets, represent costs incurred prior to the airing of the programs. These costs include talent fees
of artists and production staff and other costs directly attributable to production of programs.
These are charged to expense upon airing of the related programs or episodes. Costs related to
previously taped episodes determined as will not be aired are charged to expense.
Tax Credits
Tax credits from government airtime sales availed under Presidential Decree (PD) No. 1362 are
recognized upon actual airing of government commercials and advertisements. This is included
under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated balance sheet.
Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
The Company assesses at each financial reporting date whether there is an indication that property
and equipment, noncurrent program rights and other intangible assets, tax credits and deferred
charges may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the
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- 25 carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses are
recognized in the consolidated statement of income in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.
For assets, excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each financial reporting date as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If
that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. The
increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of income unless the asset is carried at
revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. After such a
reversal, the depreciation and amortization charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the
asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining
useful life.
The foregoing criteria are also applied in assessing impairment of specific nonfinancial assets:
Goodwill and Cable Channels. Goodwill and cable channels are reviewed for impairment,
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating units, to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount of the
cash-generating unit (or group of cash generating units) to which the goodwill has been allocated,
an impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Impairment losses
relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in subsequent increases in its recoverable amount in future
periods. The Company performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as of December 31 of
each year.
Investments in Associates. After application of the equity method of accounting, the Company
determines whether it is necessary to recognize any additional impairment loss with respect to the
Company’s net investment in the associate. The Company determines at each balance sheet date
whether there is any objective evidence that the investments in associates are impaired. If this is
the case, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as being the difference between the
fair value of the associate and the acquisition cost and recognizes the impairment in the
consolidated statement of income.
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- 26 Revenue
Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. The
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
 Airtime revenue is recognized as income on the dates the advertisements are aired. The fair
values of barter transactions are included in airtime revenue and the related accounts. These
transactions represent advertising time exchanged for program materials, merchandise or
service.
 Sale of services include:
a. Subscription fees which are recognized as follows:
DTH Subscribers and Cable Operators. Subscription fees are recognized under the
accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the agreements.
Share in DirecTV subscription revenue. Subscription revenue from subscribers of
DirecTV who subscribe to The Filipino Channel (TFC) is recognized in accordance with
the Deal Memorandum, as discussed in Note 32.
Subscription Revenue from ABS-CBN Now. Subscription revenue from online streaming
services of Filipino-oriented content and programming is received in advance (included as
“Deferred revenue” under “Trade and other payables” account in the consolidated balance
sheet) and is deferred and recognized as revenue over the period during which the service
is performed.
Cable Subscribers. Subscription fees are recognized under the accrual basis in accordance
with the terms of the agreements. Subscription fees billed or collected in advance are
deferred (included as “Deferred revenue” under “Trade and other payables” account in the
consolidated balance sheet) and recognized as revenue when service is rendered.
b. Telecommunications revenue is recognized when earned. These are stated net of the share
of the other telecommunications carriers, if any, under existing correspondence and
interconnection agreements. Interconnection fees and charges are based on agreed rates
with the other telecommunications carriers.
Income from prepaid phone cards are realized based on actual usage hours or expiration of
the unused value of the card, whichever comes earlier. Income from prepaid card sales for
which the related services have not been rendered as of balance sheet date is presented as
“Deferred revenue” under “Trade and other payables” account in the consolidated balance
sheet.
c. Channel lease revenue is recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
d. Income from film exhibition is recognized, net of theater shares on the dates the film are
shown.
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- 27 e. Income from TV rights and cable rights are recognized on the dates the films are
permitted to be publicly shown.
f.

Pay-per-view fees are recognized on the date the movies or special programs are viewed.

 License fees earned from DirecTV are recognized upon migration of the DTH subscribers of
ABS-CBN International to DirecTV. The additional license fees for each migrated subscriber
that will remain for 14 consecutive months from the date of activation, will be recognized on
the 14th month (see Note 32).
 Sale of goods is recognized when delivery has taken place and transfer of risks and rewards
has been completed. These are stated net of sales discounts, returns and allowances.
 Income and related costs pertaining to the sale and installation of decoders and set-top boxes
which has no stand alone value without the subscription revenue are aggregated and
recognized ratably over the longer of subscription contract term or the estimated customer
service life.
 Short-messaging-system/text-based revenue, sale of news materials and Company-produced
programs are recognized upon delivery.
 Royalty income is recognized upon rendering of service based on the terms of the agreement
and is reduced to the extent of the share of the composers or co-publishers of the songs
produced for original sound recording.
 Installation/reconnection/disconnection fees (shown as part of “Other income” account in the
consolidated statement of income) are recognized when the services are rendered.
 Management fees shown as part of “Other income” account in the consolidated statement of
income, are recognized based on the terms of the management agreement.
 Rental income, included as part of “Other income”, is recognized as income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
 Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis that reflects the effective yield on the
asset.
 Dividends, included as part of “Other income”, are recognized when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment is established.
Channel License Fees
Channel license fees included under “Cost of sales and services” account in the consolidated
statement of income are charged to operations in the year these fees are incurred.
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- 28 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized
as an interest expense under “Finance costs” in the consolidated statement of income
Customers’ Deposits
Customers’ deposits, included as part of “Other noncurrent liabilities” account in the consolidated
balance sheet, are initially recognized at fair value. The discount is recognized as deferred credits
and amortized over the estimated remaining term of the deposit using the effective interest
method.
Asset Retirement Obligation
The net present value of legal obligations associated with the retirement of an item of property and
equipment that resulted from the acquisition, construction or development and the normal
operations of property and equipment is recognized in the period in which it is incurred and a
reasonable estimate of the obligation can be made. This is included as part of “Other noncurrent
liabilities” account in the consolidated balance sheet.
Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs include interest charges and other costs incurred in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs are generally expensed as incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset.
Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in
progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred and ceases when the assets are
ready for their intended use. If the resulting carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, an impairment loss is recorded in the consolidated statement of income.
Debt Issue Costs
Expenditures incurred in connection with availments of long-term debt are deferred and amortized
using effective interest rate method over the term of the loans. Debt issue costs are netted against
the related long-term debt allocated correspondingly to the current and noncurrent portion.
Pension Costs
The Company has funded (the Parent Company, ABS-CBN and Sky Cable) and unfunded (other
subsidiaries), noncontributory defined benefit plans, except for ABS-CBN International which has
a defined contribution pension plan. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan
is determined separately for each plan using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and
losses are recognized as income or expense when the net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains
and losses for each individual plan at the end of the previous financial reporting year exceeded
10% of the higher of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at that date.
These gains or losses are recognized over the expected average remaining working lives of the
employees participating in the plans.
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- 29 The past service cost is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested. If the benefits are already vested immediately following the
introduction of, or changes to, a pension plan, past service cost is recognized immediately.
The defined benefit liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation
and actuarial gains and losses not recognized reduced by past service cost not yet recognized and
the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. If such
aggregate is negative, the asset is measured at the lower of such aggregate or the aggregate of
cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past service cost and the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future
contributions to the plan.
If the asset is measured at the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past
service cost and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from
the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan, net actuarial losses of the current
period and past service cost of the current period are recognized immediately to the extent that
they exceed any reduction in the present value of those economic benefits. If there is no change or
an increase in the present value of the economic benefits, the entire net actuarial losses of the
current period and past service cost of the current period are recognized immediately. Similarly,
net actuarial gains of the current period after the deduction of past service cost of the current
period exceeding any increase in the present value of the economic benefits stated above are
recognized immediately if the asset is measured at the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net
actuarial losses and past service cost and the present value of any economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan. If there is
no change or a decrease in the present value of the economic benefits, the entire net actuarial gains
of the current period after the deduction of past service cost of the current period are recognized
immediately.
For ABS-CBN International, the defined contribution pension plan is composed of the
contribution of ABS-CBN International or employee (or both) to the employee’s individual
account. These contributions generally are invested on behalf of the employee through American
Funds. Employees ultimately receive the balance in their account, which is based on contributions
plus or minus investment gains or losses. The value of each account will fluctuate due to changes
in the value of investments.
Leases
The determination whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment is
made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:
a. there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the agreement;
b. a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term;
c. there is a change in the determination of whether the fulfillment is dependent on a specified
asset; or
d. there is a substantial change to the asset.
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- 30 Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios a, c or d and the date of
renewal or extension period for scenario b.
Finance Leases. Finance leases, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and
benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease at
the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease
liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are charged directly against the consolidated statement of income.
Capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset
and the lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by
the end of the lease term.
Operating Leases. Leases where the Company retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Operating lease payments are recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
Income Taxes
Current Income Tax. Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted as at
balance sheet date.
Deferred Income Tax. Deferred income tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method,
on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, including
asset revaluations. Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward benefits of unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate income
tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO),
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and carryforward benefits of unused MCIT and unused NOLCO can be
utilized. Deferred income tax, however, is not recognized when it arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax liabilities are not provided on nontaxable temporary differences associated
with investments in domestic subsidiaries and associates. With respect to investments in other
subsidiaries and associates, deferred income tax liabilities are recognized except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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- 31 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted as at balance sheet date.
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred income tax assets are measured at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient future taxable profit will allow the deferred
income tax to be recovered.
The current and deferred income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity are recognized
in equity and not in the consolidated statement of income.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same tax authority.
Foreign Currency Translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency rate ruling at the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at balance sheet date. Nonmonetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Nonmonetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined.
Dividends on Common Shares of the Parent Company
Dividends on common shares are recognized as liability and deducted from equity when approved
by the shareholders of the Parent Company. Dividends for the year that are approved after balance
sheet date are dealt with as an event after balance sheet date.
Earnings Per Share Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income attributable to the equity holders
of the parent company for the year by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the year, with retroactive adjustments for any stock dividends and stock split.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net income attributable to the equity
holders of the Parent Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential common shares from the conversion of Perpetual
Convertible Bonds. The number of common shares is the weighted average number of common
shares plus the weighted average number of common shares which would be issued upon the
conversion of all the dilutive potential common shares into common shares. For calculation
purposes, Perpetual Convertible Bonds are deemed to have been converted into common shares at
the date of issuance of the convertible bonds.
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- 32 Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are
disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Segment Reporting
For purposes of financial reporting, the Company’s operating businesses are organized and
managed separately according to nature of business. Such business segments are the bases upon
which the Company reports its primary segment information. The Company operates in three
geographical areas where it derives its revenue.
Financial information on segment reporting is presented in Note 5 - Segment Information.
Event after Balance Sheet Date
Any event after balance sheet date that provides additional information about the Company’s
financial position at balance sheet date (adjusting events) is reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after balance sheet date that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
to consolidated financial statements when material.
Future Changes in Accounting Policies
The Company will adopt the following standards and Philippine Interpretations when these
become effective. Except as otherwise indicated, the Company does not expect the adoption of
these new and amended PFRS and Philippine Interpretations to have significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
Effective in 2009
 Amendment to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
(effective January 1, 2009), which allows an entity to determine the “cost” of investments in
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities or associates in its opening PFRS financial statements
in accordance with PAS 27 or using a deemed cost.
 Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Vesting Condition and Cancellations
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2009) — This amended standard
clarifies the definition of a vesting condition and prescribes the treatment for an award that is
effectively cancelled. It defines a vesting condition as a condition that includes an explicit or
implicit requirement to provide services. It further requires non-vesting conditions to be
treated in a similar fashion to market conditions. Failure to satisfy a non-vesting condition
that is within the control of either the entity or the counterparty is accounted for as
cancellation. However, failure to satisfy a non-vesting condition that is beyond the control of
either party does not give rise to a cancellation.
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- 33  PFRS 8, Operating Segments (effective January 1, 2009), which adopts a management
approach to reporting segment information. The information reported would be that which
management uses internally for evaluating the performance of operating segments and
allocating resources to those segments. Such information may be different from that reported
in the balance sheet and statement of income and companies will need to provide explanations
and reconciliations of the differences. PFRS 8 will replace PAS 14, Segment Reporting,
which is required to be adopted only by entities whose debt or equity instruments are publicly
traded, or are in the process of filing with the SEC for purposes of issuing any class of
instruments in a public market. The Company will adopt this change prospectively.
 Amendments to PAS 23, Borrowing Costs (effective January 1, 2009), which removes the
option of immediately recognizing as an expense the borrowing costs that relate to assets that
take a substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale. An entity is, therefore, required
to capitalize borrowing costs as part of the cost of such assets. The Company is currently
assessing the impact of the amendment on its financial statements upon adoption.
 Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements: Statement of Comprehensive
Income (effective January 1, 2009), which requires the statement of changes in equity to
include only transactions with owners, while all non-owner changes will be presented in
equity as a single line with details included in a separate statement. Owners are defined as
holders of instruments classified as equity. PAS 1 introduces the statement of comprehensive
income that combines all items of income and expense recognized in the statement of income
together with “other comprehensive income.” The revisions specify what is included in other
comprehensive income, such as gains and losses on AFS investments, actuarial gains and
losses on defined benefit pension plans and changes in the asset revaluation reserve. Entities
can choose to present all items in one statement, or to present two linked statements, a
separate statement of income and a statement of comprehensive income. The Company is
currently assessing the impact of the amendment on its current manner of reporting all items
of income and expenses.
 Amendments to PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements - Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate (effective January 1, 2009)
— This standard has been amended in respect of the holding companies separate financial
statements including (a) the deletion of “cost method,” making the distinction between preand post-acquisition profits no longer required; and (b) in cases of reorganizations where a
new parent is inserted above an existing parent of the group (subject to meeting specific
requirements), the cost of the subsidiary is the previous carrying amount of its share of equity
items in the subsidiary rather than its fair value. All dividends will be recognized in the
statement of income. However, the payment of such dividends requires the entity to consider
whether there is an indicator of impairment. The Company is currently assessing the impact
of this amendment on its financial statements upon adoption.
 Amendments to PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation and PAS 1, Presentation of
Financial Statements - Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
(effective January 1, 2009), which provide a limited scope exception for puttable instruments
to be classified as equity if they fulfill a number of specified features.
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- 34  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes (effective July 1, 2008),
which requires customer loyalty award credits to be accounted for as a separate component of
the sales transaction in which they are granted and therefore part of the fair value of the
consideration received is allocated to the award credits and deferred over the period that the
award credits are fulfilled. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the
interpretation on its financial statements.
 Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 16, Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Corporation
(effective October 1, 2008), which provides guidance on the accounting for a hedge of a net
investment. As such, it provides guidance on identifying the foreign currency risks that
qualify for hedge accounting in the hedge of a net investment, where within the group the
hedging instruments can be held in the hedge of a net investment and how an entity should
determine the amount of foreign currency gain or loss, relating to both the net investment and
the hedging instrument, to be recycled on disposal of the net investment. This interpretation is
to be applied prospectively.
Improvements to PFRS. In May 2008, an omnibus of amendments to certain standards were
issued, primarily with a view of removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. These
improvements will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009, except
for the improvement to PFRS 5, Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations,
which will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2009. The Company has
not yet adopted the following improvements to PFRS and anticipates that these will have no
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
 PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements — This improvement provides that assets and
liabilities classified as held for trading in accordance with PAS 39 are not automatically
classified as current in the balance sheet.
 PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors — This
improvement clarifies that only implementation guidance that is an integral part of a PFRS is
mandatory when selecting accounting policies.
 PAS 10, Events after the Balance Sheet Date — This improvement clarifies that dividends
declared after the end of the reporting period are not obligations.
 PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment — The improvement replaces the term ‘net selling
price’ with ‘fair value less costs to sell,’ to be consistent with PFRS 5 and PAS 36,
Impairment of Assets. Items of property, plant and equipment held for rental that are routinely
sold in the ordinary course of business after rental, are transferred to inventory when rental
ceases and they are held for sale. Proceeds of such sales are subsequently shown as revenue.
Cash payments on initial recognition of such items, the cash receipts from rents and
subsequent sales of such assets are all shown as cash flows from operating activities.
 PAS 18, Revenue — This improvement replaces the term “direct costs” with “transaction
costs” as defined in PAS 39.

*SGVMC211642*

BENPRES AR 2008

- 35  PAS 19, Employee Benefits — The improvement revises the definition of “past service costs”
to include reductions in benefits related to past services (“negative past service costs”) and to
exclude reductions in benefits related to future services that arise from plan amendments. It
also provided amendment to plans that result in a reduction in benefits related to future
services are accounted for as a curtailment. The improvement further revises the definition of
“return on plan assets” to exclude plan administration costs if they have already been included
in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the defined benefit obligation. It also revises the
definition of “short-term” and “other long-term” employee benefits to focus on the point in
time at which the liability is due to be settled. And, it deletes the reference to the recognition
of contingent liabilities to ensure consistency with PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets.
 PAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosures of Government Assistance —
This improvement provides that loans granted in the future with no or low interest rates will
not be exempt from the requirement to impute interest. The difference between the amount
received and the discounted amount is accounted for as government grant. Also, this
improvement revises various terms used to be consistent with other PFRS.
 PAS 23, Borrowing Costs — The definition of borrowing costs is revised to consolidate the
two types of items that are considered components of “borrowing costs” into one – the interest
expense calculated using the effective interest method calculated in accordance with PAS 39.
 PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements — This improvement provides that
when a parent entity accounts for a subsidiary at fair value in accordance PAS 39 in its
separate financial statements, this treatment continues when the subsidiary is subsequently
classified as held for sale.
 PAS 28, Investments in Associates — This improvement provides that if an associate is
accounted for at fair value in accordance with PAS 39, only the requirement of PAS 28 to
disclose the nature and extent of any significant restrictions on the ability of the associate to
transfer funds to the entity in the form of cash or repayment of loans applies. An investment
in associate is a single asset for the purpose of conducting the impairment test. Therefore, any
impairment test is not separately allocated to the goodwill included in the investment balance.
 PAS 29, Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies — This improvement revises
the reference to the exception to measure assets and liabilities at historical cost, such that it
notes property, plant and equipment as being an example, rather than implying that it is a
definitive list. Also, this improvement revises various terms used to be consistent with other
PFRS.
 PAS 31, Interests in Joint Venture — This improvement provides that if a joint venture is
accounted for at fair value, in accordance with PAS 39, only the requirements of PAS 31 to
disclose the commitments of the venturer and the joint venture, as well as summary financial
information about the assets, liabilities, income and expense will apply.
 PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting — This improvement requires that earnings per share be
disclosed in interim financial reports if an entity is within the scope of PAS 33.
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- 36  PAS 36, Impairment of Assets — This improvement provides that when discounted cash flows
are used to estimate “fair value less cost to sell” additional disclosure is required about the
discount rate, consistent with disclosures required when the discounted cash flows are used to
estimate “value in use.”
 PAS 38, Intangible Assets — This improvement provides that expenditure on advertising and
promotional activities is recognized as an expense when the Company either has the right to
access the goods or has received the service. The reference to there being rarely, if ever,
persuasive evidence to support an amortization method of intangible assets other than a
straight-line method has been removed.
 PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement — This improvement provides
that changes in circumstances relating to derivatives are not reclassifications and therefore
may be either removed from, or included in, the FVPL classification after initial recognition.
This improvement also removes the reference in PAS 39 to a “segment” when determining
whether an instrument qualifies as a hedge and requires the use of the revised effective interest
rate when remeasuring a debt instrument on the cessation of fair value hedge accounting.
 PAS 40, Investment Property — This improvement revises the scope that any property under
construction or development for future use as an investment property is classified as
investment property. If fair value cannot be reliably determined, the investment under
construction will be measured at cost until such time as fair value can be determined or
construction is complete. Also, this improvement revises the conditions for a voluntary
change in accounting policy to be consistent with PAS 8 and clarifies that the carrying amount
of investment property held under lease is the valuation obtained increased by any recognized
liability. This improvement removes the reference to the use of a pre-tax discount rate to
determine fair value. This improvement also remove the prohibition to take into account cash
flows resulting from any additional transformations when estimating fair value and replaces
the term “point-of-sale costs” with “costs to sell.”
 PAS 41, Agriculture — The improvement removes the reference to the use of a pre-tax
discount rate to determine fair value, thereby allowing use of either a pre-tax or post-tax
discount rate depending on the valuation methodology used. It further removes the
prohibition to take into account cash flows resulting from any additional transformations when
estimating fair value. Instead, cash flows that are expected to be generated in the “most
relevant market” are taken into account.
 PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations — The improvement
clarifies when a subsidiary is held for sale, all of its assets and liabilities will be classified as
held for sale under PFRS 5, even when the entity retains a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.
 PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures — This improvement removes the reference to
“total interest income” as a component of finance costs.
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- 37 Effective in 2010
 Revised PFRS 3, Business Combinations (effective July 1, 2009), which introduces a number
of changes in the accounting for business combinations occurring after this date that will
impact the amount of goodwill recognized, the reported results in the period that an
acquisition occurs, and future reported results. Other consequential amendments were made
to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, PAS 12, Income Taxes, PAS 21, The Effects of Changes
in Foreign Exchange Rates, PAS 28 and PAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures. The changes by
this revised standard will affect future acquisitions or loss of control and transactions with
minority interests.
 PAS 39, Amendments - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Eligible
hedged items, (effective on July 1, 2009) which addresses only the designation of a one-sided
risk in a hedged item, and the designation of inflation as a hedged risk or portion in particular
situations. The amendment clarifies that an entity is permitted to designate a portion of the
fair value changes or cash flow variability of a financial instrument as a hedged item.
Effective 2012
 Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate (effective
January 1, 2012)
This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors.
4. Management’s Use of Judgments and Estimates
The Company’s consolidated financial statements prepared under PFRS require management to
make judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and related notes. Future events may occur which will cause the judgments and
assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change in judgments
and estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial statements as they become reasonably
determinable.
Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
Judgments
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
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- 38 Determination of Functional Currency. Management uses judgment in assessing the functional
currency of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries through direct and indirect ownership. The
Parent Company and all other subsidiaries and associates, except for foreign subsidiaries of ABSCBN, have determined that its functional currency is the Philippine Peso. The Philippine Peso is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Parent Company and all other
subsidiaries and associates, except for foreign subsidiaries, operate. The Philippine Peso is the
currency that mainly influences the revenue and cost of selling goods and providing services.
For foreign subsidiaries and an associate, management has determined that the currency that reflects
the underlying transactions, events and conditions of their operations is a currency other than
Philippine Peso. Thus, the accounts of foreign subsidiaries and an associate were translated to
Philippine Peso for purposes of consolidation to the Company’s accounts.
Significant Influence on Investment in an Associate. In 2008, the Parent Company assigned its voting
rights to the equity interest in shares of stock of First Philippine Holdings Corporation (FPHC) to
Lopez under a Voting Trust Agreement (VTA). The VTA provides that the Parent Company is
entitled to the dividends to be declared on the equity ownership and that Lopez shall vote to effect the
election of, and continuance in office, as directors of FPHC, the individuals listed in the VTA. Based on
the VTA, the Company’s significant influence over FPHC still exists. Accordingly, the Company
continues to classify these shares of stock held as investment in an associate.
Leases. The evaluation whether an arrangement contains a lease is based on its substance. An
arrangement is, or contains a lease when the fulfillment of the arrangement depends on a specific
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys the right to use the asset.
ABS-CBN has entered into operating lease arrangements as a lessor and as a lessee. ABS-CBN,
as a lessee, has determined that the lessor retains substantial risks and benefits of ownership of
these properties, while as a lessor, ABS-CBN retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the assets adjudged due to the following circumstances:
 the lease term is only for a limited number of years
 lease is renewable but there is no purchase option at a significant discount as of date
 the lease payments represents solely compensation for use of asset rather than for purchase of
the assets
ABS-CBN has also entered into finance lease agreements covering certain property and
equipment. ABS-CBN has determined that it bears substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of said properties adjusted due to:
 the lease term represents substantially the full economic life in years of the asset under lease
 lease is renewable and there is currently a purchase option at a significant discount which the
Company is likely to exercise
 the lease payments represents amortization for purchase of the assets
The carrying amount of property and equipment under finance leases amounted to =
P220 million
and =
P310 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively (see Note 12).
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- 39 Financial Assets not Quoted in an Active Market. The Company classifies financial assets by
evaluating, among others, whether the asset is quoted or not in an active market. Included in the
evaluation on whether a financial asset is quoted in an active market is the determination on whether
quoted prices are readily and regularly available, and whether those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s-length basis.
Estimates
The key assumptions concerning future and other key sources of estimation at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
Revenue Recognition. ABS-CBN’s telecommunications revenue recognition policies require the use
of estimates that may affect the reported amounts of revenue and receivables. Revenue is stated net of
the share of the other telecommunications carriers, but the definite amounts of the net share are
determined subsequent to the reporting date. Thus, the Company initially estimates the amount based
on history of sharing.
The difference between the amount initially recognized and actual settlement or actual billing is taken
up in the accounts in the next period. However, there is no assurance that such use of estimates will
not result in material adjustments in future periods.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments. PFRS requires that certain financial assets and liabilities
(including derivative instruments) be carried at fair value, which requires the use of accounting
estimates. The fair values of financial instruments of short-term nature and those that are
subjected to monthly repricing are estimated to approximate their carrying amounts. For certain
financial instruments which are not quoted in an active market, fair values are assessed to be the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at risk-free rates applicable to the financial
instrument. The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are set out in Note 31.
While significant components of fair value measurement are determined using verifiable objective
evidence (i.e. foreign exchange rates, interest rates, volatility rates), the timing and amount of changes
in fair value would differ using a different valuation methodology. Any change in the fair values of
financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) directly affect the consolidated
statement of income and equity.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. The Company reviews its loans and receivables at each financial
reporting date to assess whether an allowance for impairment should be recorded in the consolidated
statement of income. In particular, judgment by management is required in the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of allowance required. Such
estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting
in future changes in the allowance.
The Company evaluates specific balances where management has information that certain amounts
may not be collectible. In these cases, the Company uses judgment, based on available facts and
circumstances, and a review of the factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts including, but
not limited to, the age and status of the receivables, collection experience and past loss experience.
The review is made by management on a continuing basis to identify accounts to be provided with
allowance. These specific reserves are re-evaluated and adjusted as additional information received
affects the amount estimated. In addition to specific allowance against individually significant
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- 40 receivables, the Company also makes a collective impairment allowance against exposures which,
although not specifically identified as requiring a specific allowance, have a greater risk of default
than when originally granted. This collective allowance is based on historical default experience,
current economic trends, changes in customer payment terms and other factors that may affect the
Company’s ability to collect payments. The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period
would differ if the Company made different judgments or utilized different methodologies. An
increase in allowance for doubtful accounts would increase the recorded operating expenses and
decrease current and noncurrent assets.
The allowance is established by charges to income in the form of provision for doubtful accounts.
Provision for doubtful accounts amounted to =
P195 million in 2008, =
P102 million in 2007 and
=
P94 million in 2006 (see Note 24). Trade and other receivables, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts, amounted to =
P5,105 million and =
P4,984 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. Allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted to
=
P440 million and =
P319 million, respectively (see Note 8). Long-term receivables from related
parties amounted to =
P3,893 million as of December 31, 2007 (see Note 10).
Advances to associates, net of allowance for impairment losses, amounted to P
=4 million as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007 (see Note 11).
Estimated Useful Lives of Property and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The useful life of each
item of the Company’s property and equipment and intangible assets with finite life is estimated
based on the period over which the asset is expected to be available for use. Estimation for property
and equipment is based on a collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation
and experience with similar assets. For intangible assets with finite life, estimated life is based on the
life of agreement covering such intangibles or useful economic life, whichever is lower. For
intangible assets with infinite life, estimated life is based on useful economic life determined by the
reasonable frequency of usage of such intangibles. The estimated useful life of each asset is
reviewed at each financial year-end and updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to
physical wear and tear or other limits on the use of the asset. It is possible, however, that future
financial performance could be materially affected by changes in the amounts and timing of recorded
expenses brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above. A reduction in the estimated
useful life of any property and equipment or intangible assets would increase the recorded expenses
and decrease noncurrent assets.
There is no change in the estimated useful lives of the property and equipment and intangible assets
during the year. The carrying values of property and equipment and intangible assets with finite life
are as follows (see Notes 12 and 14):
2008

2007

P
=15,169
2,410
538
93

=9,905
P
2,025
–
86

(Amounts in Millions)

Property and equipment
Program rights
Customer relationships
Other intangibles
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- 41 Asset Retirement Obligation. Determining asset retirement obligation requires estimation of the costs
of dismantling installations and restoring leased properties to their original condition. The estimated
costs of dismantling installations and restoring leased properties to their original condition have been
estimated based on historical information. While it is believed that the assumptions used in the
estimation of such costs are reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may materially
affect the recorded expense or obligation in future periods.
Asset retirement obligation amounted to P
=18 million and =
P15 million as of December 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively (see Note 19).
Impairment of Property and Equipment, Intangible Assets and Other Noncurrent Assets. The
Company assesses impairment on assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable or that the previously recognized impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. The factors that the group considers important
which could trigger an impairment review include the following:
 significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;
 significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall business;
and
 significant negative industry or economic trends.
The Company recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds it
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is computed using the value in use approach.
Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
The carrying value of nonfinancial assets that are subjected to impairment testing when certain
impairment indicators are present and annually for intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are as
follows (see Notes 11, 12, 14 and 16):
2008

2007

P
=14,263
15,169
2,681
2,410
460
110

=18,975
P
9,905
1,707
2,025
460
100

(Amounts in Millions)

Investments in shares of stock of associates
Property and equipment
Tax credits with tax credit certificates
Program rights
Cable channels of CPI
Production and distribution business - Middle East

Nonfinancial assets with indicators of impairment have been tested for impairment. In 2008, Sky
Cable provided an impairment loss for tax credits amounting to =
P99.7 million (see Note 16). No
impairment loss was recognized in 2007 and 2006.
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- 42 Impairment of AFS Investments. The Company treats AFS investments as impaired when there has
been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where objective evidence of
impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment. The
Company treats “significant” generally as 20% or more of the original cost of investment unless the
market has been particularly volatile, in which case a higher decline in fair value may still be regarded
as not significant. On the other hand, the Company treats “prolonged” as greater than 12 months. In
addition, the Company evaluates other factors, including normal volatility in share price for quoted
equities and the future cash flows and discount factors for unquoted equities.
AFS investments with indicators of impairment have been tested for impairment. Based on results of
testing by management, no impairment loss was recognized in 2008, 2007 and 2006. The Company
estimates that the carrying value of the AFS investments will be recovered. As of December 31, 2008
and 2007, AFS investments amounted to =
P954 million and =
P1,669 million, respectively (see Notes 9
and 16).
Impairment of Goodwill and Cable Channels. Goodwill and cable channels are annually evaluated
for impairment or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Company to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those future cash flows.
The impairment on goodwill and cable channels is determined by comparing: (a) the carrying amount
of the cash-generating unit; and (b) the present value of the annual projected cash flows for five years
and the present value of the terminal value computed under the discounted cash flow method. The
key assumptions used in the impairment test of goodwill and cable channels are discussed in Note 15
to the consolidated financial statements. The carrying value of the cable channels amounted to
=
P460 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007.
No impairment loss was recognized in 2008 and 2006. In 2007, provision for impairment loss on
goodwill amounted to =
P23 million. The carrying amount of goodwill as December 31, 2008 and 2007
amounted to =
P2,144 million and P
=124 million (as adjusted), respectively (see Note 13).
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. However, there is
no assurance that sufficient future taxable profit will be generated to allow all or part of the deferred
income tax assets to be utilized. The Company has determined that based on the levels of forecasted
future taxable profit, certain items of deductible differences are not realizable, thus not recognized.
The net recognized deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted to
=603 million and =
P
P184 million, respectively. Unrecognized deferred tax assets as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted to P
=2,354 million and =
P1,348 million, respectively
(see Note 29).
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- 43 Net Realizable Value of Inventories. Inventories are carried at net realizable value whenever net
realizable value of inventories becomes lower than cost due to damage, physical deterioration,
obsolescence, changes in price levels or other causes. Inventory items identified to be obsolete
and unusable are written off and charged as expense in the period such losses are identified.
Provision for decline in value of inventory amounted to P
=22 million in 2008, =
P15 million in 2007
and =
P1 million in 2006. Inventories at net realizable value amounted to =
P226 million and
=170 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively (see Note 9).
P
Present Value of Pension Obligation. The cost of defined benefit obligation is determined using
the projected unit credit method of actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation involves making
assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on plan assets, future salary rate
increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the long-term nature of these plans,
such estimates are subject to uncertainty.
The expected rate of return on plan assets was based on average historical premium on plan assets.
The assumed discount rates were determined using the market yields on Philippine bonds with
terms consistent with the expected employee benefit payout as of the date of statement of income
(see Note 20).
As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the present value of the pension obligation of the Parent
Company amounted to P
=98 million and =
P93 million, respectively, while its unrecognized net
actuarial loss amounted to =
P23 million and =
P27 million, respectively (see Note 20).
As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the present value of the pension obligation of ABS-CBN and
other subsidiaries amounted to =
P569 million and =
P860 million, respectively, while its
unrecognized net actuarial gain amounted to =
P579 million and unrecognized net actuarial loss
amounted to =
P195 million, respectively (see Note 20).
Contingencies. The Company is currently involved in various legal proceedings. The Company’s
estimate of the probable costs for the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation
with outside counsel handling defense in these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential
results. The Company currently does not believe these proceedings will have a material adverse
effect on its consolidated financial position and results of operations. It is possible, however, that
future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the
effectiveness of strategies relating to these proceedings (see Note 33).
5. Segment Information
Segment information is prepared on the following bases:
Business Segments
The Company’s main businesses are investment holdings and broadcasting and entertainment.
Broadcasting and entertainment is further segmented into three business activities - broadcasting,
cable and satellite, and other businesses. This segmentation is the basis upon which the Company
reports its primary segment information. The broadcasting segment is principally the television
and radio broadcasting activities which generate revenue from sale of national and regional
advertising time. Cable and satellite business primarily develops and produces programs for cable
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- 44 television, including delivery of television programming outside the Philippines through its DTH
satellite service, cable television channels and blocked time on television stations. In 2008, as a
result of the conversion of Sky Cable Note issued to ABS-CBN (see Note 2a), the cable and
satellite business include cable television services of Sky Cable and its subsidiaries in Metro
Manila and in certain provincial areas in the Philippines. Other businesses include movie
production, consumer products and services. The Company’s remaining activity includes
information service.
Geographical Segments
Although Company is organized into three business activities, it operates in three major
geographical areas. In the Philippines, its home country, ABS-CBN is involved in broadcasting,
cable operations and other businesses. In the United States and in other locations (which includes
Middle East, Europe, Australia, Canada and Japan), ABS-CBN operates its cable and satellite
operations to bring television programming outside the Philippines.
Inter-segment Transactions
Segment revenue, segment expense and segment results include transfers among business
segments and geographical segments. The transfers are accounted for at competitive market prices
charged to unrelated customers for similar services. Such transfers are eliminated in
consolidation.
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Other Segment Information
Capital expenditures
Depreciation and amortization
Noncash expenses other than depreciation
and amortization

Segment liabilities

647
(375)
=
P412

=
P815
–
152
(827)
240
(184)
P
=25

P
=141
5
33
(210)

=
P1
18
453

P–
=
18
223

P
=13
17
663

=20,366 P
=24,095
P
=21,319 P

218

P
=2,563
1,909

P
=4,788

333

=1,617
P
1,849

=4,294
P

197

=
P1,090
1,706

=
P4,177

369

P
=1,145
1,126

P
=5,404

=
P3,965 P
P20,259 =
P18,543 P
=20,816 =
=13,055
20,056
3,557
3,581
6,690
–

P3,286
=
18,930

P
=8,049
14,218

678
616
(596)
(629)
=1,077
P
=960 P

(P
=344) P
P1,513
=1,399 =
4,724
–
–
36
71
192
(1,330)
(589)
(618)

P
=8,054
204
P
=8,258

129

=927
P
349

=2,069
P

=4,704
P
–

59
(245)
=63
P

=191
P
11
72
(25)

=4,736
P
128
=4,864
P

90

=
P244
253

=
P1,623

=
P4,417
–

376
(192)
=
P138

=
P53
(52)
5
(52)

=
P4,455
103
=
P4,558

19

P
=245
217

P
=823

P
=2,200
5

214
(138)
P
=193

P
=116
–
3
(2)

P
=1,581
113
P
=1,694

34

=234
P
108

=1,680
P

=2,715
P
–

116
(120)
=191
P

=195
P
–
4
(4)

=1,618
P
169
=1,787
P

(3,881)
(6,646)

(228)
(82)
P
=212

P
=551
–
(137)
108

P
=–
(363)
(P
=363)

2008

(1,777)
(3,508)

(741)
(25)
(P
=66)

=700
P
–
(35)
35

P=
–
(372)
(P
=372)

2008

Consolidated
2007
2006

P2,254 =
P1,575
P
=5,375 =
2,841
4,672
650
175
198
195
(1,713) (1,793) (2,197)

(3,537) P
P29,187 =
P28,020
=40,239 =
(3,526) 14,267 18,979 20,111

(872)
3,448
1,100
34
3 (1,035)
(997)
(646)
=
P97 P
P5,928 =
P4,702
=3,506 =

=
P954
–
–
12

=
P– P
P19,891 =
P17,020
=22,307 =
(556)
–
–
–
(P
=556) P
=19,891 =
P17,020
=22,307 P

Elimination
2007
2006

12

=
P261
99

–

P=
–
–

–

=
P–
–

1,269

P
=3,966
3,269

719

=2,778
P
2,324

752

=
P1,596
2,076
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P
=–
–

=
P3,909 (P
=1,780) (P
=4,059) P
=26,629 =
P29,745
=2,657) (P
=29,677 P

=
P4,632
–

71
(75)
=
P98

=
P97
–
5
–

=
P1,396
236
=
P1,632

Other Businesses
2007
2006
2008

(Amounts in Millions)

Broadcasting and Entertainment
Broadcasting
Cable Satellite
2007
2006
2007
2006
2008
2008

=
P– P
P13,537 =
P11,169
=12,672 =
–
75
217
46
=
P– P
=13,612 =
P11,386
=12,718 P

Segment Assets and Liabilities
Segment assets
Investments in and advances to associates

(P
=345)
2,830
63
(1,210)

=–
P
–
=–
P

2006

3,336
878
(808)
(11)
(7)
(2)
P4,663 P
=3,957
P
=2,116 =

P
=3,168
645
104
(991)

P
=–
–
P
=–

2007

Results
Segment results
Equity in net earnings of associates
Interest income
Finance costs
Foreign exchange losses/gains and others
– net
Income tax
Net income

Revenue
External revenue
Intersegment-revenue
Total revenue

2008

Investment Holding

Business Segment Data
The following tables present revenue and income information and certain assets and liabilities information regarding business segments for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2008:
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Other Segment Information
Segment assets
Capital expenditures:
Property and equipment
Intangible assets

Revenue
External revenue
Inter-segment revenue
Total revenue

P
=28,109
560
985

826
1,742

2,036
1,727

P
=13,084
557
P
=13,641

2006

=28,677
P

=15,940
P
372
=16,312
P

Philippines
2007

P
=31,990

P
=17,785
363
P
=18,148

2008

73
–

P
=3,155

P
=2,613
–
P
=2,613

2008

132
–

=2,351
P

=2,603
P
–
=2,603
P

United States
2007

30
–

=
P2,659

=
P2,816
–
=
P2,816

2006

Others
2007

117
–

P
=926

P
=1,909
–
P
=1,909

77
–

=163
P

=1,397
P
–
=1,397
P

(Amounts in Millions)

2008

20
–

=
P361

P
=1,120
–
P
=1,120

2006

–
–

(P
=3,882)

P
=–
(363)
(P
=363)

2008

–
–

(P
=7,573)

=
P–
(557)
(P
=557)

2006

2,226
1,727

P
=32,189

P
=22,307
–
P
=22,307

2008

1,035
1,742

=25,901
P

=19,940
P
–
=19,940
P

Consolidated
2007

610
985

P
=23,556

P
=17,020
–
P
=17,020

2006

*SGVMC211642*

–
–

(P
=5,290)

=–
P
(372)
(P
=372)

Eliminations
2007

Geographical Segment Data
The following tables present revenue and expenditures and certain assets information regarding geographical segments of ABS-CBN for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2008.
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- 47 6. Cash and Cash Equivalents
This account consists of:
2008

2007

P
=1,475
2,747
P
=4,222

=1,559
P
1,403
=2,962
P

(Amounts in Millions)

Cash on hand and in banks
Short-term investments

Cash in banks earns interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term investments are made
for varying periods of up to 90 days depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.
Interest income from cash and cash equivalents amounted to =
P165 million, =
P140 million and
=83 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively (see Note 28).
P
7. Notes Receivable
The notes receivable represents a portion of the Staple Financing of Red Vulcan Holdings
Corporation which the Parent Company purchased in November 2008 through the Parent
Company’s trust account with a local bank. The notes receivable will mature in May 2009.
Red Vulcan is a wholly owned subsidiary of First Gen Corporation (First Gen), a subsidiary of
FPHC.
8. Trade and Other Receivables
This account consists of:
2008

2007

P
=2,537
992
1,061
274
189
178
314
5,545
440
P
=5,105

=2,293
P
895
882
511
219
214
289
5,303
319
=4,984
P

(Amounts in Millions)

Trade:
Airtime
Subscription fees
Others
Advances to suppliers
Due from related parties (see Note 23)
Advances to employees and talents
Others
Less allowance for doubtful accounts

*SGVMC211642*

95

96

BENPRES AR 2008

- 48 Trade receivables are noninterest-bearing and are generally on 60 to 90-days’ terms. Advances to
supplier, employees, talents and other receivables are usually settled within one year.
For terms and conditions of transactions relating to related parties, refer to Note 23.
Movements of allowance for doubtful accounts follow:
Trade
Subscription
Airtime
Fees

Others

Nontrade

Total

P
=22
18

P
=31
4

P
=319
195

(Amounts in Millions)

Balance at January 1, 2008
Provisions
Effect of business combination
(see Note 2a)
Write-offs and others
Balance at December 31, 2008

P
=205
55
34
(13)
P
=281

1,479
(1,564)
P
=94

148
(162)
P
=26

29
(25)
P
=39

1,690
(1,764)
P
=440

Balance at January 1, 2007
Provisions
Write-offs and others
Balance at December 31, 2007

=
P441
48
(284)
=
P205

=
P58
9
(6)
=
P61

=
P23
20
(21)
=
P22

=
P29
25
(23)
=
P31

=
P551
102
(334)
=
P319

P
=61
118

9. Other Current Assets
This account consists of:
2008

2007

P
=583
374
287
226
16
228
P
=1,714

=1,592
P
153
313
170
–
183
=2,411
P

(Amounts in Millions)

AFS investments
Preproduction expenses
Prepaid taxes
Inventories at net realizable value
Derivative assets (see Note 31)
Prepaid expenses and others
a. AFS Investments

AFS investments consist mainly of investment in Digital Telecoms (Digitel) with a fair market
value of =
P582 million and =
P1,115 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
The fair value adjustments on these investments amounting to =
P285 million and =
P821 million,
as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, are presented as “Unrealized gain on fair
value adjustments of AFS investments” in the equity section of the consolidated balance sheet.
The decrease in the fair market value of investment in Digitel does not constitute significant
and prolonged decline.
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- 49 In 2008, the Parent Company disposed certain of its AFS investments resulting to a gain on
sale of =
P137 million, net of direct costs.
In 2007, the Parent Company disposed 52,027,000 shares of Digitel resulting to a gain on sale
of P
=79 million presented under “Other income and expenses” account in the consolidated
statement of income. The related unrealized gain on fair value adjustments on these shares
that were previously recognized in equity amounting to P
=76 million in 2007 were recognized
in the consolidated statement of income.
b. Inventories at Net Realizable Value (NRV)
Inventories consist mainly of materials and supplies of ABS-CBN, cable, construction and
installation supplies of Sky Cable and records and other consumer products held for sale
by its subsidiaries. The cost of inventories carried at NRV amounted to =
P440 million and
=216 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
P
c. Prepaid expenses include payments for prepaid rentals, transponder services and other various
projects.
10. Long-term Receivables from Related Parties
In 2007, this account consists of the following:
Sky Cable Note issued to ABS-CBN (see Note 2a)
Long-term receivables
Less equity in net losses of Sky Vision

In Millions
=2,499
P
1,434
3,933
40
=3,893
P

On September 20, 2007, in relation to the acquisition by ABS-CBN of 66% of Sky Cable Debt
from third party creditors as discussed in Note 2c, Sky Cable issued two Promissory Notes to
ABS-CBN in the aggregate amount of =
P1,798 million. As a consequence, ABS-CBN became the
eventual lender on record of Sky Cable due to the loans that it absorbed. The loan pays monthly
interest at 3mPDST-F plus 1% with a final maturity of September 2016, as amended on
February 21, 2008 (see Note 18). The Promissory Notes are further governed by the terms and
conditions of the Facility Agreement dated July 2, 2004. Interest income amounted to =
P13 million
and =
P25 million in 2008 and 2007 (see Note 28).
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- 50 This amount of support of ABS-CBN to Sky Cable was in compliant with the Senior Credit
Agreement (SCA) and the First Amendment Agreement dated September 14, 2007, which
increased previous threshold of =
P400 million aggregated advances and guarantees to
=2,250 million (see Note 18).
P
In 2007, the receivables from Sky Cable were recorded at fair value amounting to =
P1,434 million.
Unamortized receivable amounted to =
P364 million as of December 31, 2007. Accretion of
receivable, included as part of interest income, amounted to =
P9 million and P
=10 million in 2008
and 2007, respectively (see Note 28).
In December 2008, the ABS-CBN purchased additional Sky Cable Debt for a consideration of
=103 million or 55% of the principal amount of P
P
=188 million. The receivable from Sky Cable
pays monthly interest at 3mPDST-F plus 1% with final maturity on September 2016.
In 2008, upon consolidation of Sky Cable to ABS-CBN, the long-term receivables from Sky Cable
totaling P
=1,537 million were eliminated and the difference between the carrying value of Sky
Cable’s debt and the carrying value of ABS-CBN’s long-term receivables from Sky Cable
amounting =
P309 million was recognized as gain (see Note 28).
11. Investments in and Advances to Associates
The associates of the Company, all incorporated in the Philippines, are as follows:

Bayantel(a) (c)
FPHC
Rockwell Land Corporation
(Rockwell)(b)
Sky Vision (see Note 2)
Amcara Broadcasting Network,
Incorporated (Amcara)
Star Cinema Productions, Inc.
FPII(b)
First Philippine Infrastructure
Development Corporation
(FPIDC)(b)

Principal Activities
Telecommunications
Investment holdings
Real estate
Investment holdings

Percentage of Ownership
2007
2008
Direct
Indirect
Direct
Indirect
21.8
47.3
21.8
47.3
43.2
–
43.1
–

2006
Direct
Indirect
47.3
18.9
43.8
–

24.5
22.3

24.5
10.2

24.5
22.3

24.5
10.2

24.5
22.3

24.5
10.2

Services
Movie production
Infrastructure

–
–
–

49.0
45.0
–

–
–
48.1

49.0
45.0
50.0

–
–
48.1

49.0
45.0
–

Infrastructure

–

–

–

–

49.0

51.0

(a) The Parent Company has 1% direct equity interest in Bayantel Telecommunications Inc., a subsidiary of Bayantel.
(b) Indirect ownership through FPHC.
(c) Indirect ownership is under voting trust agreement with Lopez.

This account consists of:
2007
2008
(Amounts in Millions)
Investments in shares of stock of associates
(see Notes 1 and 2)
Bayantel guarantees and commitments - net of allowance
for impairment losses of P
=9,641 million in 2008 and
=9,460 million in 2007
P
Advances to associates - net of allowance for impairment
losses P
=3,359 million in 2008 and
=3,753 million in 2007 (see Note 23)
P

P
=14,263

=18,975
P

–

–

4
P
=14,267

4
=18,979
P
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2008

2007

P
=12,503
1,712
–

=14,418
P
1,625
2,883

–
–
48
P
=14,263

–
–
49
=18,975
P

(Amounts in Millions)

FPHC
Rockwell
FPII
Bayantel - net of allowance for impairment losses
of P
=558 million
Sky Vision
Others

Movements of investments in shares of stock of associates follow:
2008

2007

(Amounts in Millions)

Acquisition costs:
Balance at beginning of year
Disposal
Acquisition
Balance at end of year
Accumulated equity in net earnings:
Balance at beginning of year
Equity in net earnings
Dividends received
Loss on dilution of equity interest
Disposal and others
Balance at end of year
Share in equity adjustment from translation
(net of =
P9 million allowance for impairment
losses of investment in Bayantel)
Share in unrealized gain on fair value adjustments
of AFS investments

P
=8,154
(2,341)
–
5,813

=7,970
P
–
184
8,154

13,958
650
(577)
(10)
(320)
13,701

12,462
2,841
(1,064)
(269)
(12)
13,958

(5,308)

(3,194)

57
P
=14,263

57
=18,975
P

Following are information about and major transactions of significant associates and indirect
associates:
a. FPHC
FPHC is involved in management and investment holdings of subsidiaries and associates that
are engaged in, but not limited to, power generation and power distribution, roads and
tollways operations, real estate development, manufacturing and construction, financing and
other services industries. In 2008, FPHC, together with the Parent Company, disposed of its
investment in road and tollways business.
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- 52 The common shares of FPHC are listed and traded in the PSE. The closing stock price of
FPHC is P
=15.25 per share as of December 31, 2008.
Condensed consolidated financial information of FPHC follow:
2008

2007

(Amounts in Millions)

Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net assets
Attributable to:
Equity holders of FPHC
Minority interests
2008
Revenue
Costs and expenses
Net income
Attributable to:
Equity holders of FPHC
Minority interests

P
=46,041
180,966
(53,442)
(104,418)
P
=69,147

P43,248
=
199,708
(41,218)
(112,579)
=89,159
P

P
=27,851
41,296
P
=69,147

=34,838
P
54,321
=89,159
P

2007

2006

(Amounts in Millions)

P
=78,565
(73,111)
P
=5,454

P54,996
=
(43,316)
=11,680
P

P
=57,929
(44,989)
=
P12,940

P
=1,192
4,262
P
=5,454

=4,475
P
7,205
=11,680
P

=
P6,101
6,839
=
P12,940

Indirect Ownership in Manila Electric Company (MERALCO), an Associate of FPHC
MERALCO is operating under a 25-year franchise to construct, operate and maintain an
electric distribution system. MERALCO’s distribution and supply of electricity cover 25
cities and 86 municipalities in Metro Manila and in six provinces surrounding Metro Manila.
On January 23, 2008, FPHC acquired the 40% interest of Union Fenosa Internacional S.A. in
First Philippine Utilities Corporation (FPUC, formerly First Philippine Union Fenosa, Inc.).
Consequently, FPUC became a wholly owned subsidiary of FPHC. FPUC has 22.71%
interest in MERALCO. With this acquisition, the FPHC Group now owns, directly and
indirectly, through FPUC, 33.42% interest in MERALCO.
On March 13, 2009, FPHC entered into an Investment and Cooperation Agreement
(Agreement) with PLDT. The Agreement is designed to allow both companies, directly or
indirectly, to vote their shares in MERALCO based on a mutuality of interest and
proportionate allocation of voting rights. The Agreement, subject to certain conditions and
approvals, contemplates the sale of P
=20,070 million of a total 223,000,000 common shares or
approximately 20% of the outstanding capital stock of MERALCO in favor of PLDT or its
affiliates. FPHC and PLDT agreed on certain corporate governance principles such as
nomination of directors to the BOD of MERALCO. Such event after balance sheet date will
reduce FPHC’s total direct and indirect ownership in MERALCO to approximately 13.43%.
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2008

2007

(Amounts in Millions)

Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net assets
Attributable to:
Equity holders of MERALCO
Minority interest

2008
Revenue
Costs and expenses
Net income
Attributable to:
Equity holders of MERALCO
Minority interest

P
=191,775
(188,642)
P
=3,133
P
=2,800
333
P
=3,133

P
=48,658
129,726
(48,057)
(74,168)
P
=56,159

P46,565
=
130,727
(48,110)
(74,161)
=55,021
P

P
=52,607
3,552
P
=56,159

=51,680
P
3,341
=55,021
P

2007

2006

(Amounts in Millions)

=
P200,693
(196,657)
=
P4,036
=
P3,759
277
=
P4,036

=
P190,787
(176,906)
=
P13,881
=
P13,686
195
=
P13,881

b. FPII and FPIDC
FPII is a holding company which wholly owns FPIDC. FPIDC owns 67% of Manila North
Luzon Tollways Corporation (MNTC) and 46% of Tollways Management Corporation
(TMC). MNTC rehabilitated, expanded and operates the North Luzon Expressway (NLEX)
while TMC is the operation and management company for the NLEX.
Disposal of FPII
On November 13, 2008, the Parent Company and FPHC completed the sale of their equity
interest in FPII to MPIC (the Buyer). Under the transaction, MPIC acquired the roads and
tollways business of the Parent Company and FPHC. MPIC now owns approximately 99.84%
stake in FPII, a resulting 67.1% effective interest in MNTC, the concession holder of the
NLEX, and a 46% effective interest in TMC.
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- 54 The aggregate consideration of the sale is P
=12.3 billion, inclusive of the Parent Company’s
share at 48.1% amounting to P
=6.0 billion. The aggregate consideration is equivalent to a price
per FPII share of P
=2.47. MPIC paid the Parent Company and FPHC cash amounting to
=11.8 billion and assumed the liabilities advances amounting to =
P
P0.5 billion. The Parent
Company’s share in cash is P
=5.8 billion and liabilities assumed by MPIC is =
P0.2 billion. The
Parent Company recognized gain on sale amounting to =
P3.2 billion, net of transaction cost of
=141 million presented under “Gain on sale on investments” in the consolidated statement of
P
income.
Under the Share Purchase Agreement, the sellers:
(1) Granted to Buyer of the option to acquire from First Balfour, Inc., the company which
awarded the Tarlac-La Union Toll Expressway Project, in consideration of the
reimbursement to FPHC and/or First Balfour, Inc. of documented advances or equity
contributions which amounted to P
=25 million as of the date of the Share Purchase
Agreement, including the condition that the exercise of the option shall be subject to the
right of first refusal of the shareholders of Private Infra Development Corporation;
(2) Granted to the Buyer the option to acquire all of FPHC’s rights and interests and assume
all of FPHC’s obligations, under all agreements with the Bases Convention Development
Authority (BCDA) in respect of the operation and maintenance of the Subic-Clark-Tarlac
Extension at no additional costs, including the condition that the exercise of the option is
subject to obtaining the necessary consents of FPHC’s consortium partners and the
BCDA;
(3) Caused the distribution to FPII stockholders of record as of the Closing Date, through a
declaration of scrip dividends, all FPIDC’s rights to receive any share in the gains realized
by Leighton Asia Limited on any sale of its shares.
Acquisition of FPII
In 2007, the Parent Company and FPHC acquired FPII and subsequently assigned and
conveyed to FPII their ownership in FPIDC common shares, by way of absolute ownership
and free from all liens and encumbrances, executed through a Deed of Assignment (DOA).
After the assignment of shares, FPII became 50.0% owned by FPHC and 48.1% owned by the
Parent Company.
Condensed consolidated financial information of FPII as of December 31, 2007 and for the
year ended December 31, 2007 and FPIDC for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006
follows:
FPII

Amount
(In Millions)

Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net assets

P2,363
=
16,910
(1,059)
(8,374)
=9,840
P
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FPII

Amount
(In Millions)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of FPII/ FPIDC
Minority interest

=6,988
P
2,852
=9,840
P

FPIDC

2007

2006

P
=5,499
(3,303)
P
=2,196

P5,709
=
(3,995)
=1,714
P

P
=1,498
698
P
=2,196

=1,177
P
537
=1,714
P

(Amounts in Millions)

Revenue
Costs and expenses
Net income
Attributable to:
Equity holders of FPII/FPIDC
Minority interest
c. Rockwell

Rockwell is engaged in real estate development, sale or lease of residential and commercial
lots and units and lease of mall facilities.
Issuance of Subscription on Increase in Capital Stock of Rockwell
In December 2007, the Parent Company subscribed to an additional 177 million common
shares and 674 million preferred shares out of the increase in the authorized capital stock of
Rockwell. Such additional investment amounted to =
P184 million. On July 31, 2008, the SEC
approved the increase in Rockwell’s authorized capital stock, accordingly the subscribed
shares have been issued to the Parent Company.
Condensed financial information for Rockwell follows:
2008

2007

P
=5,399
6,829
(3,052)
(2,194)
P
=6,982

=6,638
P
5,648
(1,787)
(3,868)
=6,631
P

(Amounts in Millions)

Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net assets
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- 56 2008
Revenue
Costs and expenses
Net income

2007

2006

P3,467
=
(2,991)
=476
P

=
P2,931
(2,562)
P
=369

(Amounts in Millions)

P
=3,514
(2,911)
P
=603

d. Bayantel
Bayantel and Radio Communications of the Philippines, Inc. (RCPI), a subsidiary of Bayantel,
are duly enfranchised to provide telecommunications services of all types under Republic Act
(RA) No. 7925, “An Act to Promote and Govern the Development of Philippine
Telecommunications and the Delivery of Public Telecommunications Services.”
As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Parent Company’s total investments, deposits in and
advances to Bayantel (before any allowance for impairment losses and accumulated equity in
net losses) amounted to =
P11,858 million and =
P11,677 million, respectively.
The Parent Company has set up an allowance for impairment losses on its investments in and
advances to Bayantel, including additional claims that may arise from its guarantees and
commitments to Bayantel, amounting to =
P18,763 million and =
P18,784 million as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
By virtue of the Parent Company’s guarantees and commitments to Bayantel, the Parent
Company recognized the indirect obligations as “Estimated liabilities from guarantees and
commitments” amounting to US$145 million and US$167 million as of December 31, 2008
and 2007, respectively, with equivalent Philippine Peso amounts of P
=6,905 million and
=7,107 million, respectively. In 2008, the accumulated payments made to convertible
P
preferred shares of Bayantel were charged to the estimated liabilities from guarantees and
commitments.
Guarantees on Redemption of the Convertible Preferred Shares
Under the Guarantee, the Parent Company agreed to advance to each holder, on behalf of
Bayantel, such amount that the holder is entitled to receive from Bayantel with respect to the
dividend payments. These advances amounted to US$27 million (equivalent to
=1,277 million) and US$23 million (equivalent to =
P
P940 million) as of December 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively. Pursuant to this Guarantee, the Parent Company and Bayantel entered into
an Indemnity Agreement where Bayantel agreed to indemnify the Parent Company in the
event that it is required to pay the guaranteed obligations. Under the Indemnity Agreement,
Bayantel shall indemnify and keep the Parent Company indemnified by paying the guaranteed
obligations actually paid within 45 days from the date of such payment. Bayantel shall also
indemnify the Parent Company for all costs, liabilities, losses and expenses that it may incur
by reason of, in connection with, or in relation to the guarantee.
Advances made by the Parent Company effective November 2002 bear interest at LIBOR plus
1% on the value of the convertible preferred shares as of May 31, 2002.
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- 57 The convertible preferred shares were subject to mandatory redemption on January 8, 2003 at
US$50 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends and a final dividend that will provide
holders with an effective annual yield of 6.5% compounded annually from issue date to the
date of redemption. The Parent Company, pursuant to the guarantee, has likewise guaranteed
full payment of the convertible preferred shares at its accreted value at maturity date. On
January 8, 2003, Bayantel and the Parent Company were unable to redeem the shares. The
Parent Company is presently negotiating with the preferred shareholders on its settlement. As
of December 31, 2008, no actual redemption has been made by Bayantel and the Parent
Company.
Commitments to Purchase Bayantel Shares from Bayantel Shareholders
The Parent Company and Lopez have entered into a Shareholders’ Agreement (SA) with
certain shareholders (option holders) of Bayantel where the shareholders have the option to
require the Parent Company and Lopez to purchase shares of Bayantel (option shares) from
them under certain conditions. The options can be exercised upon the occurrence of certain
events specified in the SA or in 2002, whichever comes first. The purchase price of the option
share shall be the greater of the aggregate cost price in US dollars of the relevant option shares
paid by the shareholders thereof amounting to an initial investment of approximately US$20
million plus interest at the US Prime Rate compounded annually from the date of the relevant
purchase to the date of the exercise of the option or the fair market value of the option share.
The Parent Company has provided the following amounts for certain Bayantel options due on
October 24, 2002 before payments made on December 2, 2002:
1) Amount owed to Chase Manhattan Bank (Chase) - US$6 million as of commencement
date of BSMP; and
2) Amount owed to AIF - US$43 million as of commencement date of BSMP.
On November 29, 2007, the Parent Company and Lopez together settled the US$43 million
worth of debt held by AIF, of which they are co-obligors. The debt was settled for US$32
million, with the Parent Company paying US$26 million and Lopez paying US$6 million.
The payment effectively resulted to the transfer of the underlying Bayantel shares,
which the Parent Company has fully provided for and reversal of the corresponding allowance
for impairment losses amounting to =
P457 million in 2007 (see Note 28). The shares were
actually transferred to the Parent Company on January 30, 2008. These shares were included
in the renewal of the VTA between Lopez and the Parent Company, where voting rights in
Bayantel were assigned by the Parent Company to Lopez.
Voting Trust Agreement
The Parent Company has an existing VTA with Lopez, as renewed on June 12, 2008, where
the Parent Company assigned the voting rights in Bayantel to Lopez.
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- 58 As of December 31, 2008, the voting rights assigned to Lopez is 21.92%. For financial
reporting purposes, Lopez retained control of Bayantel and continues to consolidate Bayantel
in its consolidated financial statements.
Equity in Net Earnings/Losses of Bayantel
Starting in 2001, the Parent Company discontinued the recognition of its share in the losses of
Bayantel. The accumulated losses in Bayantel reduced the carrying value of the Parent
Company’s investment in Bayantel to zero. If Bayantel subsequently reports profits, the
Parent Company will resume recognizing its share on these profits if the Parent Company’s
share on the cumulative unrecognized net profits exceeded the cumulative unrecognized net
losses. The net cumulative unrecognized net losses amount to =
P4,190 million and
=1,639 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
P
Status of Operations of Bayantel
Bayantel has increased its level of revenue because of its wireless local loop (WLL) service
and data service. WLL has increased the Company’s Local Exchange Carrier (LEC)
subscriber base. Moreover, in 2007, the Company entered into a joint agreement with MultiMedia Telephony, Inc., increasing its WLL coverage service area in Metro Manila. Data
service continues to be a major source of revenue stream because of the Company’s capability
to provide broadband and seamless service to customers with its upgraded internet backbone
network and core data service network.
Bayantel still has a deficit of P
=28.6 billion in 2008 and =
P25.2 billion in 2007 and a capital
deficiency of P
=16.5 billion and =
P13.0 billion as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively,
due to losses arising from its US Dollar debt and preferred shares subject to mandatory
redemption. However, because of the positive operating cash flows and the results of
Bayantel’s Rehabilitation Plan (Plan), Bayantel has continued to meet its loan service
requirements.
The Plan, which was reviewed and evaluated by a court appointed receiver (Receiver), was
approved by the Pasig Regional Trial Court (Court) in a decision dated June 28, 2004
(Decision). Pursuant to the Plan, the level of sustainable debt was reduced to US$325 million
for a period of 19 years and the unsustainable debt will be converted into an appropriate
instrument that shall not be a financial burden for the Company. Moreover, a Monitoring
Committee (MC) was formed composing of representatives from all classes of the restructured
debt and the Receiver’s role was limited to monitoring and overseeing the implementation of
the Plan.
The Court approval, however, covers only claims against Bayantel and did not include RCPI.
Notwithstanding, the Court enjoined Bayantel to procure the restructuring of RCPI’s debt
under the same terms and conditions. As of December 31, 2008, Bayantel has successfully
restructured all RCPI debt pursuant to the Decision.
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- 59 There are appeals filed by majority of the creditors for the review of the Decision. The
unsecured creditors are seeking for the increase in the level of sustainable debt from
$325.0 million to $471.0 million to be repaid in 12 years. The secured creditors, on the other
hand, are appealing the pari-passu decision of the Court. Except for the appeal on pari-passu
filed by a secured creditor, Philippine National Bank (PNB), all the appeals were consolidated.
The consolidated appeals were dismissed by the Court of Appeals (CA) for lack of merit in
2006. The appeals were filed with the Supreme Court (SC) and are still pending resolution as
of December 31, 2008.
Condensed consolidated financial information of Bayantel follows:
2008

2007

(Amounts in Millions)

Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net capital deficiency attributable to equity
holders of Bayantel
2008
Revenue
Costs and expenses
Net income (loss)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of Bayantel
Minority interest

P
=2,681
14,904
(16,304)
(16,848)

P2,531
=
14,945
(16,637)
(14,876)

(P
=15,567)

(P
=14,037)

2007

(Amounts in Millions)

2006

P
=7,947
(10,476)
(P
=2,529)

=10,776
P
(7,453)
=3,323
P

=
P7,575
(6,601)
=
P974

(P
=2,529)
–
(P
=2,529)

=3,323
P
–
=3,323
P

=
P974
–
=
P974

e. Sky Vision
Equity in Net Earnings/Losses of Sky Vision
The Parent Company discontinued the recognition of its share in the losses of Sky Vision.
The accumulated losses in Sky Vision reduced the carrying value of the Parent Company’s
investment in Sky Vision to zero. If Sky Vision subsequently reports profits, the Parent
Company will resume recognizing its share on these profits if the Parent Company’s share on
the cumulative unrecognized net profits exceeded the cumulative unrecognized net losses.
Consolidation of Sky Cable
As a result of the conversion of Sky Cable Note (see Note 2a), the equity interest of Sky
Vision in Sky Cable was diluted from 81.8% to 9.9%. Sky Vision ceased to consolidate Sky
Cable effective March 15, 2008, the conversion date. The 2008 consolidated financial
information of Sky Vision includes financial results of Sky Cable up to March 15, 2008.
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- 60 Condensed consolidated financial information of Sky Vision follows:
2008

2007

(Amounts in Millions)

Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net capital deficiency attributable to equity
holders of Sky Vision
2008
Revenue
Costs and expenses
Net income (loss)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of Sky Vision
Minority interest
f.

P
=2,734
14,904
(16,500)
(17,041)

P2,607
=
14,944
(15,764)
(14,820)

(P
=15,903)

(P
=13,033)

2007

2006

(Amounts in Millions)

P
=7,831
(10,696)
(P
=2,865)

=10,868
P
(7,540)
=3,328
P

=
P7,575
(6,601)
=
P974

(P
=2,865)
–
(P
=2,865)

=3,328
P
–
=3,328
P

=
P974
–
=
P974

Corporate Information Solutions, Inc. (CIS)
The Parent Company had 49% investment in CIS in 2005. In 2006, the Parent Company gave
up this investment as settlement for payables it has with MERALCO. The excess of payable
over the carrying value of the investment in CIS amounted to =
P286 million and is shown in the
2006 consolidated statement of income as part of “Foreign exchange losses/gains and others”
account.

Advances to Associates
Details of this account follow:
2008

2007

P
=3,359

=
P3,753

–
4
3,363
3,359
P
=4

–
4
3,757
3,753
=
P4

(Amounts in Millions)

Bayantel
Sky Vision - net of accumulated equity
in net losses of P
=203 million in 2007; converted in
2008 (see Note 2a)
Others
Allowance of impairment losses (see note 24)

Provision for impairment losses of advances to Bayantel amounting to =
P181 million, =
P216 million
and =
P237 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, are shown as part of losses on investments
and advances to related parties.
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Details and movements of this account are as follows:

Buildings
Land
and
and Land
Improvements Improvements

2008

Television,
Radio, Movie,
and Auxiliary
Equipment

Other
Equipment

Construction
in Progress

Equipment
in Transit

Total

P
=90
513

P
=–
–

P
=20,857
2,238

(Amounts in Millions)

Cost
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Effect of business
combination
(see Note 2a)
Disposals/retirements
Reclassifications and other
adjustments
Balance at end of year
Accumulated
Depreciation and
Amortization
Balance at beginning of year
Depreciation and
amortization
Disposals/retirements
Reclassifications and other
adjustments
Balance at end of year
Net Book Value

P
=639
53

P
=10,058
71

78
–

P
=6,178
912

102
(44)

P
=3,892
689

4,218
(110)

501
(129)

64
834

76
10,263

260
11,458

56
5,009

10

2,679

5,178

3,085

–
–

491
–

1
11
P
=823

7
3,177
P
=7,086

Land and Land
Improvements

902
(99)

46
–

(449)
168

21
67

28
27,799

–

–

10,952

–
–

–
–

–
–
P
=168

–
–
P
=67

466
(112)

18
5,999
P
=5,459

Buildings and
Improvements

15
(1)

4
3,443
P
=1,566

2007
Television,
Radio, Movie,
and Auxiliary
Construction in
Progress
Equipment Other Equipment

4,960
(284)

1,859
(211)
30
12,630
P
=15,169

Total

(Amounts in Millions)

Cost
Balance at beginning
of year
Additions
Disposals/retirements
Reclassifications and other
adjustments
Balance at end of year
Accumulated
Depreciation
and Amortization
Balance at beginning
of year
Depreciation and
amortization
Disposals/retirements
Reclassifications and other
adjustments
Balance at end of year
Net Book Value

= 639
P
–
–

P
= 9,988
1
(4)

=
P 5,765
343
(2)

=
P 3,537
405
(80)

–
639

73
10,058

72
6,178

30
3,892

9

2,135

4,809

2,791

1
–
–
10
=629
P

503
(2)
43
2,679
=
P7,379

407
(1)
(37)
5,178
=
P1,000

316
(49)
27
3,085
=
P807

P
= 116
286
–
(312)
90

P
= 20,045
1,035
(86)
(137)
20,857

–

9,744

–
–

1,227
(52)

–
–
=
P90

33
10,952
=
P9,905
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- 62 Carrying values of certain property and equipment pledged as collateral to secure ABS-CBN, Sky
Cable and PCC’s long-term debt (see Note 18) are as follows.
2008

2007

P
=8,852
1,993
P
=10,845

=8,367
P
–
=8,367
P

(Amounts in Millions)

ABS-CBN
Sky Cable and PCC
Net book value

Unamortized borrowing costs capitalized as part of property and equipment amounted to
=907 million and =
P
P934 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. No borrowing
cost was capitalized beginning 2002.
Property and equipment includes the following amounts where ABS-CBN is a lessee under a
finance lease (see Note 32):
2008

2007

P
=724
(504)
P
=220

P699
=
(389)
=310
P

(Amounts in Millions)

Cost - capitalized finance lease
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

The land in San Juan, Metro Manila transferred by Home Cable Holdings, Inc. (Home Cable) to
Sky Cable, with a carrying value of =
P74 million, is subject to an ongoing litigation wherein the
original sale of the land to Home Cable is being contested. It is the opinion of Sky Cable’s legal
counsel that it is possible, but not probable that the claim will be settled against Sky Cable.
Accordingly, no provision for any liability has been made in the consolidated financial statements.
As of April 14, 2009, negotiations are still ongoing.
13. Goodwill
Movement of this account follow:
2008

2007

(Amount in Millions)

Cost:
Balance at beginning of year, as previously reported
Prior period adjustment
Balance at beginning of year, as restated
Effect of business combination (see Note 2a)
Excess of acquisition cost over the carrying value
of minority interest (see Note 2d)
Balance at end of year
Accumulated impairment loss Balance at beginning and end of year

P
=126
20
146
1,462

=126
P
20
146
–

558
2,166

–
146

(22)
P
=2,144

(22)
=124
P
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- 63 On January 29, 2007, ABS-CBN Interactive acquired the remaining 25% interest in ABS-CBN
Multimedia from the latter’s individual shareholders for =
P11 million. The carrying value of the
interest acquired amounted to =
P4 million as of the acquisition date. The share in the excess of
cash paid over the carrying value of interest acquired amounting to =
P7 million was recorded as
goodwill (as adjusted) in the 2007 consolidated balance sheet.
On December 20, 2000, ABS-CBN Interactive established an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan available to its officers and employees. The total share options of 11,259,447
shares were purchased by the Parent Company from the officers and employees in 2007.
Subsequently, the Parent Company exercised the options thus acquiring the minority interest on
ABS-CBN Interactive. The purchase was accounted for as an acquisition of minority interest.
The share in the excess of cash paid over the value of the shares amounting to =
P13 million was
recorded as goodwill (as adjusted, see Note 13) in the consolidated balance sheet.
In 2008, the share in the excess of cash paid over the carrying value of shares previously
recognized as part of equity, are adjusted to goodwill.
14. Program Rights and Other Intangible Assets
This account consists of the following:
2008

Program
Rights
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Effect of business combination
(see Note 2a)
Translation adjustment
Amortization and write-off
Balance at end of year
Less current portion
Noncurrent portion

Production
and
Distribution
Customer
Cable
Business Relationships Channels -CPI
Middle East
(Amounts in Millions)

Total

P
=2,025
1,555

P
=–
–

P
=460
–

P
=100
–

P
=87
172

P
=2,672
1,727

–
–
(1,170)
2,410
1,354
P
=1,056

607
–
(69)
538
–
P
=538

–
–
–
460
–
P
=460

–
15
(5)
110
–
P
=110

–
–
(166)
93
86
P
=7

607
15
(1,410)
3,611
1,440
P
=2,171

Program
Rights
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Translation adjustment
Amortization and write-off
Balance at end of year
Less current portion
Noncurrent portion

Others

=
P1,537
1,584
–
(1,096)
2,025
929
=
P1,096

2007
Production
and
Cable
Distribution
Channels Business CPI
Middle East
(Amounts in Millions)
=460
P
–
–
–
460
–
=460
P

=125
P
–
(19)
(6)
100
–
=100
P

Others
P97
=
158
–
(169)
86
78
P
=8

Total
=2,219
P
1,742
(19)
(1,271)
2,671
1,007
=
P1,664
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- 64 Others include story, music and production rights, movie in process and video rights and record
master.
The customer relationships acquired in a business combination relate to the core subscribers of
Sky Cable’s postpaid, prepaid and platinum, broadband and other Sky Cable’s subsidiaries at
conversion date who have sustained relationship with Sky Cable and its subsidiaries for more than
one year (see Note 2a).
The cable channels include Lifestyle Channel, Cinema One and Myx Channel, which were
acquired by CPI from Sky Vision. Based on ABS-CBN’s analysis of all the relevant factors, there
is no foreseeable limit to the period over which this business is expected to generate net cash
inflows for ABS-CBN and therefore, assessed to have an indefinite life. As such, yearly
amortization has been discontinued. The carrying amounts is net of previously recognized
amortization amounting to P
=115 million. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, cable channels
were tested for impairment (see Note 15).
Production and distribution business for the Middle East operations represents payments arising
from the sponsorship agreement between Arab Digital Distribution (ADD) and ABS-CBN Middle
East. This agreement grants ABS-CBN the right to operate in the Middle East with ADD as
sponsor for a period of 25 years.
15. Impairment Testing of Goodwill and Intangible Assets with
Indefinite Useful Lives of ABS-CBN
The Company performs impairment testing annually or more frequently when there are indications
of impairment for goodwill and intangible assets with infinite lives. The Company has identified
that cable channels of CPI have an infinite life. The Company performed impairment testing of
these assets as of December 31.
Cable channels of CPI amounted to =
P460 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007
(see Note 14).
For the impairment test of goodwill relating to Sky Cable and goodwill of ABS-CBN in its
subsidiary, the recoverable amount and the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit was
compared. The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is its value in use. Value in use
was determined using cash flow projections which were based on financial budgets approved by
its subsidiaries’ senior management covering a five-year period. Due to the low interest rate
environment, the discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was 10.38% in 2008, a slight
difference from 10.54% in 2007. A 0–5% perpetuity growth was assumed at the end of the fiveyear forecast period.
Key Assumptions
The following describes each key assumption on which the Company management has based its
cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of its goodwill in its subsidiaries and cable
channels:
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- 65 Gross Revenue. On average, gross revenue of the subsidiaries over the next five years were
projected to grow in line with the economy or with nominal Gross Domestic Product. This
assumes that the market share of the subsidiaries in their respective industries will be flat on the
assumption that the industries also grow at par with the economy. Historically, advertising
spending growth had a direct correlation with economic growth.
Operating Expenses. On the average, operating expenses were projected to increase at a singledigit growth rate and at a slower pace than revenue.
Gross Margins. Increased efficiencies over the next five years are expected to result in margin
improvements.
Discount Rate. The discount rate used to arrive at the present value of future cash flows was
ABS-CBN’s Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC). WACC was based on the appropriate
weights of debt and equity, which were multiplied with the assumed costs of debt and equity.
16. Other Noncurrent Assets
This account consists of the following:
2008

2007

P
=2,681
371

=1,707
P
77

218
67
56
139
P
=3,532

218

(Amounts in Millions)

Tax credits with tax credit certificates (TCCs)
AFS investments (see Note 9)
Deposits - net of allowance for impairment losses
of P
=4,615 (see Note 23)
Investment property
Pension asset (Note 20)
Deferred charges and others

–

36
198
=2,236
P

a. Tax Credits
Tax credits represent claims of ABS-CBN on the government arising from airing of
government commercials and advertisements. Pursuant to PD No. 1362, these will be
collected in the form of TCCs which ABS-CBN can use in paying for import duties and taxes
on its broadcasting equipment. ABS-CBN expects to utilize these tax credits within the next
10 years or until 2018. The balance as of December 31, 2008 includes claims of Sky Cable.
In 2008, Sky Cable recognized a provision for impairment of tax credits amounting to
=99.7 million included in the “General and administrative expenses” account in the
P
consolidated statement of income.
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- 66 b. AFS Investments
AFS investments represent investments in ordinary shares and therefore have no fixed
maturity date or coupon rate. AFS equity investments with a carrying value of =
P15 million as
of December 31, 2008 and 2007, were pledged as part of the collateral to secure ABS-CBN’s
long-term debt (see Note 18).
As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company’s share in unrealized fair value adjustments
of these AFS equity investments amounting to loss of =
P12 million and gain of =
P14 million,
respectively, were directly credited to equity.
On November 12, 2008, ABS-CBN Global, a subsidiary, purchased a total of 2,524,488 shares
of Series P common stock of Multiply, Inc. (Multiply), a Delaware, US corporation engaged
in independent social networking site, equivalent to 5% equity interest. ABS-CBN Global
Cayman purchased the investment at US$1.98 per share for an aggregate purchase price of
US$5 million. The Stock Purchase Agreement provides that during the two-year period
immediately following the Initial Closing date, Multiply may issue additional 1,964,051
shares of Series P common stock at the same price per share as the original purchase for an
aggregate purchase price of up to US$3.9 million, in exchange for in-kind contributions of
marketing and advertising supplied by ABS-CBN Global, intended to be used to acquire new
users of Multiply’s services.
c. Deposits
Deposits are payments for options to purchase shares of stock of Bayantel (net of allowance
for impairment loss of =
P2,217 million) and Sky Vision (net of allowance for impairment loss
of P
=2,398 million) from Lopez at a pre-agreed price. The options will be exercised by the
Parent Company when the underlying shares of the associates are listed in the PSE in
connection with their initial public offering.
No impairment loss was recognized in 2008 and 2007. The Parent Company recognized an
impairment loss of =
P335 million in 2006 on its deposits in Sky Vision.
d. Investment Property
This account pertains to parcel of land purchased by ABS-CBN International, with a twostorey house constructed thereon, located in Redwood City, California. The real property
which was acquired in July 2008 at a purchase price of US$1.4 million (P
=67 million) was
intended to be held by ABS-CBN International as investment property. To fund the
acquisition, ABS-CBN International availed loan from Citibank North America amounting to
US$1.05 million (P
=50 million) (see Note 18).
e. Deferred Charges
Deferred charges as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 amounting to =
P35 million and
=122 million, respectively, mainly pertain to excess of cost over revenue from sale and
P
installation of decoders and set-top boxes. Amortization of deferred charges amounted to
=30 million, =
P
P40 million and =
P27 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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This account consists of the following:
2008

2007

P
=1,567
5,858

=1,769
P
4,524

1,367
527
336
1,063
852
468
444
P
=12,482

1,091
774
595
744
640
324
365
=10,826
P

(Amounts in Millions)

Trade
Accrued interest (see Note 18)
Accrued expenses:
Production costs and other expenses
Salaries and other employee benefits
Taxes
Current portion of obligations for program rights
Due to related parties (see Note 23)
Deferred revenue
Others

Trade payables are noninterest-bearing and are generally on 30-days’ payment terms. For terms
and conditions of transactions relating to due to related parties, refer to Note 23.
Accrued interest includes PCC’s overdue and accrued interest amounting to =
P133 million as of
December 31, 2008 which were restructured as a Yield Recapture Obligation (YRO) and bears an
interest of 5.50% per annum. The YRO shall be paid out of the excess cash of PCC at any time
during the term of the loan. If there is no excess cash or the same is not sufficient to cover the
YRO, PCC shall pay the YRO on November 21, 2009, the maturity date (see Note 18).
Obligations for program rights represent liabilities to foreign and local film suppliers for program
rights purchased by ABS-CBN and its subsidiaries. The liabilities are noninterest-bearing and are
generally payable in equal monthly, quarterly or semi-annual installments over a period of one to
two years. The amounts presented in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2008 and
2007 represent the face amounts of the obligations, net of unearned discounts amounting to
=
P14 million and =
P23 million, respectively.
Deferred revenue pertains to subscription fees billed or received in advance.
18. Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings
This account consists of loans and borrowings of:
Current
2007
2008

Noncurrent
2007
2008

2008

Total

2007

(Amounts in Millions)

Parent Company
ABS-CBN
Sky Cable
PCC
ABS-CBN International

P
=8,642
902
–
213
17
P
=9,774

=
P8,182
575
–
–
13
=
P8,770

P
=12
6,828
691
–
63
P
=7,594

=
P12
4,901
–
–
27
=
P4,940

P
=8,654
7,730
691
213
80
P
=17,368

=
P8,194
5,476
–
–
40
=
P13,710
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- 68 Parent Company
Details of the Parent Company’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings are as follows:
Current
2007
2008

Noncurrent
2007
2008

2008

Total

2007

(Amounts in Millions)

7.875% Notes
LTCPs
4.2% Perpetual Convertible
Bonds

P
=7,128
1,514

=
P6,192
1,990

P
=–
–

=
P–
–

P
=7,128
1,514

=
P6,192
1,990

–
P
=8,642

–
=
P8,182

12
P
=12

12
=
P12

12
P
=8,654

12
=
P8,194

a. 7.875% Notes
On June 17, 1997, the Parent Company issued 7.875% Notes of US$150 million listed in the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The 7.875% Notes which matured on December 19, 2002, bear
interest at 7.875% per annum, net of withholding taxes, payable in arrears in equal semiannual installments in June and December of each year. At the option of the Noteholders, the
Parent Company will redeem all (but not less than all) of such holder’s 7.875% Notes at any
time upon the occurrence of the Restructuring Event as defined in the Indenture, which
excludes the event described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, at 100% of the
principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest to the date of redemption and any
additional amounts in accordance with the terms of the 7.875% Notes.
At the option of the Parent Company, the 7.875% Notes may be redeemed at 100% of the
principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest to the date of redemption and any
additional amounts in accordance with the terms of the 7.875% Notes, in whole or in any part,
at anytime by giving 30 to 45 days notice to Noteholders on certain conditions as defined
under the terms of the 7.875% Notes.
The 7.875% Notes constitute direct, subordinated and unsecured obligations of the Parent
Company and shall at all times rank pari-passu and without any preference or priority among
themselves. The payment obligations of the Parent Company under the 7.875% Notes shall,
save for such exceptions as may be provided by mandatory provision of law and subject to the
terms of the 7.875% Notes, at all times rank at least equally with all its other present and
future unsecured obligations.
The 7.875% Notes provide certain restrictions with respect to, among others, incurrence of
debt and merger or consolidation, except in certain circumstances.
In 2002, the Parent Company defaulted on its principal and interest payments on the 7.875%
Notes. The terms of the 7.875% Notes provide that the principal amount, together with
accrued interest thereon and all other amounts due and payable, become immediately due and
payable.
The Parent Company has made good faith semi-annual interest payments on the 7.875% Notes
since 2002.
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On August 9, 1996, the SEC approved the issuance of P
=3 billion worth of LTCPs to finance
the Parent Company’s investments in real property development, telecommunications,
infrastructure projects and power-related projects of its subsidiaries and associates.
The LTCPs were offered and issued in two series, “A-1” for =
P1,000 million and “A-2” for
=2,000 million. Series A-1 was fully paid in 2001. Series A-2 was supposed to be repaid in
P
one lump sum on October 1, 2003 with interest at 1-1/8% above the 91-day TB rate, also
payable quarterly in arrears.
The LTCPs provide certain restrictions and requirements with respect to, among others,
incurrence of mortgage, pledge, lien or other encumbrance over the whole or any part of the
Parent Company’s assets or revenue, merger or consolidation, sales, lease, transfer or
otherwise disposal of all or substantially all of its assets, dividend distribution and
maintenance of certain financial ratios.
The Parent Company also defaulted on its interest payments on the LTCP’s in 2002 and on its
principal in 2003. The terms of the LTCP provide for the payment of penalties should there
be an event of default on interest and/or principal computed at 24% per annum from the date
of default.
In 2008, the Parent Company purchased debt from 11 LTCP holders holding a total value of
=480 million, inclusive of accrued interest of =
P
P4 million. The debt was purchased for
=288 million or at 60% of the principal amount of debt. The purchase resulted to a gain on
P
acquisition of debt amounting to P
=189 million (shown as part of the “Other income” account
in the 2008 consolidated statement of income), net of direct costs (see Note 28).
In 2007, the Parent Company purchased debt from five LTCP holders holding a total value of
=10 million, inclusive of accrued interest of =
P
P0.1 million. The debt was purchased for
=6 million or at 60% of the principal amount of debt. The purchase resulted to a gain on
P
acquisition of debt amounting to P
=4 million (shown as part of the “Other income” account in
the 2007 consolidated statement of income) (see Note 28).
c. 4.2% Perpetual Convertible Bonds (Bonds)
The 4.2% Bonds, listed in the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and issued in registered form in
denomination of US$1.49 each, bear interest from November 26, 1994 at 4.2% per annum, net
of withholding taxes, determined at a fixed exchange rate and payable annually in arrears on
November 30 of each year commencing on November 30, 1995. The Bonds may be converted
on or after November 26, 1995 into fully paid common shares of the Parent Company by
reference to the Philippine Peso equivalent of the US Dollar-denominated principal amount of
the Bonds, determined at a fixed exchange rate, and at an initial conversion price of =
P4.20 per
share, subject to adjustment in certain events. The Bonds are redeemable at the option of the
Parent Company, in whole or in part, at any time after November 26, 1998 at a price equal to
the principal amount of the Bonds or market price of the shares issuable upon conversion,
whichever is higher, subject to certain conditions.
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- 70 As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, 29,449 units have been converted into 324,337,262
common shares. Certain number of shares equivalent to 3,421,410 shares, are reserved to
cover any conversion of the outstanding Bonds into common shares and stock dividends
declared during the year.
The Bonds constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and subject to certain exceptions,
unsecured obligations of the Parent Company and shall at all times rank pari-passu and
without any preference or priority among themselves and at least equally with all other present
and future unsecured obligations of the Parent Company, except for such exceptions as may be
provided by applicable legislation. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, P
=12 million of the
Bonds are outstanding.
As discussed in Note 1b, the Parent Company is currently in negotiation with the creditors to
address all its financial obligations. Interest and other finance charges, including penalties
recognized by the Parent Company amounted to =
P991 million in 2008, =
P1,211 million in 2007 and
=1,329 million in 2006.
P
ABS-CBN
Details of the Parent Company’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings are as follows:
Current
2008

Noncurrent
2008

2007

2007

Total
2008

2007

(Amounts in Millions)

Bank loans
Term loans:
SCA:
Tranche B
Tranche C
Banco de Oro Universal Bank (BDO)
Syndicated loans
Security Bank Corporation (Security
Bank)
Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI)
Obligations under capital lease
(see Note 32)

P
=738

=400
P

P
=–

=–
P

P
=738

=400
P

–
–
40
–

–
–
10
–

1,794
403
1,286
1,217

1,782
403
1,323
1,177

1,794
403
1,326
1,217

1,782
403
1,333
1,177

–
–

–
–

989
979

–
–

989
979

–
–

124
P
=902

165
=575
P

160
P
=6,828

216
=4,901
P

284
P
=7,730

381
=5,476
P

a. Bank Loans
This represents peso and dollar-denominated loans obtained from local banks which bear
average annual interest rates of 8.85% in 2008 and 7.40% in 2007.
b. Term Loans under the Senior Credit Agreement (SCA)
On June 18, 2004, ABS-CBN entered into an SCA with several foreign and local banks
(Original Lenders) for a US$120 million dual currency syndicated term loan facility for the
purpose of refinancing existing indebtedness incurred for the construction of the Eugenio
Lopez, Jr. Communications Center, additional investment in the cable TV business and
funding capital expenditures and working capital requirements of ABS-CBN. The SCA is
classified into three groups namely:
 Tranche A, a floating rate facility (3.5% + LIBOR) amounting to US$62 million
 Tranche B, a floating rate facility (3.5% + MART1 T-bill) amounting to =
P2,688 million
P560 million
 Tranche C, a fixed rate facility (3.5% + FXTN) amounting to =
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- 71 The term loans have all been availed of in March 2005. ABS-CBN’s obligations under the
SCA is secured and covered by a Mortgage Trust Indenture (MTI) which consists of
substantially all of ABS-CBN’s real property and moveable assets used in connection with its
business and insurance proceeds related thereto. Further, ABS-CBN’s obligation under the
SCA is jointly and severally guaranteed by its principal subsidiaries.
The SCA contains provision regarding the maintenance of certain financial ratios and limiting,
among others, the incurrence of additional debt, the payment of dividends, making
investments, the issuing or selling of ABS-CBN’s capital stock or some of its subsidiaries, the
selling or exchanging of assets, creation of liens and effecting mergers. As of December 31,
2008, ABS-CBN is in compliance with the provisions of the SCA.
To manage its exposures to foreign currency exchange and interest rate risks relating to the
facility drawdowns, ABS-CBN entered into interest rate and cross currency swap contracts
with counterparty banks. These contracts were all terminated in 2007 as a result of the
prepayment of the underlying Tranche A of the SCA Facility (see Note 32).
On January 11, 2007, ABS-CBN signed a commitment letter with ABN Amro Bank N.V., BPI
Capital Corporation and ING Bank N.V. (together, the Mandated Lead Arrangers,) to arrange
and underwrite on a firm commitment basis the refinancing/restructuring of the existing longterm loans. Consequently, the execution copies of the agreement amending the SCA facility
were signed on March 27, 2007. The major amendments to the existing agreement that were
agreed-upon with the Mandated Lead Arrangers are as follows:
(1) Additional amount available for drawdown amounting to US$5 million. The additional
amount for drawdown was subsequently drawn on March 29, 2007.
(2) Bullet repayment schemes for Tranche B and Tranche C maturing in March 2012 while
maintaining the original structure of the Tranche A facility with a final due date of until
June 2009. Interest payments on a quarterly basis.
All outstanding US dollar- denominated loans under Tranche A amounting to US$ 27
million (P
=1,132 million), were fully paid on December 18, 2007 from the proceeds of the
=1,350 million term loan from BDO
P
(3) Reduction from 3.50% to an average of about 2.20% of the applicable margins added to
the benchmark interest rates.
(4) All other assets, except for the Quezon City Broadcast Complex and certain broadcast
machinery and equipment contained therein, are removed from the MTI and no longer
form part of the security package.
(5) Certain mandatory prepayment provisions are removed.
(6) No financial ratio requirement on ABS-CBN’s parent company financial statements while
maintaining a financial ratio requirement on a consolidated basis but at more relaxed
thresholds.
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- 72 (7) ABS-CBN is allowed to make interest-bearing advances and guarantees to Sky Vision of
up to P
=400 million.
(8) ABS-CBN is allowed to convert into equity outstanding advances amounting to US$30
million including interest and P
=437 million, respectively, made to Sky Vision by ABSCBN and CPI (see Note 2a).
On September 14, 2007, the relevant parties to the SCA facility executed the First Amendment
Agreement. The amendments centered mainly on the following provisions:
 Allow ABS-CBN to incur additional unsecured financial indebtedness;
 Increase the amount of support that ABS-CBN can extend to Sky Vision and/or Sky Cable
from =
P400 million to =
P2,250 million.
The amendment of the SCA facility substantially modified the terms of Tranche C.
Accordingly, this resulted in the derecognition of the original liability and recognition of a
new liability. Loss on derecognition of debt, included as part of “Gain on acquisition and
exchange of debt” account in the 2007 consolidated statement of income, amounted to
=16 million (P
P
=11 million, net of tax) (see Note 28).
On December 19, 2007, the relevant parties to the SCA facility executed the 2nd Amendment
Agreement. The amendments centered mainly on the removal of the pro-rata requirement in
cases of prepayment.
c. Term Loan Facility with BDO
On December 13, 2007, ABS-CBN together with BDO signed a =
P1,350 million secured
facility to refinance the entire Tranche A of the SCA facility equivalent to US$31 million.
The refinancing effectively extended the maturity from June 2009 to December 2012 with an
interest rate of 3mPDSTF plus 2.15%.
The BDO facility contains provision regarding the maintenance of certain financial ratios and
limiting, among others, the incurrence of additional debt, the payment of dividends, making
investments, the issuing or selling of ABS-CBN’s capital stock or some of its subsidiaries, the
selling or exchanging of assets, creation of liens and effecting mergers. As of December 31,
2008, ABS-CBN is in compliance with the provisions of the BDO facility.
ABS-CBN’s obligation under the BDO facility is jointly and severally guaranteed by its
principal subsidiaries.
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- 73 d. Syndicated Loans for Sky Cable Debt
In the invitation dated July 27, 2007, ABS-CBN invited holders of outstanding loan
obligations of Sky Cable evidenced by promissory notes issued under the Facility Agreement
dated July 2, 2004 among Sky Vision, Sky Cable, Home Cable and certain institutions and
Equitable PCI Bank - Trust Banking (“Sky Cable Debt”) to offer to:
i. sell their Sky Cable Debt to ABS-CBN for up to 70% of the principal amount of the Sky

Cable Debt (“Cash Offer”); or

ii. exchange their Sky Cable Debt for notes at up to 100% of the principal amount of the Sky

Cable Debt to be exchanged (“Exchange Offer”).

Holders of =
P944 million Sky Cable Debt opted for the Cash Offer while holders of
=854 million opted for the Exchange Offer. The total loans acquired by ABS-CBN amounted
P
to =
P1,798 million or 66% of Sky Cable total outstanding debt of P
=2,800 million. Thus,
ABS-CBN became Sky Cable’s creditor.
Cash Offer. On September 20, 2007, ABS-CBN settled the =
P944 million Sky Cable loans in
the amount of P
=662 million. To finance the settlement of the loans, ABS-CBN signed a
syndicated loan for =
P800 million with ING Bank N.V. and Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.,
Manila Branch with Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd., Manila Branch acting as the facility agent.
The loan is unsecured and unsubordinated with an interest rate of 3mPHIBOR plus 2.75% per
annum and payable on September 20, 2012. The total amount of money withdrawn is
=662 million.
P
Exchange Offer. On September 18, 2007, ABS-CBN successfully signed a syndicated loan
for P
=854 million with the previous lenders of Sky Cable, namely, United Coconut Planters
Bank, Bank of the Philippine Islands, Mega International Commercial Bank Co., Ltd., Olga
Vendivel and Wise Capital Investment & Trust Company, Inc., with Banco De Oro - EPCI,
Inc. acting as the facility agent. The loan is unsecured and unsubordinated with a fixed
coupon of 2% with payable on September 18, 2014.
ABS-CBN’s obligation under these facilities is jointly and severally guaranteed by its
principal subsidiaries.
Both loan facilities contain provisions regarding the maintenance of certain financial ratios
and limiting, among others, the incurrence of additional debt, the payment of dividends,
making investments, the issuing or selling of ABS-CBN’s capital stock or some of its
subsidiaries, the selling or exchanging of assets, creation of liens and effecting mergers. As of
December 31, 2008, ABS-CBN is in compliance with the provisions of the syndicated loans.
Debt discount which represents the difference between the nominal value and fair value of the
debt issued related to the Exchange Offer amounted to =
P298 million as of December 31, 2007.
ABS-CBN recognized “Day 1” profit of =
P206 million (P
=144 million, net of tax) in 2007 which
represents the difference between the fair value of Sky Cable Debt acquired and the fair value
of the consideration given (i.e., ABS-CBN debt and cash). This was included as part of “Gain
on extinguishment and acquisition of debt” account in the 2007 consolidated statement of
income (see Note 28).
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- 74 On February 21, 2008, ABS-CBN and the remaining third party creditors of Sky Cable
approved the 2nd amendment of the Sky Cable Debt under a Facility Agreement. The
amendment included the rescheduling of the principal amortization to commence in
December 2011 with final maturity in September 2016.
e. Term Loan Facility with Security Bank
On August 15, 2008, the ABS-CBN successfully signed a =
P1,000 million loan facility with
Security Bank jointly arranged by BPI Capital Corp and SB Capital Investment Corp. This
was fully drawn on August 27, 2008. The funds are used for capital expenditure and general
corporate purposes. The loan is unsecured, unsubordinated and guaranteed by certain of the
Company’s subsidiaries. The loan interest rate is 3mPDSTF plus 2.15% per annum, payable
of August 27, 2013.
f.

Term Loan Facility with BPI
On September 30, 2008, the ABS-CBN successfully signed a =
P2,000 million loan facility with
BPI Bank of the Philippine Islands Asset Management and Trust Group as Investment
Manager for ALFM Peso Bond Fund, Inc., Bank of the Philippine Islands Asset Management
and Trust Group as Trustee for various Trust Accounts, The Philippine American Life and
General Insurance Company and The Insular Life Assurance Company, Ltd., as Fixed Loan
Lenders and Allied Banking Corporation and Allied Savings Bank as Variable Loan Lenders.
This was jointly arranged by BPI Capital Corp and SB Capital Investment Corp. The funds
are used for capital expenditure and general corporate purposes. The loan facility is unsecured
and unsubordinated and guaranteed by certain of the ABS-CBN’s subsidiaries.
On October 30, 2008, the Company availed =
P1,000 million from the Fixed Loan Lenders with
fixed loan interest rate of 7yrPDSTF plus 1.5% per annum. The loan is payable on
October 30, 2015.
On September 30, 2008, the Company signed the Combined Facility Agreement with Security
Bank Corporation, lender of the facility agreement executed on August 15, 2008, BPI Bank of
the Philippine Islands Asset Management and Trust Group as Investment Manager for ALFM
Peso Bond Fund, Inc., Bank of the Philippine Islands Asset Management and Trust Group as
Trustee for various Trust Accounts, The Philippine American Life and General Insurance
Company and The Insular Life Assurance Company, Ltd., as Fixed Loan Lenders and Allied
Banking Corporation and Allied Savings Bank as Variable Loan Lenders, all lenders of the
facility agreement executed on September 30, 2008, together with BPI Capital Corp and SB
Capital Investment Corp acting as joint arrangers of both facilities. The agreement shall
combine both loan facilities in all material respects to be administered by BPI Asset
Management and Trust Group acting as facility agent.
The debt issue Cost on the combined facility which represents documentary stamp taxes,
arranger, underwriting and other legal fees amounted to =
P33 million.
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- 75 Schedule of Maturities and Repayments
Repayments of long-term debt of ABS-CBN based on nominal values are scheduled as follows:
SCA
Tranche B

Tranche C

BDO Facility

Syndicated
Loans

Security
Bank/BPI
Facilities

Total

=
P–
–
–
–
2,000
=
P2,000

=
P44
108
378
3,725
2,854
=
P7,109

(Amounts in Millions)

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013-2015

=
P–
–
–
1,850
–
=
P1,850

=
P–
–
–
403
–
=
P403

=
P44
108
378
810
–
=
P1,340

=
P–
–
–
662
854
=
P1,516

Details of unamortized transaction costs and debt discount, presented as a deduction from
ABS-CBN’s long-term debt as of December 31, are as follows:
2008

2007

P
=256
144
P
=400

=290
P
135
=425
P

(Amounts in Millions)

Debt discount
Transaction costs

Debt issue costs are amortized over the term of the loans using the effective interest rate method as
follows:
Transactions Costs

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013-2015

SCATranche B
P
=15
17
18
5
–
=55
P

BDO Facility

Syndicated
Loans

Security
Bank/BPI
Facilities

Debt
Discount

Total

=
P3
4
4
2
–
=
P13

=
P7
8
9
9
9
=
P42

P
=4
4
5
6
15
=
P34

P
=36
39
44
47
90
=
P256

=
P65
72
80
69
114
=
P400

(Amounts in Millions)

Amortization of debt issue costs are as follows:
2008
Debt discount (charged to interest
expense)
Transaction costs (charged under
amortization of debt issue
costs)

2007

2006

P
=33

=
P9

=
P–

24
P
=57

102
=
P111

84
=
P84

(Amounts in Millions)
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- 76 The 2007 amortization includes unamortized transaction costs of US$860,000 (P
=36 million) as of
prepayment date of the Tranche A. This should have been amortized until the final maturity of the
Tranche A in June 2009 had it not been prepaid in December 2007.
Sky Cable
Under the Debt Restructuring Agreement (DRA) dated July 2, 2004, the restructured loans, which
bear interest equal to the 90-day MART1 rate or the 91-day treasury bill rate in the absence of
MART1, plus 1%, is payable in seven years inclusive of a two-year grace period, in 20 unequal
consecutive quarterly amortizations commencing on September 30, 2006.
On February 21, 2008, ABS-CBN and the remaining third party creditors of Sky Cable approved
the 2nd amendment to the Facility Agreement. The amendment includes the rescheduling of the
principal amortizations to commence in December 2011 with final maturity in September 2016.
The agreement provided for certain requirements and restrictions with respect to, among others,
the maintenance of certain financial ratios, capital expenditures and business acquisition outside
the business plan, incurrence of additional debt, declaration of cash dividends, amendments of its
Articles of Incorporation or By-laws, reorganization, undertaking a quasi reorganization, reducing
its capital or change its fiscal year. In 2008, Sky Cable did not comply with one of the financial
ratios required by the creditors in the agreement. On November 3, 2008, Sky Cable received a
waiver of this ratio from the majority of its creditors as required by the agreement.
The terms of the collateral trust indenture covering a portion of Sky Vision and Sky Cable’s loans
provide that Sky Cable shall at all times maintain the required collateral value, which consists of
various property and equipment (see Note 12) sufficient to cover at least 200% of the total
outstanding amount of the loan.
The schedule of debt repayment based on the 2nd amendment to the Facility Agreement is as
follows:
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

Amount

(In Millions)

=
P71
225
56
51
98
190
=
P691

PCC
On February 27, 2004, PCC, together with its creditors, agreed to restructure PCC’s long-term
debt. The restructured debt, which bears an interest rate equal to MART1 plus a spread ranging
from 2.0% to 4.5% per annum, net of taxes, is payable in 15 quarterly installments commencing
on May 21, 2006.
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- 77 The debt agreement provided for certain requirements and restrictions with respect to, among
others, the maintenance of certain financial ratios, material purchases or disposals of property and
equipment, incurrence of additional debt, declaration of cash dividends, and significant changes in
the ownership or control of PCC. Starting 2005, PCC did not comply with certain financial ratios
required by the creditors in the debt agreement. As a result of non-compliance with the loan
covenants, the entire unpaid principal amount of the loan became due and demandable.
Accordingly, the loan has been classified as current liability in the 2008 consolidated balance
sheet. PCC, however, continues to service the interest payments at maturity dates based on the
debt agreement and has not received any demand for payment.
As of December 31, 2008, the outstanding principal balance of the debt has been reduced to
=212.3 million and expected to be fully paid by November 2009. The interest-bearing loans are
P
collateralized by the following:
a. Mortgage trust indenture on certain property and equipment of PCC, Sky Cable and other
subsidiaries with a total carrying value of =
P1,346.7 million as of December 31, 2008 (see
Note 10). Sound value of the properties amounted to P
=1,543.9 million as of December 31,
2008. The sound value of the collateral shall at all times be equivalent to at least 200% of the
aggregate amount of the loans.
b. Joint and several suretyship agreement with Sky Vision (see Note 19).
ABS-CBN International
The details of interest-bearing loans and borrowings of ABS-CBN International are as follows:

Term loan
Obligations under capital
lease (see Note 32)

Total

Current

2007
Noncurrent

Total

P
=48

P
=49

=
P–

=
P–

=
P–

15
P
=63

31
P
=80

13
=
P13

27
=
P27

40
=
P40

Current

2008
Noncurrent

P
=1
16
P
=17

(Amounts in Millions)

On August 19, 2008, ABS-CBN International availed of a loan from Citibank, North America
amounting to US$1.05 million (P
=50 million). The loan has a term of 15 years to be repaid based
on a 20-year amortization. The loan bears interest at a fixed rate per annum equal to 125 basis
points in excess of Citibank’s 15-year Cost of Funds in effect three business days prior to the
funding of the Loan, which Cost of Funds rate is based on the applicable term Libor Swap Rate.
Within five years of the loan agreement, an amount not exceeding 20% of the original amount
may be prepaid in any 12-month period without incurring a prepayment fee.
The schedule of debt repayment is as follows:
Year

Amount
(Amounts in Thousands)

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013-2028

=
P1,383
1,465
1,552
1,643
43,630
=
P49,673
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12
34
P
=384

Deferred credits
Others

–
31
=97
P

Customer deposits relate to Sky Cable’s subscription agreement with customers. Customers’
deposits are initially recognized at fair value. The discount is recognized as deferred credits and
amortized over the estimated remaining term of the deposit as other income. Customers’ deposits
- 78of- service.
are refunded to the customers upon termination
19.
Noncurrent
Liabilities
20. Other
Pension
Plans
2007
2008
Parent Company
(Amounts
in
Millions)
The Company’s pension plans are composed of funded (Parent Company, ABS-CBN and Sky
Cable)
and unfunded
Customers’
deposits(other subsidiaries), noncontributory defined benefit
=except
–
P
=168retirement plans,P
for ABS-CBN
(contributory),
covering
Obligations International
for program rights
- net of current
portionsubstantially all of its permanent employees.
152

51

2008

2007

2006

18,149

5,517

–

P
=17,573

=8,490
P

P
=17,301

(see Note 17)

In November
2008, obligation
the BOD authorized the amendment of the Benpres Holdings
Corporation
Asset retirement
15
18
DeferredPlan
credits
–
Retirement
to increase the retirement benefit from 150% of the final12monthly salary of the
Others to 200% of the final monthly salary and remove the personal retirement
31
34
employee
account feature
=97
P
P
=384funds shall revert
of the Retirement Plan, provided that any funds in the personal retirement
to the
general fund of the Retirement Plan. The employees agreed to the changes on the Retirement
Customer
deposits relate to Sky Cable’s subscription agreement with customers. Customers’
Plan.
deposits are initially recognized at fair value. The discount is recognized as deferred credits and
amortized
over tables
the estimated
remaining
term of the
as other
income.netCustomers’
deposits
The following
summarize
the components
of deposit
the Parent
Company’s
benefit expense
(income)
recognized
in the consolidated
statement
of income and the funded status and amounts
are
refunded
to the customers
upon termination
of service.
recognized in the consolidated balance sheet for the plan:
Net Benefit
Expense (Income)
20. Pension
Plans
Parent Company
(Amounts in Thousands)
The Company’s pension plans are composed of funded (Parent Company, ABS-CBN and Sky
Current service cost
=11,400
P
P
=5,958
P
=5,848
Cable)
and unfunded (other subsidiaries), noncontributory
defined benefit
retirement plans,
except
Expected return on plan assets
(7,127)
(4,013)
(5,147)
for ABS-CBN
International
(contributory),
covering
substantially
all
of
its
permanent
employees.
Interest cost
6,352
2,351
6,439
Amortization of past service cost

In November 2008, the BOD authorized the amendment of the Benpres Holdings Corporation
Actuarial loss recognized
Retirement
Plan
increase the retirement benefit from–150% of the final
during
thetoyear
2,160monthly salary of the
–
employee
to
200%
of
the
final
monthly
salary
and
remove
the
personal
retirement account
feature
Gain recognized due to asset limit
(1,491)
(4,910)
–
of the
Plan,(income)
provided that any funds in
the personal retirement
to the
NetRetirement
benefit expense
=16,811funds shall revert
P
(P
=614)
P
=25,289
general fund of the Retirement Plan. The employees agreed to the changes on the Retirement
Plan.Actual return on Parent Company’s
plan assets

The following tables summarize the components of the Parent Company’s net benefit expense
(income) recognized in the consolidated statement of income and the funded status and amounts
recognized in the consolidated balance sheet for the plan:

*SGVMC211642*

Net Benefit Expense (Income)
2008
Current service cost
Expected return on plan assets
Interest cost
Amortization of past service cost
Actuarial loss recognized
during the year
Gain recognized due to asset limit
Net benefit expense (income)
Actual return on Parent Company’s
plan assets

2007

(Amounts in Thousands)

P
=5,848
(5,147)
6,439
18,149

2006

=11,400
P
(7,127)
6,352
5,517

P
=5,958
(4,013)
2,351
–

–
–
P
=25,289

2,160
(1,491)
=16,811
P

–
(4,910)
(P
=614)

P
=17,573

=8,490
P

P
=17,301
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- 79 Pension Asset
2008

2007

(Amounts in Thousands)

Fair value of plan assets
Present value of obligation
Unrecognized actuarial loss
Pension asset

P
=130,197
(97,907)
32,290
23,350
P
=55,640

=
P102,932
(93,368)
9,564
26,529
=
P36,093

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation of the Parent Company follow:
2008

2007

(Amounts in Thousands)

Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year
Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial loss (gain) on obligation
Defined benefit obligation at end of year

P
=93,368
5,848
1,850
6,439
(9,598)
P
=97,907

=
P67,406
11,400
11,042
6,352
(2,832)
=
P93,368

Changes in the fair value of plan assets of the Parent Company follow:
2008

2007

(Amounts in Thousands)

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual contributions
Actuarial gain (loss)
Expected return on plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at end of year

P
=102,932
44,838
(22,720)
5,147
P
=130,197

=
P71,798
22,644
1,363
7,127
=
P102,932

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as
follows:
2008
Shares of stock
Government instruments
Other securities and debt instruments

34
29
37

(In Percentage)

2007
28
63
9

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing
on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.
The Parent Company expects to contribute =
P8 million to its defined benefit obligation in 2009.
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- 80 The principal assumptions used as of January 1, 2008 and 2007 in determining obligations for the
Parent Company’s plans are shown below:
2008
12
5
10

Discount rate
Expected rate of return on plan assets
Future salary rate increase

2007
(In Percentage)

8
5
10

Amounts for the current and previous years are as follows:
Defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Surplus
Experience adjustments on plan
liabilities

2008
P
=97,907
130,197
32,290
(4,912)

2007
=
P93,368
102,932
9,564

2006
=
P67,406
71,798
4,392

2005
=
P20,896
27,297
6,401

(18,088)

30,429

–

ABS-CBN
ABS-CBN’s pension plan is composed of funded (ABS-CBN) and unfunded (ABS-CBN’s
Subsidiaries), noncontributory and actuarially computed pension plan, except for
ABS-CBN International (contributory) covering substantially all of it’s employees. The benefits
are based on years of service and compensation during the last year of employment.
The following tables summarize the components of consolidated net benefit expense (income)
recognized in the consolidated statement of income and accrued pension obligation recognized in
the consolidated balance sheet.
Net Benefit Expense
2008

Current service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Net actuarial loss (gain)
Curtailment gain
Past service cost
Benefits paid out of the Company’s
fund
Net pension expense

2007

(Amounts in Millions)

2006

P
=138
122
(22)
12
(5)
(3)

=
P118
71
(17)
23
–
–

=
P53
36
(14)
–
–
–

20
P
=262

–
=
P195

–
=
P75
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- 81 Benefit Liability
2008

2007

P
=569
(356)
213
579
P
=792

P860
=
(264)
596
(195)
=401
P

(Amounts in Millions)

Present value of obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Unfunded obligation
Unrecognized net actuarial gain (loss)
Benefit liability

Consolidated changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
2008

2007

P
=860
295
(743)
137
122
(98)
(4)
P
=569

=854
P
–
(143)
118
71
(38)
(2)
=860
P

(Amounts in Millions)

Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year
Effect of business combination
Actuarial gain on obligation
Current service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Curtailment gain
Defined benefit obligation at end of year
Change in the fair value of plan assets of ABS-CBN are as follows:

2008

2007

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Effect of business combination
Expected return on plan assets
Actual contribution
Actuarial gains (losses)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year

P
=264
16
22
70
(16)
P
=356

=176
P
–
17
70
1
=264
P

Actual return (loss) on Parent Company’s plan assets

(P
=20)

=19
P

(Amounts in Millions)

ABS-CBN expects to contribute P
=150 million to its defined benefit obligation in 2009.
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as
follows:
2008
Cash
Investment in FXTN/FRTN
Investment in government securities and bonds
Investment in stocks
- 82 Others

23
42
18
14
3
100
100

(Percentage)

2007
–
50
17
25
8
100
100
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on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.
The principal assumptions used as of January 1, 2008, 2007 and 2006 in determining pension
benefit obligations for ABS-CBN’s plans are shown below:
2008
16
7
6

Discount rate
Expected rate of return on plan assets
Future salary rate increases

2007
7
9
9

2006
11
10
7

Amounts for the current and previous two periods are as follows:
2008
Defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Deficit
Experience adjustments on defined
benefit obligation
Experience adjustments on plan assets

(P
=569)
330
(239)

2007

2006

2005

(P
=854)
176
(678)

(P
=344)
139
(205)

(Amounts in Millions)

(P
=860)
264
(596)

(223)
(16)

–
1

(120)
23

–
–

21. Equity/Minority Interests
Details of the Parent Company’s capital stock as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 follow:
Number of Shares

Amount
(In Millions)

Common shares - =
P1 par value
Authorized shares

5,500,000,000

P
=5,500

Issued shares

4,581,544,408

P
=4,581

Details of the increase (decrease) in minority interests follow:
Adjustment in minority interests for goodwill in
PCC (see Note 2d) and Sky Cable (see Note 2b)
Others

2008

2007

(P
=118)
17
(P
=101)

P–
=
21
=21
P
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The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share
computations:
2008

2007

P
=2,927

=5,365
P

P
=4,297

1

1

1

P
=2,928

=5,366
P

P
=4,298

4,581,544,408
3,421,410

4,581,544,408
3,421,410

4,581,544,408
3,421,410

4,584,965,818

4,584,965,818

4,584,965,818

P
=0.6388
0.6386

=1.171
P
1.170

P
=0.9379
0.9374

2006

(Amounts in Millions, except Number of Shares)

(a) Income attributable to equity holders of the parent
Interest on convertible bonds and amortization
of bond issue cost
(b) Net income attributable to equity holders
of the Parent Company - diluted
(c) Weighted average number of common
shares - basic (see Note 21)
Conversion of bonds (see Note 18)
(d) Adjusted weighted average common
shares – diluted
Per Share Amounts
Basic (a/c)
Diluted (b/d)

There have been no other transactions involving shares or potential shares between the financial
reporting date and the date of completion of these consolidated financial statements.
23. Related Party Transactions
In addition to the related party transactions as discussed in Notes 10, 11 and 33, transactions of the
Parent Company with related parties involve deposits for options to purchase shares of stock of
Bayantel and Sky Vision at a pre-agreed price from Lopez (see Note 16).
As discussed in Note 18, certain obligations of ABS-CBN are jointly and severally guaranteed by
its principal subsidiaries.
The outstanding balances of the Parent Company resulting from the related party transactions as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007 are carried in the following accounts in the consolidated balance
sheet:
2008

2007

P
=4,833
3,938
852
189

=4,833
P
3,757
640
219

–

3,893

(Amounts in Millions)

Deposits (see Note 16)
Advances to associates (see Note 11)
Due to related parties (see Note 17)
Due from related parties (see Note 8)
Long-term receivables from related parties
(see Note 10)
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2008
Associates:

License fees charged by CPI to Sky Cable (a),
PCC and Home Cable
Blocktime fees paid by the Parent Company
to Amcara
Interest on noncurrent receivable from Sky
Cable (a) (see Note 10)
Management fees charged to Sky Cable (a)
Blocktime fees paid by Studio 23 to Amcara

Affiliates:
Expenses paid by the Parent Company and subsidiaries
to MERALCO, Bayantel and other related parties
Termination cost charges of Bayantel to ABS-CBN
Global
Airtime revenue from MNTC(b), Bayantel and
MERALCO
Expenses and charges paid for by the ABS-CBN which
are reimbursed by the concerned related parties
(a)
(b)

2007
(Amounts in Millions)

2006

P
=109

=
P105

=
P105

40

–

–

30
6
–

35
21
54

115
–
57

541

425

413

267

277

236

56

74

51

16

28

37

Effective March 15, 2008, Sky Cable became a subsidiary of the Company (see Note 2a)
Disposed of in November 13, 2008.

a. License Fees Charged by CPI to Sky Cable
CPI has an existing cable lease agreement (Agreement) with Sky Cable for the airing of the
cable channels (see Note 14) to the franchise areas of Sky Cable and its cable affiliates. The
initial Agreement with Sky Cable is for a period of five years effective January 1, 2001,
renewable on a yearly basis upon mutual consent of both parties. Said Agreement was
renewed for one year in 2006 and 2007 and under negotiation for 2008. Under the terms of
the Agreement, CPI receives license fees from Sky Cable and its cable affiliates computed
based on agreed percentage of subscription revenue of Sky Cable and its cable affiliates. As
the owner of the said cable channels, CPI develops and produces its own shows and acquires
program rights from various foreign and local suppliers.
b. Blocktime Fees Paid by Studio 23 to Amcara
ABS-CBN and Studio 23 owns the program rights being aired in UHF Channel 23 of Amcara.
ABS-CBN and Studio 23 has an existing blocktime agreement with Amcara for its provincial
operations.
c. Management Fees Charged to Sky Cable
ABS-CBN renders management services to Sky Cable through designated employees.
d. Other transactions with associates include cash advances for working capital requirements.
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The transactions from related parties are made at normal market prices. Outstanding balances as
of year-end are unsecured, interest-free and settlement occurs in cash except for the long-term
receivables from Sky Cable. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related
party receivables or payables, except those disclosed in Notes 2 and 11. As of December 31, 2008
and 2007, allowance for impairment losses relating to advances to associates amounted to
=3,934 million and =
P
P3,753 million, respectively (see Note 11). This assessment is undertaken
each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in
which the related party operates.
Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Company
2008
Compensation
Pension benefits (see Note 20)
Other employee benefits
Termination benefits

P
=749
46
29
–
P
=824

2007

2006

(Amounts in Millions)

=484
P
44
22
1
=551
P

P
=452
49
29
–
P
=530

2007

2006

P
=2,995

=2,715
P

P
=2,208

1,132
812

566
447

507
488

614
240

549
192

537
162

195
178
100
831
P
=7,097

102
184
100
881
=5,736
P

94
520
139
686
=
P5,341

24. General and Administrative Expenses
This account consists of:
2008
Personnel expenses (see Note 20)
Depreciation and amortization
of property and equipment
(see Note 12)
Contracted services
Facilities related expenses
(see Notes 23 and 32)
Taxes and licenses
Provision for doubtful accounts (see
Note 8)
Advertising and promotions
Amusement and recreation
Other expenses (see Note 23)

(Amounts in Millions)
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- 87 25. Production Costs
This account consists of:
2008
Personnel expenses and talent fees
(see Note 20)
Facilities related expenses
(see Notes 15, 23 and 32)
Amortization of program rights
(see Note 14)
Depreciation and amortization of
property and equipment
(see Note 12)
Other program expenses
(see Notes 15 and 23)

2007

2006

P
=2,659

=
P2,662

=
P2,412

1,092

972

833

830

853

734

706

645

635

1,004
P
=6,291

1,361
=
P6,493

1,099
=
P5,713

(Amounts in Millions)

Other program expenses of ABS-CBN consist of production expenses including, but not limited
to, set requirements, prizes, transportation, advertising and other expenses related to the
promotional activities of various projects during the year.
26. Cost of Sales and Services
This account consists of:
2008
Facilities related expenses
(see Notes 23 and 32)
Personnel expenses (see Note 20)
Amortization of program rights
(see Note 14)
Termination costs (see Note 23)
Inventory cost
Depreciation and amortization
(see Note 12)
Other expenses

2007

2006

(Amounts in Millions)

P
=1,043
358

=582
P
229

P
=424
201

341
229
224

243
285
282

152
375
133

21
2,009
P
=4,225

16
1,149
=2,786
P

47
894
=
P2,226

*SGVMC211642*

BENPRES AR 2008

- 88 27. Agency Commissions, Incentives and Co-producers’ Share
This account consists of:
2008
Agency commissions
Incentives and co-producers’ share

2007

2006

=
P1,890
811
=
P2,701

=
P1,547
737
=
P2,284

(Amounts in Millions)

P
=1,876
780
P
=2,656

Industry rules allow ABS-CBN to sell up to 18 minutes of commercial spots per hour of television
programming. These spots are sold mainly through advertising agencies which act as the buying
agents of advertisers, and to a lesser extent, directly to advertisers. Substantially, all gross airtime
revenue, including airtime sold directly to advertisers, is subject to a standard of 15% agency
commission.
Incentives include early payment and early placement discount as well as commissions paid to
ABS-CBN’s account executives and cable operators.
ABS-CBN has co-produced shows which are programs produced by ABS-CBN together with
independent producers. Under this arrangement, ABS-CBN provides the technical facilities and
airtime and handles the marketing of the shows. The co-producers shoulder all other costs of
production. Revenue earned on these shows is shared between ABS-CBN and the co-producer.
28. Expenses (Income)
Foreign Exchange Losses/Gains and Others
This account consists of:
2008
Foreign exchange gains (losses)
Reversal of estimated liabilities
from guarantees and
commitments (see Note 10)
Gain on extinguishment and
acquisition of debt
(see Notes 2a, 10 and 18)
Mark-to-market gain (loss)
(see Note 31)
Rental income (see Note 32)
Royalty income
Management fees (see Note 23)

2007

2006

=
P3,242

=
P920

1,082

–

–

498

194

–

216
109
24
14

(348)
110
39
78

(Amounts in Millions)

(P
=2,209)

(115)
103
25
70

(Forward)
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Reversal of allowance for
impairment losses on
investments and advances to
related parties - net
(see Note 11)
Loss on dilution of equity interest
(see Note 11)
Excess of payable over carrying
value of disposed investment
(see Note 10)
Others (see Note 16)

2007

2006

P
=22

=
P241

(P
=572)

(10)

(269)

(Amounts in Millions)

–
288
P
=34

–
161
=
P3,448

(65)
286
448
=
P1,100

Others mainly pertain to income from gate receipts, studio tours and other miscellaneous revenue.
Finance Costs
This account consists of:
2008
Interest expense (see Note 18)
Bank service charges
Amortization of debt issue costs
(see Note 18)
Hedge cost (see Note 31)

2007

2006

P
=1,663
26

=
P1,616
16

=
P1,962
13

24
–
P
=1,713

102
59
=
P1,793

84
138
=
P2,197

2007

2006

=
P1,554
40
22
=
P1,616

=
P1,893
35
34
=
P1,962

(Amounts in Millions)

The following are the sources of interest expense (see Note 18):
2008
Long-term debt (see Note 18)
Obligations under capital lease
Bank loans

P
=1,569
46
48
P
=1,663

(Amounts in Millions)
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The following are the sources of interest income:
2008
Cash and cash equivalents
(see Note 6)
Long-term receivable from related
parties (see Note 10)

2007

2006

P
=165

=
P140

=
P83

30
P
=195

35
=
P175

115
=
P198

(Amounts in Millions)

29. Income Tax
The Company’s deductible temporary differences, NOLCO and MCIT in the consolidated
financial statements follow:
Parent Company
Unrealized foreign exchange losses
NOLCO
MCIT
Accrued retirement and unamortized past service cost
Accrued interest

ABS-CBN
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Allowance for decline in value of inventories
NOLCO
Accrued retirement expense and others
MCIT
Unearned revenue

2008

2007

P
=4,419
521
30
13
P
=4,983

=
P354
1,936
20
9
915
=
P3,234

2008

2007

P
=1,509
559
491
135
11
63
P
=2,768

=35
P
–
520
11
5
–
=571
P

(Amounts in Millions)

–

(Amounts in Millions)

The Company did not recognize any deferred tax assets on these temporary differences, NOLCO
and MCIT because management believes that the Company may not be able to generate sufficient
taxable profit that will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be
utilized.
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=2 million and =
P1,450 million expired, respectively.
MCIT and NOLCO which can be claimed as tax credit against future regular corporate income tax
as follows:
Parent Company
Year Paid/Incurred

Expiry Date

2006
2007
2007

December 31, 2009
December 31, 2010
December 31, 2011

MCIT

NOLCO

P
=7
11
12
P
=30

=414
P
72
35
=
P521

(Amounts in Millions)

ABS-CBN
Years Incurred

Expiry Dates

2006
2007
2008

December 31, 2009
December 31, 2010
December 31, 2011

MCIT
P
=29
18
21
P
=68

NOLCO

(In Millions)

=
P481
163
35
=
P679

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, deferred income tax liability has not been recognized on
undistributed earnings of ABS-CBN Global, holding company of ABS-CBN’s foreign
subsidiaries, amounting to P
=282 million and =
P200 million, respectively, since ABS-CBN is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference. The undistributed earnings are earmarked for
expansion in ABS-CBN’s foreign operations.
In the consolidated financial statements, the significant components of deferred tax assets and
liabilities of ABS-CBN are as follows:
2008

2007

P
=322

=
P279

(272)

(282)

160
112
89

–
75
127

(65)
57
56
144
P
=603

(62)
2
6
39
=
P184

(Amounts in Millions)

Accrued pension obligation and other
employee benefits
Capitalized interest, duties and taxes
(net of accumulated depreciation)
Allowance for impairment loss on property
and equipment
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Accrued expenses
Gain on acquisition and exchange of debt
(net of accretion)
MCIT
NOLCO
Others
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2007

P
=551
82
P
=633

=
P–
–
=
P–

(Amounts in Millions)

Deferred tax liabilities:
Excess of the fair value over the book value
of net assets of Sky Cable (see Note 2b)
Gain on acquisition and exchange of debt

The reconciliation of statutory income tax rate to effective tax rates applied follows:
Statutory income tax rate
Income tax effects of the following:
Interest income subjected to final tax
Change in value of unrecognized
deferred tax assets
Nondeductible interest and others
Equity in net earnings of associates
Change in tax rates
Nondeductible expense

2008
35%
(37)
20
7
(5)
(5)
8
23%

2007
35%

2006
35%

(1)

(1)

(6)
5
(14)
–
(5)
14%

1
7
(31)
–
1
12%

Republic Act (RA) No. 9337 was signed into law in May 2005 and amended certain provisions of
Tax Reform Act of 1997. The amendment includes the reduction in the regular corporate income
tax (RCIT) from 35% to 30% effective January 1, 2009. Accordingly, the deferred tax assets and
liabilities as of December 31, 2008 were measured using the appropriate corporate income tax rate
on the year it is expected to be reversed or settled.
30. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Company’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise interest-bearing
loans and borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, short-term
investments, AFS financial assets, and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to fund the Company’s investments in associated companies and to raise
fund for operations.
The Parent Company holds equity in subsidiaries and associates, which may or may not result in
receipt of dividends in a given year and has various other financial assets and liabilities which
arise directly from its operations.
ABS-CBN enters into derivative transactions, including principally interest rate swaps and cross
currency swaps. The purpose is to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from ABSCBN’s operations and its sources of finance.
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- 93 The main risks that may arise from the Company’s financial instruments are strategic
information/valuation risk, financial markets risk, equity investment price risk, foreign currency
exchange risk and revaluation risk, interest rate risk, cash flow risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.
The BOD reviews and approves policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarized below.
Strategic Information/Valuation Risk
This refers to the lack of relevant and reliable valuation information that may preclude prospective
investors from making informed assessment of the value of the Parent Company or any of its
significant segments in a strategic context.
To manage this, the Parent Company is in constant communication with subsidiaries and
associates to obtain updated and realistic financial models of their operations, as well as how such
relate to the Company. In addition, key Parent Company officers are either elected as member of
the board in subsidiaries and associates or sit in as observer in management committee or board
meetings of subsidiaries and associates to ensure the parent company is kept abreast of the latest
developments in said companies. In 2007, the Parent Company’s President was elected as director
of ABS-CBN.
Financial Markets Risk
Movements in market prices of financial instruments, foreign currency exchange and interest rates,
stock market indices, etc., may affect the value of the Parent Company’s financial assets and stock
price, which may also affect the cost of capital and/or its ability to raise capital.
The Parent Company is negotiating with creditors for a cap on interest rates, or for a fixed interest
rate on debt. Other financial instruments of the Parent Company are noninterest-bearing or have
no fixed or determinable maturity and are therefore not subject to interest rate risk.
Equity Investment Price Risk
This refers to the Company’s exposure to fluctuations in the value of equity securities or income
streams from equity ownership in subsidiaries and associates and AFS equity investments. The
Company has direct and indirect equity investments in the following publicly listed companies
whose market value as measured by market capitalization changes daily: ABS-CBN, FPHC,
MERALCO, First Gen, PNOC-Energy Development Corporation (PNOC-EDC) and Digitel.
To manage this, a monitoring process is in place to validate financial forecasts against actual
numbers and to ensure that the value of the Parent Company’s equity investments is not depleted.
Foreign Currency Exchange Risk and Revaluation Risk
Volatility in foreign currency exchange rates may expose the Parent Company to economic and
accounting losses related to large direct and indirect foreign currency-denominated obligations.
Extraordinary fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates may affect reported operational
profits and deficit, potentially reducing the ability of subsidiaries and associates to declare
dividends.
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Company’s foreign currency debt by US$43 million. Further, the risk was eased in 2008 when the
Parent Company applied the interest payments against the principal foreign currency debt and
further decreased the amount by US$22 million. The Parent Company assumes a 3% to 6%
foreign exchange depreciation per annum in its financial model and is negotiating to put a cap on
foreign exchange losses in its restructuring plan. It is also monitoring the mitigation plans of
subsidiaries and associates in relation to foreign currency revaluation risk.
Presented below are the Parent Company’s foreign currency-denominated financial assets and
liabilities as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, translated in Philippine peso at =
P47.52 and =
P41.28,
respectively:
2008

Financial assets Cash and cash equivalents
Financial liabilities:
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings
Estimated liabilities from
guarantees and commitments

2007

U.S. Dollar

Peso
Equivalent

U.S. Dollar

Peso
Equivalent

$12

P
=570

$2

=
P67

150

7,128

150

6,192

145
295
($283)

(Amounts in Millions)

6,890
14,018
(P
=13,448)

167
317
($315)

7,107
13,299
(P
=13,232)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US$
exchange rates in the next 12 months as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, with all other variables
held constant of, the Parent Company’s income before income tax due to changes in the fair value
of monetary assets and liabilities. There is no other impact on the Parent Company’s equity other
than those already affecting the net income.

Increase
(Decrease)
2008
2007

3%
(3%)
6%
(6%)

Effect
on Income
Before
Income Tax

(Amounts in Millions)

(P
=403)
403
(P
=780)
780
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long-term debt obligation. Before the prepayment of all outstanding dollar loan obligations under
Tranche A of the SCA facility, approximately 26% of ABS-CBN’s borrowings are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the operating unit. These were all covered by
cross currency swaps which have all been terminated as a result of the prepayment of the
underlying loan obligation. As of December 31, 2007, there are no outstanding derivative
contracts and all of ABS-CBN’s loan obligations are in Philippine currency.
It is ABS-CBN’s policy to enter into cross currency swaps to manage this risk and eliminate the
variability of cash flows due to changes in the fair value of the foreign currency-denominated debt
with maturity of more than one year.
Other than the debt obligations, ABS-CBN has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure
arises when the transaction is denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
operating unit or the counterparty.
The following tables show ABS-CBN’s significant foreign currency-denominated financial assets
and liabilities and their Philippine Peso equivalents as of December 31, 2008 and 2007:
2008
Original Currency

USD

EURO
(EUR)

JPY

CAD

United Arab
Emirates
Peso
Dirham
AUD
(AED) Equivalent

GBP

(Amounts in Millions)

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other noncurrent assets
Financial liabilities:
Bank loans
Trade and other payables
Obligations for program rights
Net foreign currency-denominated
financial assets (liabilities)

2,229
15,776
8,154
26,159

470
(658)
661
473

4,079
(7,082)
9,843
6,840

5,000
11,455
8,891
25,346

–
(235)
–
(235)

–
13,452
–
13,452

708

(6,612)

813

1,253
–
297
1,550
–
–
–
–
1,550

–
–
(115)
(115)

–
–
(49)
(49)

99
4,735
1,325
6,159

189,732
763,263
455,773
1,408,768

–
89
–
89

–
38
–
38

–
7,557
–
7,557

237,600
521,428
422,502
1,181,530

(204)

(87)

(1,398)

2007
Functional Currency

USD

EURO

JPY

227,238

CAD

United Arab
Emirates
Dirham
(AED)

Peso
Equivalent

(Amounts in Millions)

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other noncurrent assets
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Obligations for program rights
Net foreign currency-denominated
financial assets

26
24
1
51

1
1
–
2

–
8
–
8

1
1
–
2

0
7
–
17

1,251
1,183
39
2,473

15
7
22

2
–
2

1
–
1

1
–
1

–
–
–

730
278
1,008

29

–

7

1

17

1,465
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ABS-CBN used the following exchange rates as of December 31, 2008 and 2007:
2008
P
=47.52
66.63
0.53
39.17
12.91

Currency
USD
EUR
JPY
CAD
AED

2007
=41.28
P
61.25
0.38
42.07
11.43

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign
currency exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of ABS-CBN’s income before
income tax and equity. The impact on ABS-CBN’s equity already excludes the impact on
transactions affecting the net income.
Increase
(Decrease)
in P
= to Foreign
Currency
Exchange Rate
USD
EUR
JPY
CAD
GBP
AUD
AED

EUR

Effect
on Income
Before
Income Tax

(Amounts in Millions)

3%
-1%
1%
-1%
1%
-4%
2%
-3%
2%
-2%
4%
-7%
3%
-1%
Increase
(Decrease)
in =
P to Foreign
Currency
Exchange Rate

USD

2008

2%
-3%
6%
-4%

P
=1
–
(1)
1
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Effect
on Equity
(Gross of Tax)
(P
=–)
–
1
(2)
–
–
1
(2)
–
–
–
–
–
–

2007
Effect
on Income
Before
Income Tax

(Amounts in Millions)

=
P9
(16)
2
(1)

Effect
on Equity
(Gross of Tax)
=
P12
(21)
(1)
1
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Increase
(Decrease)
in =
P to Foreign
Currency
Exchange Rate
JPY
CAD
AED

14%
-4%
5%
-5%
5%
-4%

2007
Effect
on Income
Before
Income Tax

(Amounts in Millions)

–
–
–
–
–
–

Effect
on Equity
(Gross of Tax)
–
–
2
(3)
10
(7)

The change in currency rate is based on ABS-CBN’s best estimate of expected change considering
historical trends and experiences. Positive change in currency rate reflects a weaker peso against
foreign currency.
Interest Rate Risk
Fluctuations in interest rates affect the company’s capital availability or cash flow risk as they
expose the Parent Company to variable cash requirements in relation to debt with floating interest
rates, including goodwill interest which is based on LIBOR and PDST-F.
To mitigate this risk, the Parent Company’s management continues to negotiate with creditors for
a fixed interest rate on its debt.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity analysis to a reasonable possible change in
interest rates for the next 12 months as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, with all other variable
held constant, of the Parent Company’s income before income tax. There is no other impact on
the Parent Company’s equity other than those already affecting the consolidated statement of
income.
Increase
(Decrease)
in Basis Points
2008
2007

+34
-34
+33
-33

Effect
on Income
Before
Income Tax

(Amounts in Millions)

(P
=5)
5
(7)
7
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- 97 ABS-CBN’s exposure to the risk for changes in market interest rates relates primarily to ABSCBN’s long-term receivable and debt obligations with floating interest rates.
To manage this mix in a cost-efficient manner, ABS-CBN entered into interest rate swaps, in
which ABS-CBN agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and
variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal
amount. These swaps are designated to hedge underlying debt obligations. Before the
prepayment of all outstanding loan obligations under Tranche A of the SCA facility and after
taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps, approximately 43% of ABS-CBN’s
borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest. However, in 2007, the derivative contracts that cover
these swaps have been terminated as a result of the prepayment of the underlying loan obligation.
Without the existence of any swaps, ABS-CBN’s loan with fixed rate of interest is at about 32%
of the total loans at the end of 2008 and 25% as at end of 2007.
The following table sets out the carrying amount, by maturity, of ABS-CBN’s consolidated
financial instruments that are exposed to interest rate risk:

Within One to Two
One Year
Years

Two to
Three
Years

2008
Three
to Four
Years

More than
Five Years

Transaction
Costs and
Discount

Total

P
=2
1,056

P
=1,896
339

(P
=341)
(100)

P
=2,321
6,393

Four
to Five
Years

More than
Five Years

Four
to Five
Years

(Amounts in Millions)

Interest-bearings loans and borrowings:
Fixed rate
Floating rate

P
=166
994

P
=126
108

P
=51
449

Within One to Two
Two to
One Year
Years Three Years

P
=421
3,547
2007
Three
to Four
Years

Transaction
Costs and
Discount

Total

(Amounts in Millions)

Long-term receivables Floating rate
Interest-bearings loans and borrowings:
Fixed rate
Floating rate

=
P–

=
P–

=
P–

P
=54

P
=253

P
=1,491

(P
=364)

P
=1,434

614
10

131
44

85
108

42
378

417
3,322

854
–

(378)
(111)

1,765
3,751

Interest on financial instruments classified as floating rate is repriced at intervals of less than three
months. Interest on financial instruments classified as fixed rate is fixed until the maturity of the
instrument. The other financial instruments of ABS-CBN that are not included in the above tables
are noninterest-bearing and are therefore not subject to interest rate risk.
On the average, benchmark interest rates, 3-month PDST-F, declined by 100 basis points since the
end of 2006. Looking at past trends, however, this has not always been the case with several
periods showing some upward adjustments due to several market pressures. Based on these
experiences, ABS-CBN provides the following table to demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably
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- 99 possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of ABS-CBN’s income
before income tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings). There is no impact on the
ABS-CBN’s equity other than those already affecting the net income.
Increase Effect on Income
Before Income
(Decrease) in
Tax
Basis Points

(Amounts in Millions)

2008

+200
-200
+200
-200

2007

(P
=105)
105
(46)
46

Capital Availability or Cash Flow (Liquidity) Risk
This risk refers to the Parent Company’s exposure to the risk of lower returns on its investments or
the necessity to borrow due to shortfalls in cash or expected cash flows, or variances in their
timing. The restructuring plan is based on cash flows from dividends and asset sales and these may
not come in as expected.
To manage this, the Parent Company obtains the concurrence of subsidiaries and associates on
dividends forecast used in the restructuring plan and financial models were updated quarterly. In
2008 and 2007, the Parent Company bought back a portion of its principal US dollar-denominated
obligations and a portion of Philippine peso-denominated debt at a 40% discount.
The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Parent Company’s financial liabilities as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007 based on contractual payments.
On
Demand

Less than
3 Months

2008
3 to
12 Months

1 to
5 Years

More than
5 Years

Total

(Amounts in Millions)

Trade and other payables
Current portion of interest-bearing
loans and borrowings
Estimated liabilities from guarantees
and commitments
Convertible bonds

P
=5,759

P
=–

P
=–

P
=–

P
=–

P
=5,759

8,642

–

–

–

–

8,642

6,905
12
P
=21,318

–
–
P
=–

–
–
P
=–

–
–
P
=–

–
–
P
=–

6,905
12
P
=21,318

On Demand

Less than
3 Months

1 to
5 Years

More than
5 Years

Total

2007
3 to
12 Months

(Amounts in Millions)

Trade and other payables
Current portion of interest-bearing
loans and borrowings
Estimated liabilities from guarantees
and commitments
Convertible bonds

=
P4,909

=
P156

=
P–

=
P–

=
P–

=
P5,065

8,182

–

–

–

–

8,182

7,107
12
=
P20,210

–
–
=
P156

–
–
=
P–

–
–
=
P–

–
–
=
P–

7,107
12
=
P20,366
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- 100 The financial liabilities of the Parent Company, except for trade and other payables, are due and
demandable since the Parent Company defaulted at maturity date. Interest is accrued and is
expected to be paid until such time that the liabilities are fully repaid. The Parent Company is
currently negotiating with its creditors for a restructuring of the direct and indirect obligations,
thus the maturity profile of financial liabilities above exclude interest.
ABS-CBN seeks to manage its funds through cash planning on a weekly basis. This undertaking
specifically considers the maturity of the both financial investments and financial assets and
projected operational disbursements. ABS-CBN also employs historical figures and forecasts
from its collection and disbursements. As part of its liquidity risk management, ABS-CBN
regularly evaluates its projected and actual cash flows. As a general rule, cash balance should be
equal to =
P200 million at any given time to compensate for operation exigencies in the periodic
absence of cash inflow.
It is ABS-CBN’s objective to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of bank credit and investment facilities. As such, ABS-CBN continuously
assesses conditions in the financial markets for opportunities to pursue fund raising activities. In
2008, ABS-CBN closed two fund raising activities with final maturity of up to 2015. Currently,
the debt maturity profile of the Company ranges from 3.7 years to 7.0 years.
Also, ABS-CBN places funds in the money market only when there are surpluses from ABSCBN’s requirements. Placements are strictly made based on cash planning assumptions and as
much as possible, covers only a short period of time.
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of ABS-CBN’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments.
Within
One Year

One to
Two Years

2008
Three to
Four to
Four Years
Five Years

More than
Five Years

Total

(Amounts in Millions)

Other liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings
Obligations for program rights
Customers’ deposits

P
=5,243

P
=–

P
=–

P
=–

P
=–

P
=5,243

1,674
1,130
–
P
=8,047

2,043
63
–
P
=2,106

5,702
39
168
P
=5,909

2,299
–
–
P
=2,299

260
–
–
P
=260

11,978
1,232
168
P
=18,621

Within
One Year

One to
Two Years

2007
Three to
Four to
Four Years
Five Years

More than
Five Years

Total

(Amounts in Millions)

Other liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings
Obligations for program rights

=
P4,404

=
P–

P
=–

P
=–

=
P–

P
=4,404

1,049
790
=
P6,243

1,172
4
=
P1,176

4,763
–
=
P4,763

976
–
P
=976

–
–
=
P–

7,960
794
=
P13,158
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The Parent Company has advances in subsidiaries and associates but these comprise less than 5%
of assets. Trade receivables refer to accounts under ABS-CBN, which are managed at the ABSCBN level. The Parent Company does not offer credit terms for the provision of services as a
holding company.
With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Parent Company, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and AFS investments, the Parent Company’s exposure to
credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amount of these instruments totalling =
P7,705 million and =
P2,364 million as of December 31, 2008
and 2007, respectively.
2008

2007

P
=1,698
5,310
631
66
P
=7,705

=816
P
–
1,482
66
=2,364
P

(Amounts in Millions)

Cash and cash equivalents
Notes receivable
AFS investments
Receivable from related parties

The credit quality of the Parent Company’s financial assets was determined as follows:
High Credit Quality. This includes deposits or placements to counterparties with good credit
rating or bank standing. For receivables, this covers, as of report date, accounts with good credit
standing.
Low Credit Quality. This includes deposits or placements and receivables to counterparties that
are not classified as “high credit quality.”
The Parent Company’s financial assets are neither past due nor impaired and are considered to be
of high credit quality as of December 31, 2008 and 2007.
ABS-CBN is exposed to credit risk from operational and certain of its financing activities. On
ABS-CBN’s credit risk arising from operating activities, ABS-CBN only extends credit with
recognized and accredited third parties. ABS-CBN implements a pay before broadcast policy to
new customers. To improve collections over ABS-CBN’s trade receivables, ABS-CBN grants
discounts on early payment. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.
Such determination takes into consideration the age of the receivable and the current solvency of
the individual accounts.
With regard to ABS-CBN’s financing activities, as a general rule, ABS-CBN transacts these
activities with counterparties that have a long credit history in the market and outstanding
relationship with ABS-CBN. The policy of ABS-CBN is to have the BOD accredit these banks
and/or financial institutions before any of these financing activities take place.
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- 102 With respect to credit risk arising from the financial assets of ABS-CBN, which comprise trade
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, AFS equity investments, and receivables from
related parties, ABS-CBN’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.
There is no requirement for collateral over trade receivables since ABS-CBN trades only with
recognized and accredited counterparties.
At balance sheet date, the only significant concentration of credit risk is the long-term receivable
from Sky Cable.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is partly represented by the carrying amounts of the
financial assets that are reported in the consolidated balance sheets.
Credit Risk Exposures. The table below shows the gross maximum exposure to on- and offbalance sheet credit risk exposures (including derivatives) of ABS-CBN, without considering the
effects of collateral, credit enhancements and other credit risk mitigation techniques as of
December 31:
2008

2007

P
=2,485

=2,146
P

4,766

4,407

16

–

371
–
P
=7,638

77
3,893
=10,523
P

(Amount in Millions)

Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand)
Trade and other receivables - net (excluding
advances to suppliers)
Derivative assets (included as part of “Other current
assets”)
AFS investments (included as part of “Other
noncurrent assets”)
Long-term receivables from related parties

Credit Quality per Class of Financial Asset. The credit quality of financial assets is being
managed by ABS-CBN using internal credit ratings. The following tables show the credit quality
by class of financial assets based on ABS-CBN’s credit rating system as of December 31, 2008
and 2007:
2008
Neither Past Due nor Impaired
Past Due but
Low
Moderate
High not Impaired

Impaired

Total

(Amount in Millions)

Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand and in banks
Cash equivalents
Trade receivables:
Airtime
Subscriptions
Others
Nontrade receivables
Due from related parties
Long-term receivables
from related parties
AFS investments

P
=–
–

P
=–
–

P
=1,357
1,127

P
=–
–

P
=–
–

P
=1,357
1,127

14
53
57
23
–

312
26
246
20
–

1,040
407
326
223
–

766
401
369
185
124

406
104
65
41
–

2,538
991
1,063
492
124

–
–
P
=147

–
–
P
=604

16
371
P
=4,867

–
–
P
=1,845

–
–
P
=616

16
371
P
=8,079
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2007
Neither Past Due nor Impaired
Past Due but
Low
Moderate
High
not Impaired

Impaired

Total

(Amount in Millions)

Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand and in banks
Cash equivalents
Trade receivables:
Airtime
Subscriptions
Others
Nontrade receivables
Due from related parties
Long-term receivables
from related parties
AFS investments

=
P–
–

P
=–
–

=
P1,553
593

=
P–
–

P
=–
–

P
=1,553
593

32
105
–
29
–

330
128
165
132
–

1,103
171
125
296
–

609
430
552
523
154

219
61
40
34
–

2,293
895
882
1,014
154

–
–
=166
P

–
–
=
P755

3,892
77
=
P7,810

–
–
=
P2,268

–
–
=
P354

3,892
77
=
P11,353

The credit quality of the financial assets was determined as follows:
 High Credit Quality
This includes deposits or placements to counterparties with good credit rating or bank
standing. For receivables, this covers, as of report date, accounts of good paying customers,
with good credit standing and with no history of account treatment for a defined period. This
also include claims from Elite subscribers, advance payers, airtime and channel lease with
advance payment arrangements, related parties with offsetting arrangement and existing
employees.
 Moderate Credit Quality
For receivables, this covers accounts of standard paying customers, those whose payments are
within the credit term, and new customers for which sufficient credit history has not been
established. This also includes claims from special subscribers.
 Low Credit Quality
For receivables, this covers accounts of slow paying customers and those whose payments are
received upon demand at report date.
Trade Receivables
These represent amounts collectible from advertising agencies, advertisers or trade customers
arising from the sale of airtime, subscription, services and/or goods in the ordinary course of
business.
Airtime. This account refers to revenue generated from the sale of time or time block within the
on-air broadcast hours on television and radio.
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- 104 Subscription Fees. This account refers to revenue generated from regular subscriber’s fees for
either: (1) access to programs aired through DTH and cable television systems, or (2) direct sale of
publications to subscribers.
Others. This account refers to other revenue generated from the sale of goods and services.
Nontrade Receivables
These represent claims, arising from sources other than the sale of airtime, subscription, services
and goods in the ordinary course of business, that are reasonably expected to be realized in cash.
The tables below show the aging analysis of past due but not impaired receivables per class that
ABS-CBN held as of December 31, 2008 and 2007. A financial asset is past due when a
counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.
Neither Past
Due nor
Impaired

2008
Past Due but not Impaired
30 Days
Less than 30
and Over

Impaired

Allowance

Total

(Amount in Millions)

Trade receivables:
Airtime
Subscription fees
Others
Nontrade receivables
Due from related parties

P
=1,365
487
629
267
–
P
=2,748

Neither Past
Due nor
Impaired

P
=137
83
44
25
–
P
=289

P
=629
318
323
159
124
P
=1,553

2007
Past Due but not Impaired
30 Days
Less than 30
and Over

P
=406
104
65
41
–
P
=616

Impaired

(P
=281)
(94)
(26)
(39)
–
(440)

Allowance

P
=2,257
898
1,035
453
124
P
=4,767

Total

(Amount in Millions)

Trade receivables:
Airtime
Subscription fees
Others
Nontrade receivables
Due from related parties

=
P1,465
404
290
134
–
=
P2,293

=
P232
18
173
15
–
=
P438

=
P378
411
379
319
153
=
P1,640

=
P219
61
40
34
–
=
P354

(P
=205)
(61)
(21)
(32)
–
(P
=319)

P
=2,089
833
861
470
153
P
=4,406

Based on the cash flow projection, past due receivables are expected to be collected within 2008.
Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to arrive at a debt restructuring
agreement with its creditors in order to maximize shareholder value and to ensure that it maintains
healthy capital ratios and strong credit ratings while viably supporting its business to maximize
shareholder value.
Capital refers to the equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company. As discussed
in Note 1(b), the Parent Company defaulted on its principal and interest payments on its long-term
direct and indirect obligations. The Parent Company’s BSMP plans to address all its financial
obligations.
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- 105 The following are the Parent Company’s long-term direct and indirect obligations covered by the
BSMP:
2008

2007

P
=8,642

=8,182
P

6,905
12

7,107
12

(Amount in Millions)

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Estimated liabilities from guarantees
and commitments
Convertible bonds

Under the BSMP, cash is reserved for debt service and working capital requirements. The Parent
Company has no material commitments for capital expenditures and has not made any major
investments since 2002. Proceeds of asset sales are placed in short-term financial instruments
under the Parent Company’s ISO-certified Money Market Operations procedure. Payment
requirements for goodwill interest and operating expenses are withdrawn using the same process.
ABS-CBN’s approach focuses on efficiently allocating internally generated cash for operational
requirements and investments to grow the existing business as well as to deliver on its
commitment of a regular dividend payout at a maximum of 50% of the previous year’s net
income. Shortages if any and acquisitions or investments in new business are funded by the
incurrence of additional debt largely capped by existing loan covenants on financial ratios.
As evidenced by the quarterly financial certificates that ABS-CBN issued to its lenders, all
financial ratios are within the required limits all throughout 2008 and 2007 as follows:
Financial Ratios
Debt to earnings before income
tax, depreciation
and amortization
Earnings before income tax
to financing cost
Debt service coverage ratio

Required

1st Quarter

2008
2nd Quarter
3rd Quarter

4th Quarter

Less than or equal to 2.25

1.10

1.20

1.33

1.49

Greater than or equal to 3.00
Greater than or equal to 1.10

4.86
2.10

4.72
2.31

4.96
1.30

4.38
1.95

2007
2nd Quarter
3rd Quarter
0.87
1.06

4th Quarter
1.09

Financial Ratios
Debt to earnings before income
tax, depreciation
and amortization

Required
Less than or equal to 2.25

1st Quarter
0.96

Earnings before income tax
to financing cost

Greater than or equal to 2.00
on or before September
30, 2007
Greater than or equal to 3.00
after September 30, 2007

2.94

3.49

4.04

4.50

Debt service coverage ratio

Greater than or equal to 1.10

1.39

1.54

2.18

1.63
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The following table sets forth the carrying values and estimated fair values of consolidated
financial assets and liabilities recognized as of December 31, 2008 and 2007. There are no
material unrecognized financial assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2008 and 2007.
Carrying
Amounts
Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents
Notes receivable
Trade and other receivables - net
Long-term receivables from
related parties
Advances to associates
AFS investments (included as part
of “Other current assets” and
“Other noncurrent assets”
accounts)
Financial assets at FVPL Derivative assets designated as
accounting hedges
Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities
at amortized cost:
Trade and other payables*
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings
Estimated liabilities from
guarantees and commitments
Obligations for program rights
Customers’ deposits (included as
part of “Other noncurrent
liabilities)

2008

2007

Fair Values

Carrying
Amounts

P
=4,222
5,310
5,105

P
=4,222
5,310
5,105

=2,962
P
–
4,984

P
=2,962
–
4,984

–
4

–
4

3,893
4

4,256
4

954

954

1,669

1,669

16
P
=15,611

16
P
=15,611

–
=13,512
P

–
P
=13,875

P
=11,228

P
=11,228

=9,487
P

P
=9,487

17,369

17,972

13,710

14,098

6,905
1,215

6,905
1,297

7,107
795

7,107
795

168
P
=36,885

166
P
=37,568

–
=31,099
P

–
P
=31,487

(Amounts in Millions)

Fair Values

* Excludes taxes payables.

Fair Value of Financial Instrument
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instrument for which it is practicable to estimate such value:
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Receivables and Trade and Other payables and
Estimated Liabilities from Guarantees and Commitments . Due to the short-term nature of
transactions, the fair values of these instruments approximate the carrying amounts as of balance
sheet date.
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- 107 AFS Equity Investments. The fair values of publicly-traded instruments were determined by
reference to market bid quotes as of balance sheet date. Investments in unquoted equity securities
for which no reliable basis for fair value measurement is available are carried at cost net of
impairment.
Long-term Receivable from Related Parties. The receivable from Sky Cable, which is subjected
to monthly repricing, is not discounted since it approximates fair value.
Obligations for Program Rights. Estimated fair value is based on the discounted value of future
cash flows using the applicable risk-free rates for similar types of loans adjusted for credit risk.
Interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings. Fair value was computed based on the following:
Debt Type

Fair Value Assumptions

Term loan

Estimated fair value is based on the discounted value of
future cash flows using the applicable risk free rates for
similar types of loans adjusted for credit risk. The
interest rates used to discount the future cash flows have
ranged from 4.3% to 5.4% for those that are dollardenominated and from 4.4% to 12.5% for those that are
peso-denominated.

Other variable rate loans

The face value approximates fair value because of recent
and frequent repricing (i.e., 3 months) based on market
conditions.

Bifurcated Foreign Currency Forwards: The fair values of embedded foreign currency forwards
were calculated by reference to forward exchange market rates as at balance sheet date.
Derivative Instruments
Cross Currency Swaps. In 2004, ABS-CBN entered into long-term cross currency swaps that
hedge 100% of the Tranche A Principal against foreign exchange risk. Under these agreements,
ABS-CBN effectively swaps the principal amount of certain US dollar-denominated loans under
the SCA into Philippine Peso-denominated loans with payments up to June 2009.
ABS-CBN is also obligated to pay swap costs based on a fixed rate of 8.0% on a notional amount
of P
=353 million, 5.125% on a notional amount of P
=55 million, 3-month PHIREF minus 2.9% on a
notional amount of P
=2 billion and 3-month PHIREF minus 3.1% on a notional amount of
=264 million.
P
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- 108 On December 18, 2007, ABS-CBN prepaid all its outstanding loan obligations under Tranche A of
the SCA facility amounting to US$27 million (equivalent to P
=1,132 million). This made it
necessary for ABS-CBN to unwind the existing cross currency swaps. On December 20, 2007,
ABS-CBN paid P
=393 million to unwind the hedges. Cumulative fair value changes amounting to
=232 million previously recorded in equity were recognized in the 2007 consolidated statement of
P
income (see Note 28).
Interest Rate Swaps. To manage the interest rate exposure from the floating rate loans, ABS-CBN
also entered into USD interest rate swaps and PHP interest rate swaps which effectively swap
certain floating rate loans into fixed-rate loans. In 2007, the USD interest rate swaps have been
terminated as a result of the prepayment of the outstanding loan obligations under Tranche A of
the SCA facility. ABS-CBN received a total of US$12 million (equivalent to =
P539 million) as net
settlement for the unwinding of the interest rate swaps. Cumulative fair value changes amounting
to =
P44 million previously recorded in equity were recognized in the 2007 consolidated statement
of income (see Note 28).
Hedge Accounting Implications of Swaps. ABS-CBN’s principal-only currency swaps and USD
interest rate swap are designated as cash flow hedges on October 1, 2005 to manage ABS-CBN’s
exposure to variability in cash flows attributable to foreign exchange and interest rate risks of the
underlying debt obligations. Since the critical terms of the swaps and the outstanding debt
obligations coincide, the hedges are expected to exactly offset changes in expected cash flows due
to fluctuations in foreign exchange and the prime rate over the term of the debt obligations.
The effective net mark-to-market losses that have been deferred in equity for these cash flow
hedges amounted to =
P249 million (P
=163 million, net of tax) in 2006.
On December 20, 2007, ABS-CBN terminated all outstanding cross currency swap and interest
rate swap contracts as a result of the prepayment of all the outstanding Tranch A loan of the SCA
facility. The net mark-to-market losses amounting to =
P277 million previously recorded in equity
were recognized in the 2007 consolidated statement of income (see Note 28).
As part of the transition adjustments as of January 1, 2005, ABS-CBN initially recognized an
aggregate amount of =
P117 million (P
=76 million, net of tax), representing the fair value for the
principal-only currency swaps (net of the impact of the foreign exchange restatement) and the
USD and PHP interest rate swaps. This amount is initially recorded as a credit adjustment in CTA
(“initial CTA”) and will be amortized using the effective interest rate method over the remaining
term of the underlying related loans. Amortization of the initial CTA amounted to =
P54 million in
2007 and P
=31 million in 2006. This is recorded as a reduction in interest expense (see Note 28).
The aggregate total of =
P131 million was then recorded in equity and was transferred to the 2007
consolidated statement of income when ABS-CBN terminated the hedge contracts as a result of
the prepayment of all outstanding Tranche A loans of the SCA facility in 2007.
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- 109 In 2007, movements in the cumulative fair value changes of ABS-CBN recognized in equity in
relation to derivative instruments are as follows:
Amounts

(In Millions)

Balance at beginning of year
Amounts taken to equity
Reversal of tax effect

(P
=161)
25
(86)
(222)

Amounts transferred to profit and loss:
Due to the termination of hedged item
and related cross currency swap
Due to the termination of hedged item
and related interest rate swap
Amortization of initial CTA

232
44
(54)
222
–
–
=–
P

Less tax effects of items taken directly to equity
Balance at end of year

Embedded Derivatives. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, ABS-CBN has outstanding
embedded foreign currency derivatives which were bifurcated from various non-financial
contracts. The impact of these embedded derivatives is not significant.
As discussed in Note 2, ABS-CBN has a receivable from Sky Vision that is convertible into the
latter’s common share, which are not quoted in an active market. The conversion option
embedded in the receivable is not separately accounted for as a financial asset at FVPL. The
entire receivable from Sky Vision is reported at cost subject to impairment.
The net movements in fair value changes of the Company’s derivative instruments as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
2008

2007

(Amounts in Millions)

Balance at beginning of year
Net changes in fair value of derivatives:
Designated as accounting hedges
Not designated as accounting hedges
Less fair value of settled instruments
Balance at end of year

P
=–
33
–
–
33
(17)
P
=16

(P
=346)
(47)
–
(393)
393
=–
P

*SGVMC211642*

BENPRES AR 2008

- 110 32. Commitments
Parent Company
a. Guarantees on the Convertible Preferred Shares Issued by Bayantel
The Parent Company acts as a surety to guarantee the payment of principal and interest of the
convertible preferred shares issued by Bayantel with a face value of US$130 million
(see Note 11d).
b. Commitments to Purchase Bayantel Shares from Bayantel Shareholders
These commitments are fully discussed in Note 11d.
ABS-CBN
c. Operating Lease Commitments - Company as Lessee
ABS-CBN leases office facilities, space and satellite equipment. Future minimum rentals
payable under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows as of December 31:
2007
2008
(Amounts in Millions)
P
=218
933
61
P
=1,212

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
After five years

=192
P
851
198
=1,241
P

d. Operating Lease Commitments - Company as Lessor
ABS-CBN has entered into commercial property leases on its building, consisting of the
ABS-CBN’s surplus office buildings. These non-cancelable leases have remaining
non-cancelable lease terms of between three to five years. All leases include a clause to
enable upward revision of the rental charge on a predetermined rate.
Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows
as of December 31:
2007
2008
(Amounts in Millions)
Within one year
After one year but not more than five years

P
=12
38
P
=50

=26
P
83
=109
P
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- 111 e. Obligations under Capital lease
ABS-CBN and ABS-CBN International has finance leases over various items of equipment.
Future minimum lease payments under finance leases and hire purchase contracts together
with the present value of the net minimum lease payments are as follows:
Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
Total minimum lease payments
Less amounts representing finance charges
Present value of minimum lease payments
Less current portion
f.

2008
P
=165
190
355
41
314
140
P
=174

2007
P214
=
271
485
64
421
178
=243
P

Deal Memorandum with DirecTV
On June 1, 2005, ABS-CBN and ABS-CBN International entered into a 25-year Deal
Memorandum (Memorandum) with DirecTV in which ABS-CBN granted DirecTV the
exclusive right via satellite, internet protocol technology and satellite master antenna
television system or similar system, to display, exhibit, perform and distribute certain
programs of ABS-CBN that are listed in the Memorandum. ABS-CBN International may
engage in any marketing plan mutually agreed by both parties and DirecTV. All costs under
any mutually agreed marketing plans shall be shared equally between DirecTV and ABS-CBN
International.
As provided in the Memorandum, all rights, title and interest in and to the content, discrete
programs or channels not granted to DirecTV are expressly reserved by ABS-CBN. All
programming decisions with respect to the programs shall be in ABS-CBN’s commercially
reasonable discretion, including the substitution or withdrawal of any scheduled programs,
provided that ABS-CBN agrees that the programs will consist substantially the same content
and genre provided for in the Memorandum.
The Memorandum also provides for the following license fees to be paid by DirecTV to
ABS-CBN:
i. A license fee for each existing DTH subscriber of ABS-CBN International or a new

subscriber who becomes an activated subscriber during the migration period (from
June 2005 to February 2006); and

ii. An additional license fee for each activated subscriber who becomes an activated

subscriber during the migration period that remains a subscriber for 14 consecutive
months.
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- 112 The Memorandum also provides that subscription revenue, computed as the current and stand
alone retail price per month for a subscription to the TFC channel multiplied by the average
number of subscribers, shall be divided equally between DirecTV and ABS-CBN
International.
Starting July 2005, existing DTH subscribers of ABS-CBN International have been migrating
to DirecTV. License fee earned from DirecTV amounted to P
=548 million in 2007
(representing additional license fee for each subscriber who became activated during the
migration period and remained a subscriber for fourteen months) and =
P1,117 million in 2006.
ABS-CBN International’s share in the subscription revenue earned from subscribers that have
migrated to DirecTV amounted to =
P797 million in 2008, =
P772 million in 2007 and
=616 million in 2006.
P
On January 17, 2006, ABS-CBN and DirecTV agreed to amend the Memorandum entered in
June 1, 2005 that includes among others the extension of the migration period from
February 2006 to August 2006. The contract on license fee of ABS-CBN with DirectTV
ended on October 2007.
Sky Cable
g. Purchase Commitments
Sky Cable has commitments with various program suppliers for a period of 1 to 5 years.
Channel license fees are based on fixed and variable rates. Estimated fees for the next three
years are as follows:
Year

Amount*

(In Milllions)

2009
2010
2011

P
=370
237
11

* Includes variable fees based on the number of active subscribers
as of December 31, 2008.

The estimated fees include channel license fees contracted by Sky Cable for its subsidiaries,
amounting to =
P68.9 million, for which Sky Cable will be reimbursed.
FPHC Group
g. Power Purchase Agreements (PPA)
FGP Corp. (FPG) and First Gas Power Corporation (FGPC)
FGP and FGPC, subsidiaries of FPHC through First Gen, each have an existing PPA with
MERALCO, the largest power distribution company operating in the island of Luzon and in
the Philippines and the sole customer of both projects. Under the PPA, MERALCO will
purchase in each contract year from the start of commercial operations, a minimum number of
kilowatt-hours of the net electrical output of FGP and FGPC for a period of 25 years. Billings
to MERALCO under the PPA are substantially in U.S. Dollars and a small portion is billed in
Philippine Pesos.
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- 113 On January 7, 2004, MERALCO, FGP and FGPC signed the Amendment to their respective
PPAs. The negotiations resulted in a package of concessions including the assumption of FGP
and FGPC of community taxes at current tax rate, while conditional concessions include
increasing the discounts on excess generation, payment of higher penalties for nonperformance up to a capped amount, recovery of accumulated deemed delivered energy until
2011 resulting in the non-charging of MERALCO of excess generation charge for such energy
delivered beyond the contracted amount but within a 90% capacity quota. The amended terms
under the respective PPAs of FGP and FGPC was approved by the Energy Regulatory
Commission (ERC) on May 31, 2006.
PNOC-EDC
PNOC-EDC is a subsidiary of FPHC through First Gen. The electricity produced by the
operating plants of PNOC-EDC is sold to National Power Corporation (NPC), pursuant to the
following PPAs:
Contract Area

Contracted Annual Energy

End of Contract

Leyte-Cebu
Leyte-Luzon

1,370 gigawatt-hour (GWh)
3,000 GWh

July 2021
July 2022

47 MW Mindanao I

330 GWh for the 1st year and 390 GWh
for the succeeding years

March 2022

48.25 MW Mindanao II

398 GWh

June 2024

h. Geothermal Service Contracts of PNOC-EDC
PNOC-EDC entered into seven service contracts with the Department of Energy (DOE)
granting PNOC-EDC the right to explore, develop, and utilize the country’s geothermal
resource subject to sharing of net proceeds with the government. The net proceeds is what
remains after deducting from the gross proceeds the allowable recoverable costs, which
include development, production and operating costs.
The allowable recoverable costs shall not exceed 90% of the gross proceeds. PNOC-EDC
pays 60% of the net proceeds as government share and retains the remaining 40%.
The 60% government share is comprised of royalty fees and income taxes. The royalty fees
are shared by the government through DOE (60%) and the LGU (40%).
PNOC-EDC secured an approval from the DOE to defer remittance of the royalty portion of
the government share at =
P180 million per year. A portion of said payment was applied to the
amortization of the deferred royalty fees as of December 31, 1998, and the balance to 1999
and future obligations. On March 23, 2004, PNOC-EDC and DOE agreed to increase the
royalty payment plan to =
P200 million per year starting 2004. A portion of the revised
payment shall be applied to the amortization of the deferred royalty fees as of
December 31, 2003 and the balance to 2004 and future obligations for existing PNOC-EDC
operating projects. However, remittances to the LGU of their share in royalty fees are made
as they fall due pursuant to the Local Government Code.
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- 114 The DOE approved the application of PNOC-EDC for the 20-year extension of the Tongonan,
Palinpinon and Bacon-Manito (BacMan) Geothermal Service Contracts (GSCs). The
extension is embodied in the fourth amendment to the GSCs dated October 30, 2003. The
amendment extended the Tongonan GSC from May 15, 2011 to May 16, 2031, while the
Palinpinon and Bacon-Manito GSCs are extended from October 16, 2011 to October 17, 2031.
i.

Geothermal Resources Sales Contracts of PNOC-EDC
The geothermal energy currently produced by PNOC-EDC’s geothermal projects is supplied
to its BOT contractors and the power plants owned and operated by NPC pursuant to the
following steam sales contracts:
Contract Area

Guaranteed TOP

End of Contract

Tongonan I

75% plant factor

June 2009

Palinpinon I

75% plant factor

December 2008

Palinpinon II (covers four
modular plants)

50% for the 1st year, 65% for the 2nd
year, 75% for the 3rd and subsequent
years

December 2018 - March
2020

BacMan I

75% plant factor

November 2013

BacMan II (covers two 20 MW
modular plants)

st

nd

50% for the 1 year, 65% for the 2
year, 75% for the 3rd and subsequent
years

March 2019 and
December 2022

PNOC-EDC
Pursuant to RA No. 7718 dated May 5, 1994 (Amended BOT Law), PNOC-EDC entered into
Energy Conversion Agreements (ECA) with various international geothermal power producers
for the construction and operation of power plants in Leyte and Mindanao to convert the
geothermal steam to be supplied by PNOC-EDC to electricity. Under these contracts, the BOT
Contractor shall deliver electricity to NPC on behalf of PNOC-EDC.
Leyte
Under the ECA with the BOT Contractors, namely: California Energy for a) 125 MW Power
Plant - Upper Mahiao Agreement; b) 231 MW Power Plant - Malitbog Agreement; and c)
180 MW Power Plant - Mahanagdong Agreement and with Ormat Inc. for the Leyte
Optimization Project BOT Agreement, PNOC-EDC shall pay the BOT Contractors monthly
energy fees to be computed based on actual energy delivered and capacity fees, which include
capital and fixed operating cost recovery fees and service fees, to be computed on a per
kilowatt nominated capacity basis.
Except for the capital cost recovery portions, the fees are subject to inflation adjustments. The
contracts are for a period of ten years commencing July 1996 for the Upper Mahiao
Agreement, July 1997 for the Malitbog and Mahanagdong Agreements and September 1997
for the Optimization Agreement. The ownership of the Upper Mahiao Power Plant was
transferred to PNOC-EDC on June 25, 2006; Malitbog and Mahanagdong Power Plants were
transferred on July 25, 2007; and the Optimization Power Plant on September 25, 2007.
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- 115 Mindanao
Under the terms and conditions of the ECA with Oxbow Power Corporation and Marubeni
Corporation, PNOC-EDC shall pay the BOT Contractor monthly energy efficiency fees and
capacity fees, which include capital and fixed operating cost recovery fees and service fees, to
be computed on a per KW nominated capacity basis and excess energy fees which are
payment for the share of BOT Contractor for the revenues from surplus energy generation on
top of the nominated energy. Except for energy efficiency payments and capital cost recovery
portion of capacity fees, the fees are subject to inflation adjustments. The contract is for a
period of ten (10) years commencing in March 1997 for Mindanao I (47 MW) and June 1999
for Mindanao II (48.25 MW). An amendment to the Mindanao I ECA was signed on
November 17, 2006 extending the contract period to June 2009 with the corresponding
restructuring of BOT fees.
j.

Gas Sale and Purchase Agreement (GSPA)
FGP and FGPC each have an existing GSPA with the consortium of Shell Philippine
Exploration B.V., Shell Philippines LLC, Chevron Malampaya, LLC and PNOC Exploration
Corporation (collectively referred to as Gas Sellers), for the supply of natural gas in
connection with the operations of the power plants. The GSPA, now on its seventh Contract
Year, is for a total period of approximately 22 years.
Under the GSPA, FGP and FGPC are obligated to consume (or pay for, if not consumed) a
minimum quantity of gas for each Contract Year (which runs from December 26 of a
particular year up to December 25 of the immediately succeeding year), called the Take-OrPay Quantity (TOPQ). Thus, if the TOPQ is not consumed within a particular Contract Year,
FGP incurs an “Annual Deficiency” for that Contract Year equivalent to the total volume of
unused gas (i.e., the TOPQ less the actual quantity of gas consumed). FGP and FGPC are
required to make payments to the Gas Sellers for such Annual Deficiency after the end of the
Contract Year. After paying for Annual Deficiency gas, FGP and FGPC can, subject to the
terms of the GSPA, “make-up” such Annual Deficiencies by consuming the unused-but-paidfor gas (without further charge) within ten-Contract Year after the Contract Year for which the
Annual Deficiency was incurred, in the order that it arose.
For Contract Year 2006, the Gas Sellers issued the Annual Reconciliation Statements (ARS)
of FGP and FGPC on December 29, 2006. The Gas Sellers are claiming Annual Deficiency
payments for Contract Year 2006 amounting to $3.9 million for FGP and $5.4 million for
FGPC. Both FGP and FGPC disagree that such Annual Deficiency payments are due and
each claimed relief for, among others, force majeure events arising from governmental actions
beyond its control as well as circumstances which affected the Transmission Facilities or the
Transmission Company’s ability to accept or transmit electric energy generated by the power
plant. FGP’s and FGPC’s position is that the power plants actually consumed more than their
respective TOPQs and are entitled to make-up its Outstanding Balance of Annual
Deficiencies. The matter is now in arbitration under the International Chamber of Commerce
(ICC) Rules of Arbitration pursuant to the terms of the GSPA.
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- 116 k. Operating and Maintenance (O&M) Agreements
FGP and FGPC have separate O&M Agreements with Siemens Power Operations, Inc. (SPO)
mainly for the operation, maintenance, management and repair services of their respective
power plants. As stated in the respective O&M Agreements of FGP and FGPC, SPO is
responsible for maintaining adequate inventory of spare parts, accessories and consumables.
SPO is also responsible for replacing and repairing the necessary parts and equipment of the
power plants to ensure the proper operation and maintenance of the power plants to meet the
contractual commitments of FGP and FGPC under their respective PPAs and in accordance
with the Good Utility Practice.
Based on the current operating regime of both plants, it is estimated that the Santa Rita and
San Lorenzo O&M Agreements will expire in 2010. FGP and FGPC are currently considering
the options for the Plants’ operation and maintenance after 2010.
33. Contingencies and Other Matters
Contingencies
ABS-CBN has contingent liabilities with respect to claims and lawsuits filed by third parties. The
events that transpired last February 4, 2006, which resulted in the death of 71 people and injury to
about 200 others led ABS-CBN to shoulder the burial expenses of the dead and medical expenses
of the injured, which did not result in any direct or contingent financial obligation that is material
to ABS-CBN. ABS-CBN has settled all of the funeral and medical expenses of the victims of the
tragedy. Given the income flows and net asset base of ABS-CBN, said expenses do not constitute
a material financial obligation of ABS-CBN, as ABS-CBN remains in sound financial position to
meet its obligations.
As of April 14, 2009, the claims in connection with the events of February 4, 2006 are still
pending and remain contingent liabilities. While the funeral and medical expenses have all been
shouldered by ABS-CBN, there still exist claims for compensation for the deaths and injuries upon
evaluation of these claims, the amount of which have not been declared and cannot be determined
with certainty at this time. ABS-CBN’s management is nevertheless of the opinion that should
there be any adverse judgment based on these claims, this will not materially affect the Company’s
financial position and financial performance.
Other Matters
In 1972, ABS-CBN discontinued its operations when the government took possession of its
property and equipment. In the succeeding years, the properties were used without compensation
to ABS-CBN by Radio Philippine Network, Inc. (RPN) from 1972 to 1979, and Maharlika
Broadcasting System (MBS) from 1980 to 1986. A substantial portion of these property and
equipment was also used from 1986 to 1992 without compensation to ABS-CBN by People’s
Television 4, another government entity. In 1986, ABS-CBN resumed commercial operations and
it was granted temporary permits by the government to operate several television and radio
stations.
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- 117 ABS-CBN, together with Chronicle Broadcasting System, filed a civil case on January 14, 1988
against Ferdinand E. Marcos and his family, RPN, MBS, et. al., before the Sandiganbayan to press
collection of the unpaid rentals for the use of its facilities from September 1972 to February 1986
totaling P
=305 million plus legal interest compounded quarterly and exemplary damages of
=100 million.
P
ABS-CBN’s BOD resolved on June 27, 1991 to declare as scrip dividends, in favor of all
stockholders of record as of that date, whatever amount that may be recovered from the foregoing
pending claims and the rentals subsequently settled in 1995. The scrip dividends were declared on
March 29, 2000. In 2003, additional scrip dividends of P
=13 million were recognized for the said
stockholders. On April 28, 1995, ABS-CBN and the government entered into a compromise
settlement of rental claims from 1986 to 1992. The compromise agreement includes payments to
ABS-CBN of P
=30 million (net of government’s counterclaim against ABS-CBN of =
P68 million)
by way of tax credits or other forms of noncash settlement as full and final settlement of the
rentals from 1986 to 1992. The tax credit certificates were issued in 1998.
34. Notes to Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
2008
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Acquisition of program rights
on account
Acquisition of property and equipment
under capital lease
Payment of bonus through the issuance
of treasury shares by ABS-CBN

2007

2006

P
=773

=
P670

=
P394

96

280

118

–

55

22

(Amounts in Millions)
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